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Olredor~ llepo11 - 8u)jne;~ Revk'w 

Q1net1Q uses its domain knowledge to provide technical advice 
to customers 1n the global aerospace, defence and security 
markets Its unique pos1t1ornng enables 1t to be a trusted partner 
to government organisations, predominantly in the UK and the 
US, including defence departments, intelligence services and 
security agencies 

Key facts 

• We employ more than 13000 people worldwide 6 900 people m the 
UK and Australia and 6100 people m North Amenca 

• Our sc1entrsts and engineers solve some of the world's most important problems 

• We are the UK's largest research and technologyorgamsat1on 

• We are the world's leading suppher of m1htary robotics 

• More than 85% of our workforce carry h1gh·level national security clearances 
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Our markets are likely to remain uncertain for some time, 
but we now have a decisive programme of self-help to restore 
value. We are acting to make our costs more competitive, 
our productivity better and our debt lower. We are changing 
our structure to benefit from QinetiQ's overall strengths. Most 
of all, we are working to transform our culture into one based 
on leadership, accountability and empowerment of what is 
an OUtStanding group Of people. leoO"'"" Ch,efExecut!'eOffice. 

Perform.ance 

fl,62504m 
Revenue (2009 £1,6173m) Net debt (2009 £5379m) 

llolp 
Underlying operating profit' (2009 £1516m) Underlying earnings per share' (2009 15 9p) 

£(2503)m 
Operating (loss)/profit (2009 £128 lm) 

(907)p 
Basic earnings per share (2009 14 3p) 

7:4% 1058p 
Underlying operating margin' (2009 9 4%) D1v1dend (2009 4 75p) 

---------------------

• Difficult year - sales disappointing, margins weakened, 

• Markets remain challenging, 

• Review of operations complete - p11011t1es agreed, 

• Programme underway to restore Qinet1Q to strength over next two years, 

• Immediate drive on debt reduction to reduce net debt EBITDA from 2 sxt to a target of below 2xt, 
by dec1s1ve internal programme to restore value, and 

• Board recommending a suspension of d1v1dend for 12 months 

Defin1t1onsof underlying measu1es ot pe1formance are 1n the gl0<;.sa1y on page98 
Underly111g financial measures are presented as the Bo1rd believes these provide 
a bet te1 rep1esent1t1on of the Group~ long lf•r rn per forrnance trend 

t Annuahsed and calculated m 1ccoidance with the Groups credit faohty r at1os 

Oinet1Q GrotJp pie Annual Report and Accounts 2010 1 
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Directors' Report- Business Review 

The business at a glance 

How w• op•r.t• 

QinetiQ's business model is based on providing hi-tech advice 
to customers and building relationships as a trusted partner. 
Our customers value our technical and domain knowledge in 
support of professional services. They value our independence 
and our integrity, and trust us to share in their mission. 

Our mark•ts 

We provide the following capab11it1es 

• Technical assistance and programme support 

• Technology offerings 

• Test and evaluation 

• Research and development 

• Training delivery 

Highlights in our markets during the year 

Aerospace 

Typhoon programme 
The busmi>ss won a £37rn, three year 
contract during the year to StJpport the 
Typhoon programrne 

2 wwwQ1net1Q corn 

Pr112_Aevlew •ndd 2 

Defence 

Iraqi t11ght-tra1n1ng 
We continue to deliver Iraqi f11ght-tram1ng 
services as part of a multi-year contract 
worth more than $100m 

Security 

Cyve1llance 
Cyve1flance, providing proactive preventative 
solutions for customers 1n the cyber 
security market, was acquired during the 
year for an 1mt1al cons1derat1on of £26 lrn 

14/06/2010 17431 
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Qmet1Q provides services and products across international markets Our services business, which 
accounts for approximately 80% of total sales, 1s based on providing expertise and knowledge m national 
markets Our products business provides the platform for potential profitable growth on a global basis 

At the start of the new financial year we moved to a new structure 
• US Services 
• UK Services 
• Global Products 

We believe this structure will provide greater focus to leverage Qmet1Q's expertise, technology, 
customer relat1onsh1ps and business development skills, to enable sustainable and profitable growth 
over the longer-term 

Where w• ope rat• 

We have operations throughout the UK and North America as well as Australia, as illustrated 
Our capab11it1es are utilised across the world by an international range of customers who recognise 
Qmet1Q as a trusted partner 

Qinet1Q Group pie Annual Report and Accot,nts 2010 
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Directors' Report - Business Review 

Chairman's statement 

Dear shareholder 

I arn pleased to submit my first report as Chairman ofOmet1Q 
having assumed the role m March this year following the retirement 
of Sir John Chisholm 

Jhe last financial year was noteworthy for the Group given the 
changes 1n our markets on both sides oft he Atlantic Respond mg to 
fast-moving market developments has required a step change by the 
bus1np.:;5 and particularly by our people I would like to pay testimony 
to our employees who have taken on the challenge to adapt quickly 
to the changing pr1orit1es of our customers 

With changes m the pol1t1cal landscape on both sides oft he Atlantic, 
cornpotJnded by econom1c pressures, our business has experienced 
considerable uncertainty On the back of politrcal change, customers 
have delayed dec1s1on making as they review thf'lr budgets As a 
consequence of these market changes m November Wf' alerted the 
market that the Group was unl1kf'ly to meet market expectations 
The wider UK budget prPssures and delays m contract awards 
resulted m lower util1sallon of our teams 1n the last qtJarter This 
was followed m January hy confirmation that the delays m orders 
for surv1vab1hty products and Unmanned Ground Vehicles w1th1n 
the 01net1Q North America (ONA) Technology Solutions Group would 
result m performance for our ~econd half not exceed mg that of the 
first half This was d1sappomtmg and highlighted the need for the 
business to be more agile and to look to 1tselfto reduce its cost base, 
to ensLJre that 1t rem ams cornpet1tive 

The safety of our operations remains a p11or1ty ~ollow1ng the tragic 
loss of Nimrod XV230 tn 2006 and the subsequent publ1Cat1on of 
the Haddon Cave Report m October 2009 we were determined 
to take on board any key findings which will further 1rnprove otu 
ways of working Subsequently 1n November 2009, the Board 
appointed Sir Robert Nelson QC to consider the findings and 
recomrnendat1ons of the fladdon Cave Report S11 Robert concluded 
that substantial improvements have occurred 1n Q1net1Q since 2004 
but recornrnended that fuither changes were 1rnplenwnted and that 
1rnprovements which have been made to date are consolidated 
I arn pleased to report that we are already well underway with 
11nplementmg Sir Robert's recomrnendat1ons and are m the 
process of recrlJltmg a new Group Safety Director to the Executive 
Team Qmet1Q has a long established heritage and track record 1n 
a1rworth1ness and safety It is important that we ensure through 
our actions, processes, procedures and people that we are able 
to r<>mforce oLJr credentials m th1.:; crucially important field 

4 www Omet 10 corn 
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A tough year, given the 
economic, market and 
political uncertainty. 
Mark Elliott Chairrnan 

In Novernber, Leo Qu1nnjo1nf'd the Board as Chief Exec1Jt1ve Officer 
to lead the next stage ofQ1net1Q s development Leo took over 

the reins from Graham Love who left the Group after eight years 
having taken the orgamsat1on through pr1vat1sallon Leo Joined the 
Group having led De la Rue pie, overseeing its transforrnat1on mto 
a focused market leading security printer Prior to that, Leo was 
responsible for a number of business turnarounds In both [Llrope 
and the US Leo hasdnve and energy, and a passion for operational 
excellence and delivery I am plea.:;ed lo report that m the short t1rne 
that he has been with the Grotlp, he has already started thf" process 
of its transformation The Board 1s fully supportive of the pr1or1t1es 
set out by Leo Quinn 1n his Chief Executive Officers report 

The results 
Group revenues were flat at £1,62S 4rn (2009 £ 1,617 3rn), including 
a £43rn benefit from the strengthening US dollar exchange rate The 
overall organic decline 1n US revenues at constant currency was 4%, 
with the decline 1n higher rnarg1n product sales partially offset by 
growth m services The UK bu~1nesses suffered from a redtJC!1on m 
the historic concentration of Ministry of Defence (MOD) order flow 
towards the year end, although this impact was partially rnasked at 
the revenue level by higher pass-through revenues resulting ma 1% 
organic dechne tn EMEA revenues 

As a result oflhe reduction m higher contr1butron revenues, 
underlying operating profit' decreased to £120 3m (2009 £1Sl 6m) 
resulting man underlying margin' of74% (2009 9 4%) !he EMEA 
underlying mar gm• decreased to 7 5% (2009 10 0%) and the ONA 
underlying rnargm• fell to 8 5% (2009 10 8%) Losses for the Ventures 
d1v1s1on reduced as a result of the partial disposal of Cody Gate 
Ventures 1n the prior year Underlying profit before tax' was 
£BS 7m (2009 £130 2m) 

The Group rncLJrred 1mpa1rrnenl charges on goodwill of £50 lrn, 
mlang1ble assets and investments of£14 6m and tangible assets 
of £24 Orn Other non rectJrr1r1g items 1ncl\Jde a profit on business 
d1vP~trnents of fS lm (2009 £13 Orn} and a charge for reorgamsmg 
thf" EM(A business, anr.otJnced 1n May 2009 of £42 lrn The restJ1ting 
statutory loss before tax was £66 lrn (2009 profit of £114 Om) 

The GrotJp achieved a s;rong underlying cash conversion' of 145% 
(2009 107%) due to a contmtJed fa<: us on cash generation Cash flow 
from operations increased to £204 6m (2009 £202 2m) before the 
costs at the EMEA reorganisation annrnmced m May 2009 
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Net debt, as at 31 March 2010, was £457 4rn (31 March 2009 
£537 9m) resulting from strong cash flow from operations and 
the beneficial translation impact of the US dollar exchange rate, 
as the majority oft he Group's debt 1s drawn in US dollars The 
Groups gearing rat1ot at 31 March 2010 was 2 sxt (31 March 
2009 2 2xt) well inside the covenant level of 3 Sxt 

Full year underlying earnings per share• were 11 lp (2009 15 9p) 

The Board 1s confident that the programme announced on 27 May 
will restore the Group to strength over the next 24 months, 
1nclud1ng the rapid pay down to a target gearing ratio of below 
2xt For this reason, the Board 1s recommending that no payment 
be made either of a final d1v1dend for the year JUSt ended or of an 
1nter1m d1v1dend for the curff•nt year It 1s the Boards expectation 
that the Group will pay a final d1v1dend with respect to the 
financial year end mg 31 March 2011 

The Board 
There have been a r1tJrnber of changes to the Board during 
the year 

In May 2009, Sir John Chisholm announced his intention to retire 
from the Board as Chairman Some 19 years ago Sir John took 
on the challenge of creating a successful commercial enterprise 
out of the research laboratories of the M1rnstry of Defence 
This culminated 1n the Company s listing on the London Stock 
Exchange 1n February 2006 His personal commitment, integrity 
and phf'nomenal energy have made Q1net1Q the ~uccessful 
organisation 1t 1s today and, on behalf of the Board, I thank him 
for his enormous contribution I am sure everyone at Q1net1Q 
wishes Sir John all the very best for his retirement 

In August last year, David H Langstaff Joined the Board as a 
Non executive Director bringing an m depth understanding 
of the North American security market Non executive Director 
Dr Peter Fellner stepped down from the Board al the close oft he 
Group's AGMon 4 August 2009 Graham love left the Company 
and Leo Quinn JOlned the Board 1n the role of Chief Executive 
Officer 1n November Just aftertheyf'ar end, I was plf'ased to 
announce the appointment of Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent 
KCB CBE MA as an Independent Non executive Director 
Sir James brings extensive experience of the operational 
challenges of the defence sector 

Pr112_Review 1ndd s 

People 
Omet1Q 1s a unique organisation built on the technical knowledge, 
expertise and integrity of its people Thf'y are involved 1n solving 
some of society's most cornplex problems I believe our teams 
undertake their roles with 1ntegr1ty and demonstrate commitment 
to our customers Dur mg the second half oft he year our employees 
adapted lo s1gn1ficant change which will modernise and repos1t1on 
the bus mess for the future, ensuring we remain compet1t1ve in the 
market This required flex1bil1ty from our people and I thank them 
for their ongoing commitment and support 

Outlook 
In both the US and the UK, the defence markets remain challenging 
as a result of the economic environment Add1t1onally 1n the UK, the 
impending Strategic Defence and Security Review adds uncertainty 
to forecasts for defence spending The Board has concluded its 
review of operations and reset the pr1or1t1es of the Group The new 
management 1s taking action over the next 24 months to reduce 
costs, improve product1v1ty and drive cash generation, both to 
reduce the Group's net debt rapidly and to refocus and repos1t1on its 
businesses over the medium term for a return to profitable growth 

In the current financial year, the perforrnance of Qinet1Q s service 
businesses 1s likely to remain steady overall The product businesses, 
whose performance 1s by nature more variable, shotJld benefit from 
the release of some orders 1n the US delayed from prior period 
although this will be partially offset by the weaker UK env1ronmf'nt 
The Board believes 1t will meet its expectations for the current year 

Mark Elhott Chairman 
2June2010 

• Drfinit1ons of underlying me1sures of performance are 1n tl1e glossary on page 98 
Under lying financial measures are presented as the Board believes these provide 
a better representation of the Groups long term performance trend 

tThe gearing ratio 1s net debt to adjusted EBITDA ind the definition 1s 111 the 
glossary on page 98 

Q1net1Q Group pie Annual Report and Accounts 2010 
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Directors' Report- Business Review 

Chief Executive Officer's review 

During thP past year, 1t became apparent that our markets were 
undergoing significant changes, as Governments sought to reduce 
their budgets and their debt, while continuing in the short-term 
to condtJCt high levels of rmhtary operations abroad These 
1mcertarnt1es had a marked impact on the Groups performance, 
but also h1ghl1ghted the need for substantial internal change 1f 
we were to chart a course to profitable and sustainable growth 

That 1s why, 11nmed1ately following rny appointment m November 
2009, I began a review of our operations and processes That review 
1s now complete and the Board has agreed our pr1or1t1es and actions 
to return Q1net1Q to strength 

Review of operations and processes 
In recent yea1s OmehO has grown rapidly both by acqu1s1t1on and by 
seekmg to use its technology m md11str1es outside its core expertise 
To date these mvestments have not delivered their expected returns 
and the Gro11p s net debt has nsen s1gn1ficantly In add1t1on, the 
organisational structure and processes within Qmet1Q have become 
overly complex and fragmented which 1s a barrier to effective 
performance These fattors, combined with challPngmg market 
cond1t1ons, make 1t 1mperat1vethat OmetrQ ensures 1t has a strong 
foundation on which to build 

Q1net1Q predorrnnantly corn prises a range of service businesses 
po:.1t1oned to advise and support c11storners to achieve efficiency 
and effectiveness m the UK and the US These businesses are based 
on - and continue to refresh - Omet1Q s deep c11stomer knowledge 
and technical understand mg of the aerospace defence and 
seetH1ty sectors, and ate capable of prov1d1ng a relatively stablP and 
predictable income pattern This capability 1s based on the expertise 
of our people and the relat1onsh1ps they develop m specific national 
markets and, over t1rne, should create opportunities to provide 
s1rmlar service:. mother countries 

The Group also possesses a smaller proportion of product businesses 
with technically advanced offenngs developf'd 1n house Today 
the:.e prod1icts are sold principally to customers m the UK and the 
US, but the 1narket IS potentially global By their nature-based 
on technology- these businesses have hrgher rnargms bt1t more 
variable sales and to date, they have been managed w1thm1t 
:.1Jfflc1ent sharing of mh..llectual property or scale between the 
UK and US operations to rnax1m1se opportun1t1es and prolitab1lity 

6 wwwOmel1Qcorn 
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QinetiQ's deep customer 
relationships in the UK and 
the US, together with the 
world-class expertise and 
innovation of its employees, 
provide the capacity for longer 
term profitable growth. 
Leo Quinn Chief Executive Officer 

Our US products b11s1nesses gives us a strong route into the world':. 
most advanced defence market and we believe that this pos1t1on, 
combined with the complementary skills of our research and 
expertise m the UK has the potential for profitable growth on 
a global basis 

Fit for the future 
My focus for the Group IS to dehve1 the full potential of the 
investments which the Group has made l his means removing 
barriers to success and focusing rigorously on the best opportunities 
created by our markets and our own strengths My objective is to 
build a new trajectory for Qmet1Q, one with a very clear d1rect1on 
and more urgent pace Our customers needs, the development of 
offering:. which address those needs and their successh1J execution 
rnust be our touchstone I am making changes to ensure that Q1net1Q 
competes successfully 1n challenging markets We need to remain 
cornpet1t1ve, have robust processes which make us fit for the future 
fit for growth, and that means tackling the way we all work We are 
focused on reducing our costs, 1rnproving our efficiency, stab1hsmg 
our business and becoming rnore flexible and agile I set Ollt my 
pr1or1t1es over the following pages 

I believe these changes are essential to provide the Group with a 
sohd foundation Qmet1Q's deep customer relat1onsh1ps m the UK 
and the US the two lead mg markets in its core areas, together with 
the world class expertise and 1 nnovat1on of its employees provide 
the capacity for longer term profitable growth once the Groups 
operations and processes have been returned to strength 

Trading environment and outlook 
This has been a difficult year for Q1netl(), with challenging 
cond1tmns m our core markets and considerable internal change 
Our markets are likely to remain uncertain for some time but 
we now have a dec1~1ve prograrnrneof self-help to rP.:;torP value 
We are act mg to make our costs rnorecompet1t1ve, our product1v1ty 
better and our debt lower We are changing our structure to benefit 
from Q1net1Q s overall strengths Most of all we are working to 
transform our culture into one based on leadership, accountability 
and empowerment of what 1s an outstanding group of people 
With these 1rnn1ed1ate steps, the Board beheves that 1t will rneet 
its expectations for the current year At the san1e time our goal 1s to 
build the right foundation for a reltJrn to profitable and sustainable 
growth m the future 

14/06'2010 17 431 
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Our structure 

Our service businesses address national markets and our product businesses 
address a global market. 

The My Contribution programme 

My Contribution, introduced 
in March this year, is the 
umbrella activity driving 
continuous improvement, 
employee engagement and 
operabona I performa nee 
within Q1netiQ It 1s a tracked 
and measured productivity 
programme by which all 
employees a re able to 
generate and voice their 
ideas and, more importantly, 
convert them quickly into 
projects that dehver concrete 
business benefits 

01net1Q Group pie Annual Report and Accounts 2010 7 
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Directors' Report- Business Review 

Chief Executive Officer's review (continued) 

How we will oper•te 

> Set a clear direction which reduces the span of focus and matches both 
customer needs and core Oinet1Q strength 

~~~--~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

> S1mpl1fy and align our operating structure with the new direction, 
removing unnecessary layers 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

> Increase transparency and control through all levels 

> Upgrade leadership to ensure a commercial, value-oriented mindset 

> Create a strong performance culture of both accountab1hty and 
empowerment to our people 

> Establish a lower level of cost base to ensure future competitiveness 

> Ensure a more unified approach Group-wide to exploit key opportun1t1es 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-

) Drive for cash generation to strengthen the Group's balance sheet 

Our priorities 
To strt>ngthen our foundations and build a future path to su~tarnable 
and profitable growth, the followrng pr1or1t1es to create value have 
been ptJt m place 

>Seta clear direction which reduces the span of focus and matches 
both customer needs and core QinetiQ strength - Going forward 
our rnvestment dec1s1ons will be guided by build mg on our 
known strengths Some parts oft he original Qrnet1Q stratPgy 
have proven successful over recent years- frx:usmg on the needs 
of existing customers, explrnt1ng the potential of our expert 
technical services and the dec1s1on to enter the US marketplace 
the largest defence rnarket rn the world Howevt>r, we have not 
been ~tJccessful at cornrnerc1al1s1ng our technology or explrnt1ng 
1t rn adjacent markets As yet, we have not achieved the potential 
from extending into defence markets beyond the UK and the US 
and from ftJlly integrating and developing some of our acqrns1t1ons 
Unque~t1onably, Q1net1Q s strength lies 1n its ab1hty to provide 
customers with trusted advice, working 1n close partnership 
and usmg its PXpert1se rn both technology and spPc1fic markets to 
enable customers to have greater effic1encces and to take effective 
dec1s1ons This work, including the rf'Sf'arch we conduct on 
customers' behalf in turn continually refreshes the knowledge 
and value of our people to provide 1nnovat1ve services 

8 wwwQ1net1Qcom 
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> S1mphfy and align our operating structure with the new d1rect1on, 
removing unnecessary layers - The Group's current fragmented 
structure has hindered development of its full potential The 
operatmg model and management of the service b1Js1nesses, 
which comprise approxnnately 80%of our total sales, differ 
markedly frorn that of our product businesses, which currently 
account for about 20%of sales A new structure comprising three 
d1v1s1ons - US Services UK Services and Global Prod1JCts-w1ll 
enable greater focus to leverage Q1nPt1Q's expertise, technology 
custorner relat1onsh1ps and business development skills to enable 
sustainable and profitable growth 

>Increase transparency and control through all levels - Following 
a penod of growth, 1t 1s essential to put dtsc1pllned ~tandard 
processes which aid transparency and rnanagement v1s1b1l1ty mto 
the operation!> This includes standard reporting of perforrnance 
1nforrnat1on across the Group and reg11lar reviews oft a lent 
innovation and cost reduction 

> Upgrade leadership to ensure a commercial, value-oriented 
mindset- Given the challenges ahead for the business, 1t is 
vital we have the right strengthoftearn in place and remove 
unnecessary rnanagernent layers Continually evahJalmg and 
upgrading the top leaders, setting clear expectations which align 
performance and bf'hav10LHS with the Group's overall objectives, 
with appropnate incentives to drive profit and cash are key to 
our ach1evernent of success Increased commun1cat1ons and 
engagement by leadPrs both with their own learns and customers, 
and thedehvery of value for our shareholders, will be laid out 
m personalised leadership charters aml published throughout 
the orgamsatmn 
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- Action plan 

> Move to('.! new reporting structure comprising three 
drvis1ons, US Services, UK Services and Global Products 

> Introduce standardised management reporting 
and regular reviews of key business drivers 

------------------
> Assess the top leaders Group-wide, setting targets 

for performance and behaviours which reflect 
Group objectives for profit and cash, and providing 
appropriate incentives 

> Install a Group-wide performance management 
system and directly engage employees in the 
1mprov~ment of productivity 

---'-----
) Ehm1nate waste and reduce costs with better 

business processes and a unified Q1net1Q approach 

--- ---- ------
> Reduce debt by driving cash generation, 1nclud1ng I 

tight measurement of working capital to reduce 
the ratio of net debt/EBITDAt to Ir.> low 2.0x 

-- -------- --- -- --~ ------
> SU Sp.2nd payment of d1v1dend on Oinet1Q's 

ordinary shares for 12 months 
- - --- ------

>Create a strong performance culture of both accountab1hty and 
empowe1ment to our people -Qrnet1Q needs to build a culture 
which embraces rnd1v1d1ial conlr1b1Jt1on and respons1b1lity 
thro11gh rne<Jsurement A new perforrnance management system, 
My Personal Success Plan, will focu~on 1dent1fyrngour lop leaders 
oft he ftJture and helping each person to develop their potential 
We will actively enrol tht:. knowledge and ideas of otJr tf-'arn~ 
through the roll out of My Contr1b1Jt1on a tracked and measured 
prcx11Jct1v1ty progr<irnrnP which embeds the concPpt of Pmployee 
engagement to 1rnprove business performance We are refreshing 
our focus on Health ~md Safety as this 1s ftJndamental not only 
to employee well bemg but also to the nature oft he work that 
we undertake As part ofth1s, m response to the findings of thf> 
Haddon Cave report, we are recru1t1ng a new Group Safety 
Director to the Executive Tearn 

>Establish a lower level of cost base to ensure future 
compet1t1veness - Our custorners are all under mcrea~mg pressure 
to gain better value for their mvestrnents and as a supplier to these 
rnarkets, we must have .i cornpet1t1ve cost base We are therefore 
re exarrnmng and strearnlrnrngour business processes through a 
programme called F1t4Growth, focu~ed on 1rnprovmg mn sy~tems 
and procedures to ensure we reduce and retam tight control of our 
costs, ehrrnnate tnf>ffic1Pnc1e~ and address loss rnakrng act1v1t1es 
And whilst we will continue to invest m df>velopmgour busrnPsses 
and our people, this rn1ic;t be financed by rigorously reducing 

other costs 

Prf12_Aevj811t lndd 9 

KPls 

> Return on capital employed 
> Operating profit 
> Operating profit margin 
> Operating cash conversion 

> Employee engagement 
> Customer satisfaction 

>Operating profit margin 
> Employee engagement 

> Net debt/EBITDA rat1ot 
> Operating cash conversion 

> Ensure a more unified approach Group-wide to exploit key 
opportun1t1es -We need a more unified approach to exploit key 
opportunities so that we leverage our customer knowledge and 
technical expertise better, mdudingour approach to untapped 
opportun1t1es 1n ~ma lier 1nternat1onal markets outside the UK and 
the US Through a more unified approach to working as one team 
and rnak1ng key dcc1s1on~ on a global basis, WP can develop our 
best opportunities and rnost effective routes to rnarket to build 
Qmf>t1Q s reputation and pos1t1on 

> Dnve for cash generation to strengthen the Group's balance 
sh@et- We intend to reduce our indebtednf'~S We have 1dent1fied 
a number of self-help rneasures to drive cash generation harder, 
rncludmg the redlld•on of working capital. lower mg costs and the 
el1rn1nat1on of loss making act1v1t1es 

t The gearing 11!10 1s net debt to ;idjusted EBI !DA ind thedefimtton 1s 1n the 
gloss 1ry on pagt> 98 
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Directors' Report- Business Review 

Chief Executive Officer's review (continued) 

Porform•nco R•view - Qin•tiQ North Am•ric• 

2010 
£m 

Revenue 

M1ss1on Solutions 354 7 
Systems Engrnef>ting 273 3 
Technology Solutions ONA 172 1 

Total 800 1 

Underlying operating profit• 677 
Underlying operating margin• 8 5% 

Funded Orders 
M1ss1on Solutions 326 6 
Systems Er1g1neer1ng 251 0 
Technology Solutions ONA 183 0 

Total 760 6 

Book to bill ratio 101 
Backlog 326 3 

Revenues declined 4% on an orgarn<- basis at constant currency 

2009 
Em 

289 5 
244 5 
231 6 

765 6 

83 0 
108% 

283 2 
2675 
1879 

738 6 

I 0 1 
415 0 

to [800 lrn (2009 £765 6m) W1thm this, the services businesses 
(M1s~1on Solution~ and "iystems Engineering), which accmmt for 
c80% ofQNAs revenue, grew by 7% on an organic basis This was 
offset by the slowdown 1n Technology Solutions' rrnlitary product 
sales as the new US Adrn1nistrat1on completed many of its key 
Department of Defense (DoD) leadership appointments and 
finalised its strategy for the continued involvement 1n Afghanistan 
Underlying operating profit" decreased to £677m (2009 £83 Orn) 
dPlivering an underlying opera! 1ng rr1argin• of 8 5% (2009 10 8%) 
The decline m operating margin 1s principally reflective of the 
compos1t1on ofQNA's revenue which included a srnaller proportion 
of its higher margin prodtJCt sales 

10 www Qinet1Q corn 
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Dragon Runner™ Unmanned 
Ground Vehicles (UGVs) 
purchased by the UK MOD 

The M1ss1on Solutions bu~1ness grew organic.illy by 8% anrl 
continued to broaden its custorner base with contract wrns from 
a number of new customers, including the US Department of State 
the US Secret Se1v1ce and a contract with the US Federal Ernergency 
Management Agency The five year $100m Janus 11 contract was 
awarded m August 2009 to replace and upgrade the Department 
of State's telecornmurncat1ons systems at Arner1Can ernbasstes and 
other locatmns worldwide The Systems Engineenng business grew 
organically by 6% with increased demand on a number of contracts 
frorn customers across the US Army, N<lvy Marines and Specra! 
Forces In add1t1on, the Systems Engmeermg business continues 
successfully to deliver haq1 fl1ght-tra1mng services The fourth option 
year ofth1s contract was recently exercised by the custorner Towards 
the end oft he year the services businesses experienced some delays 
and curtailments in Government orders 

$100m 
Multi-year contract for prov1s1on of Iraqi 
fhght-tra1n1ng services 

The slowdown 1n Technology So!ut1onsQNA 1esu!led 1n a 31% 
decrease in organic revenues against a very ~trong comparable prior 
year From an international perspective, the Austrahan Department 
of Defence placed a AU0$23rn contract for TALON• robots and 
replacement parts to support the Australian Defence Force deployed 
on operations A key contract win for Technology Solutions ONA this 
year was the $31rn O N(TS contract, a vehicle surv1vab1l1ty prcx:luct, 
for the MRAP Lite fleet 

In July 2009 the Group acquired Cyve1llance Inc for an m1t1al cash 
cons1derat1on 1nc1ur:lmg costs, of £26 lrn ($42 2m) A potential 
further payment up to a max1rnLJm of £26 4rn ($40rn) will be made 
dependmgon performancedurmg the two year period ending 
31 December 2010 Cyve1llance develops and operates online 
rnorntormg technology to 1dent1fy and track data on the mt er net 
prov1d1ng proact 1ve preventative solutions for custornPrs 1n the 
cyber security rnarket 
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Perform•nce Review - EMEA 

2010 
£m 

Revenue 

Managed Services 384 3 
Consulting 142 6 
Technology Solutions EMEA 2919 

Total 818 8 

Underlying operating profit•(1J 611 
Underlying operating rnargm'Pl 7 5% 

Funded Orders 
Managed Sf'rv1ces 237 0 
Consulting 128 7 
Technology Solutions EMEA 269 3 

Total 635 0 

Book to b1U rat1ol1l 101 
Backlog!11 8392 

11>Excludes 1ema1rnng £4 lbn (Jl March 2009 £4 Sbn) 1n respect 
o1 l TPA contract 

200'1 
£m 

3707 
1451 
326 5 

842 3 

84 2 
10% 

186 6 
315 7 
3489 

851 2 

131 
802 0 

rn Pno1 year comparatives have been restated to show the finance elenient 
ot the IAS 19 pens10n cost 1n the finance and expense lines 

Revenue for the per1ocl was £818 8rn (2009 £842 3rn) a 1% decline 
on an organic basis The UK budget pressures and delays rn contract 
awards reslllted rn lower t1til1sat1on of employees m 04 than has 
been the case m prior year~ This impact was masked to a degree 
on the revenue lme by hrgher levels of pass through revenue on 
certain programmes, however 1t resulted in underlymgoperatmg 
profit• decreasing to £61 lm (2009 £84 2rn) Orders received were 

down 2S% against the prior year which included the £1SOrn l S year 
Mar1t1me Strategic Capab1l1ty Agrf'ernent 

£31m 
£3lm DTR Early Training Transformation contract 
signed 1n August 2009 

Both Consulting and Technology Solutions EMEA have previously 
benf'fited from a seasonal pick-up in a large mnnber of small value 
contracts 1n 04 as MOD dosed out its financial year This year the 
volume of such contracts was much reduced and consequently 
Consulting'!> reported revenues declined by 3% on an organic basis 
In Technology Solutions EMEA the eqwvalent decline was 7%, 
exacerbated by the decrease 1n MOD research revenues During the 
period Technology Solutions EMEA worked with ONA in enabling 
transfer of technologies across the Atlantic as evidenced by the 
sale of Dragon Runner"" Unmanned Ground Vehicles (UGVs) to 
the UK MOD 

Defi111t1ons of underlying rneasu1es of per torrnance are 1n the glossary on page "18 
Underlying finano;il measures are presented as the Board believes these provide 
a better rep1PSentat1on of the Groups long term performance trend 

fl he gearing r it 10 1s net debt to adjusted EBIT DA ind the defi111t1on 1s 111 the 
glossary on p1ge 98 
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Managed Services revenue for the per100 increased organically 
by 6% over the prior period, enhanced predorrnnantly by somP 
pass through revenues on the LTPAcontract and the £31rn Defence 

Training Review (DTR) Early Trainmg Transforrnat1on contract signed 
1n August 2009 Package 1 oft he UK MOD DTR 1s progressing During 

the period £11 2m of bid costs we1ecap1tallsed, bringing the total 
amount of bid costs cap1tal1sed as at 31 March 2010 to £30 8m 
(2009 £19 6rn) The progranu11e has been submitted to the MOD 

Investment Appraisal Board ('Mam Gate') which has indicated that 
MOD may continue to develop the transaction in parallel with the 
Strategic Defence and Security Review The MO D's expectation for 
financial dose 1s currently rn1d 2011 

Managed Services' revenue 
increased by 6% in the year 

The EMEA restruchmng programme announced 1n May 2009 was 
largely completed this linanoal year The cost ofth1s programme 
was £42 lm all of which has been expensed to the income 
statement 1n the year as a non recurring item 

During the penod thf' EMEA business disposed of a nurnber 

of non core assets, 1nclud1ng the Underwater Systems business, 
in September 2009 (for a cash cons1derat1on before costs of 
£23 Sm) and ASAP Calibration Services L1m1ted, m July 2009 
for a nominal cons1derat1on 

Ventures 

2010 iooq 
£m fm 

Revenue 
Underly1ngoperatmg loss• 

65 
(8 5) 

94 
(15 6) 

The Ventures portfolio 1n the yearcompnsed of three businesses 
Tars1er (Foreign ObJPCt Dete(.t1on),GP~ Fnabled Telernat1cs (a high 
sens1t1v1ty business which delivers tracking solutions in difficult 
operational environments) and Optasense (an acoustte sensing 
detection solution) The prior year lo~<; includPd £7 2rn of eqtJ1ty 

accounted losses from the Cody Gate Ventures Fund prior to the 
Groups part disposal of the fund m March 2009 

Leo Quinn Chief Executive Officer 

2 June 2010 
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Directors' Report - Business Review 

Chief Financial Officer's review 

Group overview results 

Revenue 
2010 1009 

£m fm 

Revenue 
Qmet1Q North America 

EMEA 
800 1 765 6 
818 8 842 3 

VentLires 65 94 ----------
Total 1,625 4 1,617 3 

Group revenues were flat at £1625 4rn (2009 £1617 3m), mchJd1ng 
a £43m benefit from the strengthening US dollar exchange rate 

ONA revenue declined 4% on an organic basis at constant currency 
to £800 lrn (2009 £765 6rn) W1thm this the services bus messes 
(M1ss1on SoltJ\1ons and ~ystems Engmt>ering), which account 
for c80% ofONAs reventJe, grew by 7% on an organic basis This 
was offset by the slowdown m Technology Solutions' m1litary 
product sales as the new US Adrrnrnstrallon completed many of 
its key 0Ppartrnent of DPfense (DoD) lt>adt>rsh1p appointments and 
finalised its ~\ra\egy for the continued involvement in Afghanistan 

Underly mg operating profit• decreased to £67 7rn (2009 £83 Orn) 
dehvermg an underly mg operating margin" of 8 S% (2009 10 8%) 

The decline In operating margin 1s princip'111y renect1ve of the 
cornpos1tion ofQNA's rf'Vf'nue which included a srnaller proportion 
of1ts higher margin product sales 

EMEA revenue for the pt>nod was £818 Sm (2009 [842 3rn), a 1% 

decline on an organic ba~1s The UK budget pwssure~ and delays 
m contract awards res1Jlted 1n lower 1Jt1\1sat1on of ernployet>s m 04 
than has been the case m prior years This impact was masked to a 

degree on the revenue line by higher levels of pass through revenue 
on certain prograrnmf's, however rt resulted 1n underlying opt>rat1ng 

profit" decreasing to £61 lrri (2009 £84 2m) 

Definitions of underlying measures of performance 1re 1n the glossary on p1ge 98 
Underlymg firnnc1al measures are presented 1s the Board beheves these p10v1de 
a bettrr represPntat1on of the Groups long terrn performance trend 

t 1 he ge mng 11t1u 1s net debt to 1diusted ~BllDA 1nd thedef1rnt1on 1s 111 the 
glossary on page 98 

12 wwwQ1net1Qcorn 
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Despite the challenging year, 
the cash generation across the 
Group was very strong with 
net cash flow from operations* 
up 3% at £174.3m. 
David Mellors Ch1efFmanc1al Officer 

Underlying operating profit• 

Undt!rlymg opt!rating profit 
Qmet1Q North America 

~M~A 

Ventures 

Total 

Undt!rly1ng opt!ratmg margm• 

2010 iooq 
£m fm 

677 83 0 
611 84 2 
(8 5) (15 6) 
--~----

120 3 151 6 

7 4% 94% 

As a result of the reduction m h1ghercontnbut1on revenues, underlymg 
operating profit" dt>creased to £120 3m (2009 £151 6rn), result mg 
1n an underlying operatmg rnargm• of74% (2009 9 4%) The EM(A 
underly mg operatmg margin• decreased to 7 5% (2009 10%) and the 
ONA underlying operating margin" fell to 8 5% (2009 10 8%) Losses 

for the Ventures d1v1s1on reduced as a result of the parllal disposal 
of Cody Gate Ventures 1n the prior year Underlying profit beforf' tax• 

was £85 7rn (2009 £130 2rn) 

Our investment 1n Ventures continued during the year The underlying 

operating loss• of £8 Srn (2009 £15 6m) was mitigated during the 
year following our part disposal of our investment 1n the Cody Gate 
Ventures Fund 1n March 2009 The prior year results included the 

Group's share of Cody Gate Ventures losses of £7 2rn 
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Group summary 

2010 1009' 

Revenue (fm) 1,625 4 16173 
Organic change at constant currency (3)% 7% 
Underlying operating profit (frn)(ll• 120 3 1516 
Underlying operating marg1n11l• 74% 94% 
Underlying profit before tax (fm)lll 85 7 130 2 

Net finance expense (fm) 34 6 214 

Underlying effective tax ratet11 150% 205% 

Bas!C earnings per share (9 7)p 14 3p 

Underlying earnings per share11) 11 lp 1S9p 

D1v1dend per share 158p 4 7Sp 

Underlying net cash from operations (post capex) (fm~1 ) 174 3 169 B -- ----
Underlying cash conversion rat1011l 145% 107% 

Net debt (fm) 4574 5379 

Net debt EBITDAPl 2 5x 2 2x 

Average USS/£ exchange rate 159 168 ----
Closing US$/£ exchange rate 152 144 

111 Definitions of underlying measu1es of performance are 1n the glossary on page 98 Unde1lymg finanaat measures are presented as the Board bell eves these provide 
a bette( teptesentahooof the Groups long tetmpe!fmrnance trend 

!ll Annualised and calculated in accordance with the Groups oedit faohty ratios 
t Prior year comparatives have been restated to show the finance element of the IAS 19 pension cost 1n the finance and expense lines 

There is no impact on reported profit beforetaxfrom this restatement 

During the period, the Group has elected to align the trPatrnent 
oft he Group's IAS 19 pension charge with that of its peer listed 
companies by showing the finance element of the pension charge 
m the finance costs line and the service cost remaining m operating 
expenses 1n prior reported periods theseelernents had been combined 
and reported m operating costs IAS 19 Employee Benefits permits 
both lfPatrnents The Group's comparative figures have been 
restated to 1ellect this change although there IS no impact on the 
Group's profit before tax or retained profit This pension l1ab1lity 
~its within the EMEA business and therefore the operating segment 
comparatives have also been restated 

Finance costs 
Net finance costs have increased to £34 6m (2009 £21 4rn) due 
pr1nc1pally to an adverse rnovernent 1n thP net pension return of 
[i; 9rn combined with the effect of refinancing floating rate US dollar 
debt LJnder the revolving credit facility with more secure long term 
fixed rate debt ob tamed from the US private placement market m 
February 2009 

Taxatton 
The Group's underlying effective tax rate' was 1 i;3 (2009 20 5%) 
The reduction on prior yPar 1s d11e to the cornb1n;:it1on of the 
cessation of equity accounted losses of Cody Gate Ventures and 
certain favmJrable outcomes and settlements to datP coupled 
with lower reported profits in QmellQNorth Arner1ca The 
Group contintJes to benefit from the avarlab1hty of research and 
development rehef and in future yea1s, the Group will benefit from 
Pnacted tax law changes having an rmpact on US State taxes Overall, 
the Group effective tax rate 1s not ant1c1paled to rise significantly in 
the medium term, subject to any ftJture tax leg1~lal1on changes 

Pr112_Ravrew 1ndd 13 

Acqu1s1t1on amortisation and specrfic non-recurring Items 
The perforrnance of the Group after allowing for non recurring 
events and amort1sat1on of acquired intang1blP assets 1s shown 
below 

2010 1009 
£m fm 

--- ---- ----
Underlying profit for the year attnbutable to 
equity shareholders of the parent company 72 8 

Impairment ofmlang1ble assets (534) 

An1ort1sat1on of 1ntang1ble assets arising 
from acqu1s1t1ons (26 1) 

Impairment of plant, property and equ1prnent (24 0) 

EMEA reorganisation (42 1) 

Gain on business divestments 5 1 

Unreahsed 1rnpa11ment of investments (113) 

Tax impact of 1terns above 157 

(Loss)/profitfor the year attributable to 
equity shareholders of the parent company (63 3) 

The resulting statutory loss after tax was £63 31n (2009 profit 
of £93 6rn) 

103 5 

(L3 5) 

13 0 

(5 7) 

63 

93 6 

Non recurring items. that have been excluded from underlying profit 
relate to gains on busrne..;s d1vestrn<>nts, trnpa1rment of investments 
impairment of plant, property and equipment 1rr1patrment of 
1ntang1ble asseb and EMEA rPorganrsat1on costs 
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Directors' Report- Business Review 

Chief Financial Officer's review (continued) 

During the year thPre has been an 1mpa1rment of £!:>3 4m against 
intangible assets A £50 lm 1mpa1rrnent of goodwill has arisen m 
Technology Solutions ONA (f 11 4m), M1ss1on Solutions (£30 8rn) and 
Australia (£79m) The global econorrnc uncertainty has led to weaker 
market outlooks whtch has 1n turn impacted on the future growth 
potential I he remaining impairment charge of £3 3rn 1s in respect 
ofother 1ntang1bleassets 

An 1mpa1rment charge of £20 7m agamst the Group's land and 
buildings was taken during the year relating to owned properties 
within EM[A where there are no external tenants following 
vacancies arising during the year An 1mpa1rrnent charge of £3 31n 
was taken aga1n~t the Groups plant, machinery and vehicles during 
the year relating to the 1mpa1rment of assets which are no longer 
generating a return Both of these 1rnpa1rments relate to reductions 
1n the carrying value of these assets to their recoverable amounts 

The EMEA restructuring programme announced 1n May 2009 largely 
completed this finanoal year The cost ofth1s prograrnme was £42 lm, 
allot which has been expensf'd to the income staternent 1n thf' year 
as a non-recurring item 

The gain on business divestments 1n the year relates to the disposal 
of two tJ.usmesses during the period On 30 Septen1ber 2009 the 
Group disposed of the Underwater Systems business and on 31 July 
2009 the Calibration business, including ASAP Cal1brat1on Ltd for a 
nominal cons1df'rat1on 

Earnings per share 
Underlying earnings per share" was 11 lp compared with 15 9p for 
the year to 31 March 2009 Basic earnings per share reduced to (9 7p) 
(2009 14 3p) over the same period 

D1v1dend 
The Group paid an 1ntenrn d1v1dend ofl 58 pence per share and the 
Board 1s recommending that no final d1v1dend be paid (2009 total 
d1v1dends 4 75 pence per share) 

Other F1nanc1als 

Cash flow 
The Group's cash flow from operations before reorganisation costs 
was £204 6m (2009 £202 2rn) !he underlying operating cash 
conversion ratio" post capital expenditure was 145% (2009 107%) 
as a result of a kf'en foctJs on cash gPnerat1on The cash otJtflow 
in the year on EMEA reorganisation was £35 4m (2009 £2 IOm) 

Acqu1s1t1on expenditure net of cash acquired totalled £4;. 6m 
(2009 £89 2m), £26 lrn of which was due to the acquts1t1on of 
Cyveillance, Inc 1n July 2009 .md the remainder was deferrf'd 
cons1derat1on on prior year's acqu1s1t1ons Proceeds received frorn 
the d1spo~als of Underwater Systems and Cal1brat1on businesses 
totalled £21 lrn (2009 £209rn) 

At 31 March 2010, net debt reduced by £80 Sm to £457 41n corn pared 
with £5379rn at 31 March 2009 

The Gro1Jp s borrowings remained comfortably w1thrn its banking 
covenant.:; Thf' Groups two key debt covenant measures are the 
gearing and interest cover ratios At 31 March 2010 the actual ratios 
were well within the rnax1murn covenant levels perrn1tted with the 
gearing' ratio at 2 Sx corn pared to thP covf'nant rnaxunurn level of3 5 
and interest cover ofS 6 compared to a rnmrrnum covenant level of 4 O 

14 wwwQ1:net1Qcorn 
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The total committed fac1lit1es available to the Group at 31 March 
2010, we1e £877rn The earliest 1natur1\y date of the Gro1Jp s 
committed facilities 1s August 2012 

§1nclud1ng private pl Kement debt detailed m note 27(e) 

Pensions 
The net pension hab1l1ty under IAS 19, after deferred tax was 
£ 106 lrn at 31 March 2010 (31 March 2009 £75 Sm) The increase 
m the net pension hability 1s pnrnarilydr1ven by reductions m the 
corporate bond discount rate which reduces the extent by which the 
pension hab1hty 1s discounted 

The key assumptions used m the IAS 19 valuation of the scheme are 

Discount rate 
lnflat1on 
Salary increase 
Life expectancy- male (currently aged 40) 
Life expectancy- ff'rnale (currently ~ged 40) 

31 March ~1 J.'brch 
2010 2009 

5 6% 6 5% 
3 6% 31% 
4 6% 4 1% 

•• 89 

90 90 
-------

Each assumption 1s selected by the Group in consultation with the 
Company actuary and takes account of industry practice arnongst 
comparator listed comparnes The sens1t1v1ty of each oft he key 
assumptions ts shown m the table below 

nd c JtlVL effect ('n 
•cnernt. lb 1t1u• 

As url"pt on rb'.mPo lrl a>Surnpt1011 (bdore dt..ferred tJx) 
----- ---- ----------
Discount rate Increase/decrease Decrease/increase 

by 01% by £23rn 
Inflation Increase/decrease Increase/decrease 

by 01% by £22rn 
Salary increase Increase/decrease Increase/decrease 

by o 1% by £6m 
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year Increase by £22rn 
----- - ---- --------

The tnarket val1Je of the assets at 31 March 2010was £915 9m 
(31 March 2009 £647 4rn) and the present value of scherne 
liabll1t1es was £1,063 2rn (31March2009 £752 6rn) 

Defirutlons ot undefly1ng measures. ot performance a1e m the gl~aryon p<ige 98 
Underlying fina11c11I measwes are presented, 1s the Board believes these provide 
a better 1epresentat1on of the Groups long terrn pl'r for ma nee t1end 

tThe gearing ratio 1s net debt to Jdjusted EBITDA and the definition 1s 111 the 
glos~1ry on p;ige 98 
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Capital nsk 
The Group ftJnds its operations throtJgh a mixture of equity funding 
and debt financing including bank and capital market burrowings 
At 31 March 2010 theGrotJp's capital was £485 81n (2009 £619 4rn), 
which comprises total equity of £473 7m (2009 £602 7m) plus 
amounts acoJmulated rn equity relating to cash flow hedges of 
f 12 lm (2009 £16 7m) Net debt as defined by the Group was 
£457 4rn (2009 £537 9rn} 

The capital structure oft he Group reflects the Judgement of the 
Directors al an appropriate balance of fund mg reqwred fhe Group's 
target 1s to reduce its gearing ratio to 2x EBITDAt The Directors have 
recommended a SlJSpens1on ofthe d1v1dend until 2011 

Treasury policy 
Tht> Group treasury departrnent works within a framework of 
policies and procedures approved by the Audit Cornm1ttee As part 
of these pol1c1es and procedures, there 1s strict control on the use of 
financial instruments Speculative tr ad mg m financial mstruments 
1s not perrrntted The polietes are established to rnanage and control 
risk m the treasury environment and to align the treasury goals 
objectives and philosophy to those of the Group 

Funding and debt portfolio management 
The Group seeks to obtarn certarnty of access to fund mg 1n the 
arnounts and mat1Jr1t1es reqtJ1red to support the Groups med11Jrn­
to long-terrn forecast financmg requirements Group borrowings 
are arranged by the Group treaswy function 

Interest risk management 
The Group ~eeks to reduce the volatility m its interest charge caused 
by rate fluctuations 

A significant portmn of the Group's borrowings are fixed 1n the short 
to medium term through a combmatron of rnterest rate swaps and 
fixed rate debt 

Foreign exchange risk management 
The prrnc1pal exchange rate affectrng the Group was the sterling 
to US dollar exchange rate 

2010 1009 

£/US$ - average 1 59 1 68 
£/US$-closingrate 152 144 
£/USS - Opf'rnng rate 1 44 1 99 
--------- ----------

The Group's rncome and expenditure 1s largely settled rn the functional 
currency of the relevant Group entity, mainly ster1rng or US dollar The 
Group has a pobcy 1n place to hedge all material transaction expoStJreat 
the prnntof commitment to the underlying transaction Uncomrn1lted 
future transactions are not routinely hedged The Group cont1nuPs 
its practice of not hedging income statement translation exposure 

To rn1rnrrnse the impact of currency depree1at1on of the net asseb on 
its overseas subs1d1anes, the Group seeks to borrow 1n the currencies 
of those subs1d1ar1es, but only to the extent that its gearing covPnant 
w1thm its loan documentation, as well a~ its fac1hty headroorn are 
likely to rernam comfortably w1thrn limits 

Tax nsk rnanagement 
The central principle ofOmet10's lax strategy 1s to manage effective 
and cash tax rates whilst fully corn plying with relevant leg1slat1on 
Tax 1s managed rn ahgnnlf'nt with the corporate strategy and with 
regard to Qrnet1Q's core value of mtegr1ty mall business dealings 
These prrnc1ples are applied 1n a responsrble and transparent rnanner 
in pur~u1ng the Grrnip's I.ix stratPgy and in all dec1l1ngs with tax 
author1t1es around the world 
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Creel rt risk 
Credit risk arises when a counterparty fails to perform its obflgat1ons 
The Group is Pxposed to credit r1skon financial instruments such 
as liquid assets, derivative assets and trade receivables Credit risk 
1s managed by rnvestrng liquid assets and acqu1r1ng der1vat1ves 
frorn high credit quality financial institutions Trade receivables are 
subject to credit lirrnts, control and approval procedures across the 
Group fhe nature oft he Group's operations leads to concentrations 
of credit risk on its trade receivables fhe majority of the Group's 
credit risk 1s with the UK and US Governrnents and 1s therefore 
considered rn1n1rnal 

Insurance 
The Group continually assesses the balance of ri~k arising from 
the operations undertaken against the insurance cover available 
for such act1v1t1es and associated prem1urns payable for such cover 
A consistent approach to risk retention and scope of cover IS applied 
across the Group The Group has a policy of self 1ns11rance throtigh 
its captive insurance company on the first layer of specific risks with 
msurance cover above these levels placed m the external market 
with third party m~urers 

Employees 
Year end employee ntJmbers have decreased by 7% to 13,078 at 
31 March 2010 Thedectme of 812 m EMEA (1ncludrng Ventures & 
corporate) reflects normal in year atlrit1on, deparllHes under thf' 
reorgarnsat1on programme and thed1vestrnent oft he Underwater 
Systems and Calibration business In ONA total headcount declined 
from 6,348 to 6,178 

Employees by sector 
(%) 

Accounting standards 
As a UK listed company, the Group 1s reqwred to adopt EU endorsed 
IFRSs and corn ply with the Companies Act 2006 The effect of 
changes to financial reporting standards m the year and critical 
accounting PSltmales and jlJdgernents have been disclosed 1n 
Note 1 to the Financial Statements 

Critical accounting estimates and judgements 
1n applying accounting policies 
A de~cr1pt1on and cons1derat ion oft he cr1t1cal accounting est11nates 
and judgements made 1n preparing these financial statements 1s set 
out rn Note 1 to the Group financial staternents 

David Mellors Chief Fmanc1al Officer 

2 June 2010 
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Directors' Report- Business Review 

Key performance indicators 

Financial KPls 

KPI Description Common! 
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The 1mdertymg earnings per share• (EPS) 
expressed 1n pence per share 

The underlying profit before interest and 
tax• over capital employed, defined as total 
assets less current liab11it1es 

The Group's organic revenue growth 1s 
calculated by taking the increase in 2010 
revenue over 2009 proforma revenue, at 
constant exchange rates The proforma 
revenue assumes that any acqu1s1tions were 
owned and any d1scont1nued operations 
or disposals excluded for the comparable 
period 1n the prior year 

The underlying• earnings before interest 
and tax 

Underlying operating profit" for FY09 and 
FY08 has been restated to show the finance 
elements of the IAS 19 pension cost 1n the 
finance income and expense lines There 
1s no impact on reported profit before tax 
from this re~tatement 

The Group's calculation of underlyrng 
operatrng profit margin 1s consistent with 
prior years Underlying' operating profit 
margin is calculated by taking the earnings 
before tax and interest as a percentage 
of revenue 

EPS provides shareholders with a measure 
oft he earnings generated by the business 
after deducting tax and interest EPS 
performance also determines the level 
of payout for the Group's long-term 
incentive plans 

Underlying ROCE provides shareholders 
with a measure of the financial returns 
being generated by the capital used m 
the business 

Organic revenue growth demonstrates 
the Group's capability to expand its core 
operations within its chosen markets before 
the effect of acqu1s1t1ons and currency 
translation impacts 

Underly1ngoperat1ng profit' 1s used by the 
Group for internal performance analysis as 
a measure of operating profitab1l1ty that 1s 
tracked overtime 

Underlying operating profit margin can be 
used to show the underlying profitab1hty 
of the revenues delivered by the Group 
It can also be used to compare the Group's 
performance with that of our peers, 
providing thedefimt1on of underlying 
operating profit 1s consistent 
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Financial KPls (continued) 

KPI D.scription Comm•nt 

Non-financial KPls 

The ratio of our net cash flow from operations 
(excluding reorgan1sat1ons), less outflows 
on the purchase of 1ntang1ble assets, and 
property plant and equipment to underlying 
operating profit, excluding the share of 
post-tax results of eqwty accounted Joint 
ventures and associates 

The Group's gear mg rat1ot 1s calculated 
by taking the net debt over EBITDA as 
calculated m accordance with the terms 
of the Groups credit fac1l1t1es, and 1s 
comfortably w1th1n our bank mg covenant 
hm1t of3 5x 

Provides a measure of the Groups ability 
to generate cash from normal operations 
and gives an 1nd1cat1on of its ab1l1ty to pay 
d1v1dends, service its debt and to make 
d1scret1onary investments 

Net debt to EBITDA provides a measure of 
the strength of the Group's balance sheet 

KPI D•scription Comm•nt 

The lost time injury rate 1s calculated usmg 
the total number of work related lost time 
mc1dents xl 000 d1v1ded by the average 
number of employees 1n that year The 2010 
figures are based on Group data The 2008 
and 2009 figures are based on Group data 
(excluding Australia) 

A measure of employee engagement 
on a scale of0-1000 based on the Best 
Companies Employee Survey Through this 
channel. Q1net1Q employees share therr 
views of workmg at Qmet10 under the 
headings of management, leadershrp, 
my company, personal growth my team, 
g1vmg back to the community, fair deal 
and well-being 

Defirnt1011s of w1de1 ly111g me1~ures of per foi ma nee ue 111 the gl0>s1ry on page 98 
Underlying finanaal measmes are presented as the Board beheves these provide 
i better representation of the Groups 1ong tefm perfo1nnnce trend 

tf he gea1111g r at10 rs net debt to adjtJSled EBITDA and the defirnt1on 1s 111 the 

glossary on p1ge 98 

Health and Safety performance is monitored 
to drive continual improvement 1n m1mm1s1ng 
the risk to employees 

The survey forms part of The Sunday 
Times Best Companies to Work for, an 
annual survey run m The Sunday Times 
newspaper that ranks UK employers based 
on their employees' feedback and allows 
comparison between 01net1Q and other 
UK companies 
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Directors' Report - Business Review 

Principal risks and uncertainties 

Risk Management 
The understanding, and effective rnanagernent of the risks that 
face Omet1Q 1s fundamental to its success and 1s an integral 
part of managing the business The 1dent1ficat1on, assessment 
rrnt1gat1on and reporting of risks are processes earned otJt at a 
Group, business and project level and are included as part oft he 
business performance review process Risks are assessed accord mg 
to the likelihood of the event's occurrence and its trnpact both from 
a financtal and non financial standpoint The Group Risk Register 
includes an analysis of the potential exposures and severity of 

It 1s reviewed by the Executive Team on a monthly basis which considers 
the authority resources and coordination of those involved m the 
1dent1ficat1on, assessment and management of significant risks 
faced by the organisation 
the response to the significant risks which have been 1dent1fied 
by rnanagement and others, 
thP rnomtormg of reports from Group management and 
the rnamtenance of a control environment directed towards the 
proper management of risk 

each risk (as a function of the likelihood and impact of the risk) The risk register 1s reviewed quarterly by the Board and, in add1t1on 
the risk owners present an update of current status and m1t1gatmg 
action~ by rotation throughout the year 

the assumptions underlying each r1!.k and the m1t1gat1ng actions 
required to managP the risk 

Risk Pot~nti•I imp•ct Mitigation 

A change tn demand from 
reduced m1l1tary operations 
1n Iraq and Afghanistan 

A change 1n either US or 
UK Government spending 
on defence and security 

18 wwwQmet1Qcorn 
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A significant shift 1n pohcy by either the 
Adm1mstrat1on 1n the US or the new 
Government in the UK, which results in a 
significant reduction m the number of forces 
personnel present m Iraq and Afghanistan, 
may have a mateually adverse impact on 
the Group's finanoal performance 

The Strategic Defence and Security Review 1n 
the UK and the financial burden on both UK 
and US Governrnent budgets from the recent 
economic downturn may lead to reduced 
spending 1n the markets 1n which the Group 
operates Any reduction in Government 
defence and security spending in either the 
UK or the US could have an arlverse impact 
on the Group's financial perforrnance 

Qmet1Q has capitalised on increased 
UK and US Governrnent spending on 
technology 1n support of operations 1n 
Iraq and Afghanistan Notably, Qmet1Q has 
experienced strong demand for Unmanned 
Ground Vehicles and surv1vab1l1ty products 
across the duration of both campaigns 
However, the focus on operational support 
1n defence, on both sides of the Atlantic, 
has given r1seto a decline in defence 
expenditure mother areas, such as services 
to improve procurement efficiency and 
mnovat1ve research The Group mitigates 
this by mamta1mng a market focus and 
compet1t1ve pos1t1omng 1n adjacent 
markets including defence services (which 
are not directly conf11ct·related), aerospace, 
secunty and intelligence, prov1dmg a degree 
of port folio d1vers1ficat1on 

The Group 1s focused on a range of markets in 

defence, security and intelligence, providing 
a degree of portfolio dJVers11icat1on The 
Group will continue to review trends 
1n defence, aerospace and security 
expenditure in order to align the business 
with those trends 
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Risk Pot~ntial impact Mitig•tion 

Defence Training Review (DTR} 
Package 1 may not reach financial close 

Changing 1n the t1m1ng of contracts 

Funding of the defined benefit 
pension scheme 

Policies or attitudes may change 
towards Orgamsat1onal Conflicts 
of Interest (OCI) 

Prf12_Review indd 19 

In 2007 Metr1x. the GrotJp's Joint venture 
with Land Secur1t1es Trillium was confirmed 

as the preferred bidder for Package 1 of the 
proposed 30 year DTR contract to outsource 
tra1mng for UK armed forces The Group is 
responsible for the design and prov1s1on of 
training to Metr1x In January 2009, Sodexo 
replaced Land Secur1t1es Trillium as theJOlnt 
venture partner Metr1x and the partners 
continue to work with the MOD to finahse 
the scope oft he programme as the next 
stage in moving to a financial close There 1s 

a risk that the DTR programme may suffer 
material change to the final scope delay, 
1nab1hty to be financed or even canceltat1on 
This would have a significant impact on the 
expected future growth oft he Group In 
add1t1on, 1ffinanc1al close were not reached 
the bid costs incurred since preferred 
bidder status was achieved would have to 
be written off and expensed through the 
mcon1e statement These costs capitalised to 
date amount to £30 Bm as at 31 March 2010 

The amounts payable under some 
Government contracts can be significant 
and the timing of receiving orders could 
have a material impact on the Group's 
performance ma given report mg period 

The Group operates a defined benefit 
pension scheme m the UK Presently 
there 1s a defiot between the projected 
l1ab1l1ty oft he scheme and the value of 
the assets held by the scheme The size of 
the deficit may be materially affected by 
a nurnber of factors, including 1nflatton, 
investment returns changes m interest 
rates and improvements 1n life expectancy 
An increase 1n the deficit may reqwre the 
Gr0tJp to increase the cash contributions 
to the scheme which would reduce the 
Groups available cash for other purposes 

The Group provides services to defence 
customers that meet their needs as part 
of the defence supply chain and also as 
technical advisor throllgh its consultancy 
services The future growth of the bus mess 
could be compromised should theoJrrent 
attitudes to policies adopted by our key 
customers especially in the UK, change 

Qmet1Q ma mt ams dose contact with 
Metr1x, Sodexo and the MOD 1n relation 

to the DTR programme, mdudrng the 
potential timing of reaching a financial 
close In add1t1on, the MOD has signed some 
Pre-Contract Award Letters (PCAL) which 
effectively underwnte a small portion of 
the external costs incurred by the Joint 
venture partners to date A funded early 
training transformation agreement which 
will study the proposed technical design 
and delivery of the training programmes, 
has been let 

The contract and orders pipeline 1s 
regularly reviewed by senior operational 
rnanagement 

The performance oft he pension scheme 1s 
reviewed 1egularly by Group management 
1n conJUnctton with the scherne's 
independent trustees External actuarial 
and investment advice 1s also taken on a 
regular basis to ensure that the scheme 
1s managed m the best interests of both 
the Group and the scheme's members The 
most recent triennial funding valuation of 
the scheme as at 30 June 2008 resulted in a 
deficit of£111 3rn The Group and trustees 
have agreed a ten year recovery pertod to 
make upth1s deficit 

The Group takes proactive steps to manage 
any potential OCI and to maintain its ab1hty 
to provide independent advice through 
its consulting and systems engineering 
act1v1t1es In the UK, a formal compliance 
regime operates with the MOD to monitor 
and assess potenttal OCI as part of the sales 
acceptance process 
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Directors' Report- Business Review 

Principal risks and uncertainties (continued) 

Risk Potenti•I impact Mitigation 

Tax llab1ht1es may change as a 
result of changes 1n tax leg1slat1on 

A material element of the Group's 
revenue and operating profit 1s 
derived from one contract 

Failure to comply with laws and 
regulations, particularly trading 
restrictions and export controls 

Exchange rate movement 

20 www Q1net1Q com 
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Q1net1Q 1s liable to pay lax m the countries 
m which it operates, pr1nc1pally 1n the UK 
and the US Changes m the tax leg1slat1on 
m these countries could have an adverse 
impact on the level of tax paid on the 
profits generated by the Group 

The Long Term Partnering Agreement (LTPA) 
1s a 25 year contract to provide a variety of 
evaluation and testing services to the MOD 
The original contract was signed in 2003 
The LTPA operates LJnder five year periods 
with speofic programrnes, targets and 
performance measures set for each period 
On 3 March 2008, the Group signed up to a 
second five year period of the LTPA with the 
MOD The first break point 1s in 2013 In the 
current year, the LTPA directly contributed 
11% of the Group's revenue and supported 
a further 8% through tasking services 
us mg LTPA managed fac1ht1es The loss, 
cancellation or termination ofth1s contract 
would have a material, adverse impact on 
the Group's future reported performance 

The Group operates in a highly regulated 
envcronrnent and the maJonty of its 
revenues are generated from sales w1th1n 
the UK and the US The Group 1s subject 
to numerous domestic and international 
laws, including import and export controls, 
financial and fiscal laws, health and 
safety, environmental, money laundering, 
anti-bribery etc Failure to comply with 
particular regulations could result ma 
con1b1nat1on of fines, penalties c1v1I or 
crirn1nal prosecution, and suspension or 
debarment from Government contracts 
as well as reputat1onal damage to the 
Q1net1Q brand Any one of these could 
have a material impact on the Group's 
financial performance 

The Group 1s exposed to volatility m exchange 
rates due to the 1nternat1onal nature of its 
operations this 1nclLJdes a translational 
1rnpact on the key financial statements as 
a result oftheGroup reporting its financial 
results m sterling The Group has hm1ted 
transaction exposure as its revenues and 
related costs are often borne m the same 
currency principally US dollars or sterhng 
Qinet1Q North America represents 49% 
oft he Group's consolidated revenues 
These operations are funded by US dollar 
denorrnnated debt Any s1grnficant movement 
in the foreign exchange markets could have 
a rnater1al impact on the Group's reported 
financial performance ma given period 

External advice and consultation IS sought 
on potential changes m tax leg1slat1on in 

both the UK and the US This enables us 
to plan for and m1t1gate potential changes 
m leg1slat1on 

The Group continues to achieve customer 
performance and sat1sfact1on levels 
Qmet1Q achieved a weighted performance 
rating of 90% against an agreed rrnrnmum 
ratingof80% 

The Group has procedures m place to ensure 
that 1t meets all current regulations Local 
management continuously monitors local 
laws and regulations and pohc1es are m 
place for the appointment of advisors to 
support business development Professional 
advtce 1s sought when engaging in new 
territories to ensure that the Group complies 
with local and 1nternat1onal regulations 
and requirements In the US, the Group 
undertakes work that IS deerned to be of 
importance to US national secLJrity, and 
arrangements are 1n place to mstJlate thesf' 
actlv1t1es from undue foreign influence as 
a result offore1gn ownership The Group 
has procedures 1n place to ensure that 
these arrangements re1na1n effective and 
to respond to any changes that nught 
occur 1n US attitudes to foreign ownership 
of such activ1t1es The terms of reference 
ofthe Compliance Committee have been 
expanded to review the effectiveness of 
the comphance nsk frameworks 

The Group actively hedges all s1grnficant 
transactional foreign exchange exposure 
as described on page 78 oft he notes to 
the financial statements and has adopted 
hedge accounting The Group's objective 
1s to reduce medium term volatility to 
cash flow margins and earnings fhe Group 
protects its balance sheets and reserves 
from adverse foreign exchange movements 
by financ1ngacqu1s1t1ons m North America 
with US dollar denominated borrowings, 
partially m1t1gatmg thP r1">k as US dollar 
earnings are used to service and repay 
US dollar denorrnnated debt 
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Risk Pot~ntial imp•ct Mitig•tion 

Ra1s1ng external funding and 
volatility In interest rates 

Fixed price contracts 

Acqu1s1t1on of businesses 

Inherent risks from trading 
1n a global marketplace 

H1ghly-compet1tive marketplace 

Reahsat1on of value from intellectual 
property may be delayed 
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The Group relies on the proper function mg 
of the credit markets which could have 
an impact on both the ava1lab1hty and 
associated costs of financing The Group IS 
exposed to interest rate risk derived mainly 
from long term indebtedness and related 
to borrowings which have been issued at 
floating interest rates 

Some of the Group's revenue 1s derived from 
contracts which have a fixed price There 
1s a risk that the costs required for delivery of 
a contract could be higher than those agreed 
m the contract due to operational overruns 
or external factors, such as inflation Any 
s1gmficant mcrease 111 costs which cannot 
be passed on to a customer rnay reduce the 
profitab1hty of a contract or even result 1n a 
contract becoming loss-making 

The Group has the ab1l1ty to acquire 
other busmesses and companies These 
acqu1s1t1ons may not perform m line 
with expectations thereby having a 
detrimental impact on the Group's 
financial performance 

Oinet1Qoperates internationally The risks 
associated with hav1 ng a large geographic 
footprint may include regulation and 
adm1mstrat1on changes, changes m 
taxation policy political instability civil 
unrest. and cultural and terms of reference 
differences leading to a lack of common 
understand mg with customers Any such 
events could disrupt some of the Groups 
operations and have a material impact on 
its future financial performance 

The aerospace, defence and secunty 
markets overall are highly compet1t1ve 
The Groups financial performance may 
be adversely affected shotlld 1t not be able 
to compete rn the markets m which 1t aims 
to operate 

The funded research and development work 
that the Group undertakes for defence and 
other customers creates intellectual property 
that the Group retains and can utilise for 
commercial applications The uncertainty 
that exists over new technologies and 
rnarkets may result in delays failure to 
realise value from intellectual property, 
or the need for a higher level of investment 
for theopportumty to be realised The 
add1t1onal investment requirements may 
have to be funded from the Group's own 
capital resources which may have an adverse 
impact on the Group's financial perforn1ance 

The Group maintains a sufficient level of 
comrn1tted funding fac1lit1es, with a phased 
maturity profile, from commerc1al banks 
and private placement investors The Group 
also uses fixed-rate debt instruments and 
interest 1ate swap derivatives to provide 
some certainty 1n the future cost of 
ma1nta1mng these fac11Jttes 

The nature of much oft he services provided 
under such fixed price arrangements 
1s often for a defined arnount of effort 
or resource rather than firm prcx:luct 
deliverables and, as such, the risk of cost 
escalation 1s substantially m1t1gated The 
Group ensures that its fixed price bids and 
projects are reviewed for early detection 
and management of issues which may 
result in cost overrun 

The usks are m1t1gated through the due 
d1l1genceand mternal approvals processes 
In add1t1on, the usual contractual 
protections are mcluded m the purchase 
agreements signed with the vendors 

While the core act1v1t1es of the Group are 
confined to the UK and the US, the Group 
continues to explore potential client 
relatronsh1ps mternat1onally 

Qmet1Q seeks to focus on areas 
within these markets m which its deep 
customer understanding, domain 
knowledge, techrncal expertise and 
plat form independence provide a strong 
propos1t1on and s1grnficant advantage m 
cornpet1t1ve bidding 

The Group invests 1n the development 
of intellectual property only where 1t 
beheves there 1s a substantial and realistic 
market opportumty for the technology 
and 1t undertakes a port folio approach, 1n 
recognition that not all investments will be 
successful The performance of intellectual 
property real1sat1on programmes 1s 
morntored to increase support for successful 
prospects and reduce expenditure where 
reahsat1on appears less likely The Group 
uses external experts and financial backers 
as partners ma variety of structures 
to enhance the performance of certain 
intellectual property realisation projects 
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Directors' Report - Business Review 

Corporate responsibility review 

This is my first opportunity to report on Corporate Responsibility 
(CR) at QinetiQ and I am clear that our aim is to be a responsible 
and sustainable company. Good corporate citizenship is a 
fundamental tenet of QinetiQ. Our approach to the marketplace, 
our people, the environment and our community drives our aims. 
We will continue to ensure this is a key focus as we adapt to our 
changing environment. The measure of our success in CR is an 
evolving and key indicator for the business. 
Leo Quinn Ch1efExecut1ve Officer 

CR performance overview 

What we said Wh•t we did Where to next 

Marketplace 
Achieve Level 3 of the Government's 
Flexible Framework for Sustainable 
Procurement by 2010 

Our people 
Continue to drive performance m health 
and safety (H&S) Maintain UK RIDDOR" 
rates that are better than the Health and 
Safety Executive (HSE) benchmark rate 

Investigate learning and Development 
effectiveness measures for future years 

Reportmg of lniw1es Diseases& Dangerous 
Occurrences Regulations 

Environment 
Mamtam our 150 14001 cert1ficat1on 
m the UK 

Achieve cert1ficat1on to the Carbon Trust 
Standard 

Extend UK waste data capture to ;ill mmor 
sites and continue to increase recychng 
(target 1s 70% by 2014) 

Contribute to b1od1vers1ty through the 
effective maintenance of our conservation 
sites 

Community 
Undeftake tour of Lab ma lony tn 2009/10 

Contmue to focus and deliver our STEM 
(Science, Technology, Engmeermg and 
Maths) education outreach programmes, 
where we are working to 1nsp1re the next 
gener at1on of scientists and eng1 nee rs 
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There are five categories in the Flexible 
Framework level 1 to level 5 We attained 
Level 3 for two categories and level 2 for 
three categories 

A RIDDOR rate of 3 69 per 1 000 employees 
corn pared with the HSE benchmarkof5 03 

Qual1tat1ve and quant1tat1ve meastires 
have been 1dent1fied We have found that 
leatnmg and development mtervent1on has 
a measurable impact on graduate retention 
and on time taken to achieve chartered 
status 

Successfully retamed 150 14001 for UK sites 

Carbon Trust Standard achieved 

Data capture extended to almost all 
minor sites m the UK Achieved 66% waste 
recycling on major UK sites 

Management plans and conservation leads 
are m place for designated conservation 
areas 1n the UK We received a Sanctuary 
Award for conservation work m the 
Hebrides 

Lab ma Lorry taken ta Portsrnouth We 
have now interacted with 11,000+ students 

Development of extended training far 
STEM Ambassadors 

Attained three awards from STEMNET 

Reach Level 31n all categories oft he 
flexible framework by November 2010 
and continue to work proact1vely with 
customers and suppliers on sustainable 
procurement issues 

Reduce accidents, 1nc1dents and the number 
of employee days away from work In future 
we will be reporting lost Time Injury Rates 

Use UKemplcyee survey to understand and 
improve emp1C¥ee engage1nent 

Continue to mamtam ISO 14001 for UK sites 

2% COi em1ss1ons reduction target m the UK 

Achieve 7CJ% recyclmg fate across the UK 
by 2012 

Delivery of UK conservation management 
plans 

Fann paftnershtps with key schools to 
deliver our STEM education outreach 
programme effectively 
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Corporate responsibility management 
The CR Comrrnttee met three times during the year to discuss 
strategy and progress This new group, which comprises the 
Executive learn and the Group CR Manager has enabled greater 
senior managernent v1s1b1hty and support for CR programmes 
A report 1s provided n1onthly to the Executive Team and the CEO 
reports to the Board on CR issues as required Our approach 1s to 
embed CR mto how we do btisrness and the CR Manager worked 
with a wide network of domain experts across the UK and the US 
In Australia, a new CR Team has been formed and has developed a 
plan to roll otil local 1nit1atives 1n line with the Group CR framework 

Delivery oft he Business Risk Management process 1s a key 
mPcham~m to improve awareness understanding and management 
of 11sk CR and ethical risks have previously been held separately but 
following a programme of work this year with the UK business are 
now integrated to enswe OLH approach to risk 1s holistic We have 
been refreshing our strategic objectives arotmd Health Safety and 
Environment (HS&E) and Business Ethics There 1s now a clearer focus 
on leadership, commumcat1ons, competencies and risk management 

Policy and process 
We have a balance between Group and regional policies to 
encompass regional differences 1n best practice and law Relevant 
policies include H'.:>&F, ~ustainable procurement, busines~ ethics, 
eqtJality and d1vers1ty Our Group B1Js1ness Ethics Polu;:y, which IS 

available m the Investor Relations and CR sections of our website 
(wwwQ1net1Q com) provides a framework of how we operate 
hut her 1nforrnat1on on governance can be found on page 28 

Marketplace 
M1ss1on statement to be a responsible and sustainable business 

Sustainable procurement 
We recognise th::it how and what we buy needs to be an integral 
part of our arnb1t1on to improve sustainability 1n Qinet1Q Our UK 
Sustarnable Procurernent Forum has been active m raising employee 
<iwareness through trarmng, employee campaigns and leadership 
team briefing'> An 1ntroduct1on to Sustainable Procurement 1s part 
oft he corporate induction for UK ernployPes A key part of the 
process 1s working with our suppliers and this 1s an area on which we 
must continue to focus We are a signatory to the MO D's Sustainable 
Procuremt>nt Charter and are an active mernbf'r oftht> MOD lndu~try 
Su~tainable Procurement Working Group 

Business ethics 
We arecornrn1tted to thf> hrghest standards of ethical conduct 
We know th ts 1s cr1t1cal for our success because 1t bwlds trust and 
transparency with our people and with otJr customers Ma1nta1mng 
thesf' high ~taridards of ethical behaviour can result 1n d1tficult 
chrnces lntegnty and ethics 1nay reqwre us to forgo business 
opportunities but rn the long run we will be better served by 
doing what 1s right Over 95% of UK employees and 100%ofQNA 
employees have undertaken bus1ne!>S ethics training The Australian 
btJsiness now has its Code of Conduct m place 

Policies and procedures are in place to prevent corruption within our 
operations and act1v1t1es We have been working with orgamsat1ons 
such as TRACE (Transparent Agents and Contracting Ent1t1es) an 
independent and internationally recognised orgamsat1on, 1n two 
areas Firstly, to cond1JCt a due diligence review on thP ar1t1 bribery 
issue associated with engaging third party representatives overseas 
secondly to provide bespoke training for our sates and commercial 
employees on international law and regulations covering anti 
cor1upt1on and bribery 
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We have a Wh1stleblower hne available for all employees worldwide 
and we have developed a new gifts and hospitality register in the UK 
There 1s a rtef'd for cont1ruial improvement and we are dPveloping our 
strategic objectives in business ethics, which will focus on leadership 
commumcat1ons, competencies, policy and risk management 

Environmental solutions 
Mom to ring and collect.on of environmental data 1s 1ncreas1ngly 
cr1JC1al 1n addressing the challenges of climate change and 
environmental rnanagernent lhe SWIMA prOJeCt 1s managed by 
Qmet1Q, working with an international group of companies, the UK 
Envrronment Agency and univers1t1es The team 1s using field trials 
1n the River farnar catchment in South West England to demonstrate 
how the explo1tat1on of open !>tJndards in 'sensor web~' (networks 
of disparate sensors connected via the san1e web mterface) can make 
environmental rnomtoring more efficient and intelligent while also 
reducing associated costs Having this type of data available at the 
click of a mouse has considerable nnpact on the accuracy and timely 
delivery of alerts of pollution and flooding 

Our people 
M1ss1on statement to create an environment which attracts 
great people and enables them to deliver high levels of 
performance 

Health and safety 
Employee safety 1s a key part of our overall bu~iness ethic and duty 
of care to fellow employees Semor management 1s responsible 
for delivering and embedding the highest standards and we 
have been refreshing our programme of leadership, including 
the introduction of Safety Leadership Charters A cornprt..hens1ve 
audit of our UK safety management system was completed by the 
Explosives Inspectorate of the HSE Whilst it 1dent1fied a number of 
opporlumt1es for improvement 1t concluded that we have 'a clear 
and strong cornm1tment to the safe conduct of the business' and 
'a strong culture of safe working' 

Our businesses 1n the UK the US and Australia collect and report 
accident d::ita differently, because of 1n country requ1rt>rnents Going 
forward, we are looking at greater alignment of reporting metrics 

Health and safety data 
----- - ---------

200'1 lOOl l008 20(J<J 2010 ------ - -------~--~-

UK RIDDOR rate(ll 3 85 347 2 28 2 82 3 69 
H'iE BenchrnarkPI 5 90 5 63 5 36 qg 5 03 

------
LJKl'> n/a n/a 761 4 66 5 32 
----- ----
QNNll n/a 214 1 57 1 09(4 ) 2 12 
---- -----
Austral1a1>1 n/a n/a n/a n/a 3 88 

rn The UK measures the number of RIDDOR accidents as the number of events 
per 1,000 people dunng the year 

lll HSE RIDDOR Oenchmaik tor all 1nd11str1PS 
l•J Data are work related lost time accident per 1 OOOemployef's. 
<<1 Shghtly altered from 2009 (O 78) due to legacy entitles. 
-------- --- - -----

UK ernployees have access to the Employee Wellbeing Programme 
service which provides information and support on financral, legal 
and famrly matters, counsellmg, and an on line service UK employees 
also have a benefits package through 'Qinet1Q Currency', which 
provides discounts on a range of 1terns !>UCh a~ bicycles, childcare 
and healthcare ONA provides an excellent package of healthcare 
benefits for en1ployees 
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Directors' Report - Business Revrew 

Corporate responsibility review (continued) 

Employee engagement 
Regular dialogue with ernployees rs part of good leadership, and 
listening to our people has never been rnore important whilst 
we have been undergoing s1gn1f1cant change A range of tools is 
deployed regularly to keep 1n touch with our employees including 
CEO notices tearn briefings and leaders host mg 'town hall sessions 
across all our sites We also rnake good use of 1ntranel, news let le rs, 
video and pnnt media The newly formed Employee Forum and 
the Cornrnurncat1ons Network create an open dialogue to give 
employees across the UK business the opportunity to have their 
say and tog1ve input into important issues that we face Employee 
engagernent has been a key part of ON A's progran1rne of bringing 
many separate companies together mtoone business 

Employee surveys are also an opportunity for our people to have 
their say This year we introduced the widely used 'Best Companies to 
Work for questionnaire 1n the UK, which will enable tis to benchmark 
ourselves against other com pa mes across a wide range of issues 
We had a high response of73% and the survey gave us some clear 
feedback on arf'as on which we need to focus 

We have mtroduced an exciting new programme, My Contribution', 
which enables everyone to play a part m rmprovmg our business It 
gives ernployPes a way to generate and vrnce ideas and convert thern 
quickly mto projects that will benefit the Company's bottom line It is 
a sm1ple, common sense concept enabling continuous 1rnprovernent 
The programrne 1s up and running m the UK and there are plans m 
place to roll it out across Qmet1Q globally 

Learning and development 
We support the developrnent and employability of our people 
Across Q1net1Q we have 1n place a range of high quality prograrnmes 
from apprentice training and graduate entry to leader~h1p For 
example the UK Graduate Development Programrne provides new 
entrant graduates with business awareness through the Henley 
Graduate Programme and professional development through the 
Accredited Initial Professional Development Scheme lnvestrnent in 

graduate development contrnues to play a maJor factor m graduate 
retention CR 1s an integral part of the UK Corporate Induction and 
1s supplementPd by a CR e-learning rnodule In the UK our Flight 
Eng1neer1ng Services Tra1nrng Centre 1s currently trarrnngjust under 
100 engineer mg apprentices frorn across our Managed Services 
Group and dstl The tra1nmg pathways cover aircraft mechanical 
and avionics, workshop machining and ground instrumentation/ 
electrical The aircraft training pathways conform to the MOD 
Maintenance Approved Organisation SchPrne tra1n1ng requ1rPrnents 
for Mechanical (Bl) and Avionics (B2) trades 

In Australia, a PPople Development Prograrnme 1s establishing career 
development for our 1nost talented employees and 1~ supporting 
succession planning ONA was forrned over a short period from 
a mnnber of compame~ with different cultures and practices 
The focus has been on efficiently 1mplernent1ng con~1~tency 1n 
job roles and performance managenient ONA has been dnvmg 
robust succes~1on planning and work mg with the Darden Business 
School at the Umvers1ty ofV1rg1ma to devPlop futtne leaders for 
ONA technical employees, the focus IS on a rapid and compet1t1ve 
knowledge update 

We are one of only 5% of the 28,000 Investors in People organisations 
that have chosen to stretch above the standard Since a key area 
1dent1fied in rf>cent fee-dback was pPrforrnance manageme-nt m the 
UK, we have carried out a full review and update of our perfor1nance 
management processes and mtroduced the Personal Success Plan 

24 www01net1Qcorn 
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Community 
M1ss1on statement to make a pos1t1ve contr1but1on 
to the community 

Science for society 
Following a request from the Cornb1ned Serv1ees Disabled Ski Team 
our experts designed and manufactured a 1nore cornpet1t1ve ski 
racing seat for Sergeant M1ek Brennan, a double amputee who has 
discovered a real talent for downhill sk11ng as part oft he Battle Back 
1mt1at1ve to rehabilitate tnjtHed servicemen and women Mick's 
perforrnance 1rnproved considerably with the seat and he achieved 
a Bronze medal in the Giant Slalom at the Canadian Nationals 1n 
Vancouver 

In 2009, two UK ernployees v1s1ted Saravan Province m southern Laos 
and worked with Norwegian People's Ard as part of our unexploded 
ordnance (UXO) Science for Society Prograrnrne which has been 
ninmng for five years The UXO 1s a legacy of the Vietnam war The 
team provided training m UXO p1npomting, CAD surveying and 
mapping, as well as s1mp!e practical solutions for water purification 
bomb disposal and simple protectmn schen1es 

Education outreach 
Q1net10 collected three prest1g1ous STEM Education Outreach 
Awards, from STEMNET including Support & Development Most 
Dedtealed Ambassador and Most Dedicated Organisation In 2009 
we launched a strategic partnership with ShoeburynPss High 
School to provide some business focus, to complement the STEM 
curriculum We are work mg closely with the school on the delivery 
of the new, two year STEM leadership quallficat1on and support mg 
16 year old Fast Track students on the Applied Science course Going 
forward, we aim to focus on our education outreach programmes, 
by developing partnerships with other key schools near our sites 
ONA also recognises the importance of encouraging young people 
towards maths and science careers and sponsors science and 
technology education 1n schools 

In the UK we supported many students at various stages m their 
un1vers1ty careers 16 pre university students were hosted on 
the Year 1n Industry scheme, while other sltidents worked 1n the 
company for up to a year during their undergraduate course At any 
tirne, over 50 doctoral level students are sponsored m conjunction 
with the Engineering and Physical <;c1ences Research Council, on 
projects that are relevant to our business, with placements 
on various sites 

Charity and community programmes 
Employees across the Group undertook a range of volunteering 
act1v1t 1Ps 1n th(. cornrnurnty ONA supported a numbPr of ernployee­
dr1ven 1rnt1at1ves and contributed time resources and funding to 
nurnerous cornrnumty grassroots efforts, such as Habit for Hurnarnty 
and thP Special O!yrnp1c~ In addition, ONA encouraged active 
part1c1patwn and support for rn1l1tary aligned prograrnmes, stJCh 
as the Wounded WarrJOr Project for injured servicemen and women 
In the UK, employees have been involved 1n a range of community 
act1v1t1es from conservation projects to beJch safety talks for 
children Total charitable g1v1ng from the business across the 
Group was £114, 100 (see page 42) In addition, our UK employees 
raised £26,112 for our pr1or1ty charities through a range of evPnts, 
attracting corporate matched funding for pnor1ty charities and 
made contr1but1ons lhrmigh our payroll g1v1ng scherne 
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Environment 
M1ss1on statement to be an excellent environmental steward 

Carbon management 
A highlight this year was meeting our target of attaining the Carbon 
TnJst Standard which dernonstrates that we have measured, 
managed and reduced our carbon em1ss1ons For the third year, we 
provided tnforrnat1on to the Carbon Disclosure Project and we also 
took part m the Busmess 1n theCommumty May Day Network We 
recognise the 1rnportance of being prepared for the UK Governments 
Carbon Reduction Cornrn1tment Energy Efficiency Scheme and are 
well pos1t1oned having put m place the Carbon Management Group 
(CMG) which brings together expertise from Estates, Env1ronrnental 

Management CR Procurement and the 
business The CMG oversees our five year 
carbon management plan promotes energy 
efficiency and awareness, and sets and 
monitors targets Following ow carbon foot­
printing programme, this IS the first year we 
are reporting COi em1ss1ons from transport 

as well as fron1 energy used 

UK carbon management data 

2006 2007 2008 200<l 2010 
--------
UK gas LJSe (GWH) 84 6 696 686 66 8 647 

UK rn I use (GWH) 25 9 22 5 214 21 7 20 6 

UK electr1c1ty 136 9 136 9 113 6 102 7 99' 
use{GWH) 

UK total energy 247 3 2291 2036 191 2 184 7 
use(GWH) 

---------------- --
UK ktonnes C02 frorn 96 7 931 800 73 8 71' 
energy use!O 
---- -- - - --
UK ktonnes C02 from n/a n/• n/• 23 8 17 9 
transport m --- ----- -------
!11 In the table C02 em1ss1ons are c1lculated using the defra October 2009 

Greenhouse Gas corwers1on factors (G1s O 18:1~8 Oil o 27927 Electricity 
O 54055) These factors change regularly so m order to show actual 
rt>duct1ons we have used the same con ... ersmn factor for all years. This will 
11suit1n slightly different numbers from those reported last year which 
were based on a previous corwers1on f1ctor (2009 71 8 2008 77 8) 

al The data mcludes errnss1ons from our own vehtcles (aircraft helicopters 
1nd cars) and from employee busrness mileage (road and air) 2009 data 
now mcluded 
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Environmental management and conservation 
We continue tu mamtarn ISO 14001 2004 cert1ficat1on rn the UK 
This 1s evidence of effective controls as part of our Envnonmental 
Management Sys terns, which cover a broad range of act1v1t1es frorn 
knowledge and technology-based research and serv1cPs, to weapons 
and systems testing Our Australian business has also established a 
small group responsible for developing environmental 1mt1at1ves 

We take a responsible and proactive approach to the stewardship of 

the rnany Sites of Special Sc1ent1fic Interest (SSS!) that we manage Ill 
the UK with appropriate con~ervat1on management plans 1n place 
for all ofthern We won a prest1g1ous Sanctuary Award for our work 
on a SSSI on the MOD Hebrides range 

Waste 
As part of our waste managPrnent prograrnrnes, WP have extended 
data co1Ject1on to the majority of sites we own or manage for 
the MOD and incorporated add1t1onal waste streams the largest 
of which are constr1JC!1on and grounds waste In ONA, recycling 

programmes operate across rnuchofthe business 

UK waste management data!ll 

lOOfl 2007 2008 2009 2010 

General wa~te to 
landfill (tonnes) 

3 131 2 330 1 551 1,140 830 

Recycled waste 
(tonnes) 

680 761 932 1 094 1,6231JI 

--------------------
Percentage waste 
recycled 

18% 25% 

(ll Mi Jar sites only for comparative purposes 

38% 49% 

l>l W1stc dat1 collection now extended to include construction and 

compostmgw --'-'-''-------

-- ---- ------------
hl M11or sites only 1or comparative purposPs 
!21 Waste dat1 collection now extended to mcludeconstructwn 

and compos.tmgwaste 

66% 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Board of Directors 

D 

II 

a 

1 Mark Elliott 
Non-executrve Chairman - 61 

II 

D 

Appointed Non executive Chairman 1n March 2010, Non executive 
Director between June 2009 and February 2010 

Member of the Remuneration Comrmttee Compliance Comrrnttee 
and Norrnnat1ons Committee 

Mark wa~ previously General Manager of IBM Europe Middle East 
and Africa and sat on IBM s Worldwide Management Council Mark 
currently serves as a Non executive Director on the boards of Reed 
Elsevier Group PLC (1n respect of which he 1s also Chairman of the 
Remuneration Committee) Reed Elsevier NV and G4S pie The Board 
considers that Mark's extensive experience 1n the technology services 
sector both m the US and Europe coupled with his exposure to a 
variety of mdtJstry sector.:; on the boards of FTSE listed companies, 
1s a valtJable asset to the Group in terms of leadership and addressing 
the strategic issue~ affecting the Group 

2 Leo Quinn 
Chief Executive Officer - 53 

Appointed Chief Executive Officer in November 2009 

Member of the Compliance Committee, Nom1nat1ons Committee 
and Security Committee 

Leo was Chief Executive Officer of De La Rtle pie between 2005 and 
2009 Before that he wa:. Chief Operating Officer of Invensys pie's 
Production Management D1v1s1on Prior to that time, he spent 16 
years with Honeywell Inc 1n a variety of senior management roles 
1n the USA Europe the Middle East and Africa Leo was formerly 
a Non executive Dlrf'ctor of Tomkins pie 

26 wwwQ1net1Q corn 
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3 David Mellors 
Chief Financial Officer- 41 

Appointed Chief F1nanc1al Officer 1n August 2008 

Member of the Security Committee 

David was previously deputy Ch1efF1nanc1al Officer of Log1ca pie 
David has also held the pos1t1on of Chief F1nanc1al Officer of Log1ca's 
1nternat1onal d1v1s1on covering operations 1n North America, 
Australia, the Middle East and Asia and, prior to that, he was the 
Group Financial Controller Earlier experience included various role.:; 
with CMG Pie, Rio Tinto pie and Price Waterhouse David 1s a member 
of the Institute of Chartered Accotmtants in England and Wales 

4 Sir David Lees 
Deputy Chairman and Senior Independent 
Non-executive Director- 73 

Appointed Deputy Chairman and SID in August 200S 

Chairman of the Compliance Cornrrntteeand Nom1nat1ons Committee 
Member of the Audit Committee and Security Committee 

Sir David 1s currently Chairman of the Court of the Bank of England, 
he has also been a member of the UK PJnel on Takeovers and Mergers 
since June 2001 Sir David Joined GKN pie in 1970 and had held the 
pos1t1on of Group Finance Director, Ch1efExecut1ve and Executive 
Cha1rn1an beforP becoming Non executive Chairman in 1997 tmt1I 
his retirement m May 2004 Other notable roles include being a 
member of the National Defence Industries Council between 1995 
and 2004, Cha1rn1an ofCourtaulds pie from 1996 to 1998, a Non 
executive Director of the Bank of England between 1991 and 1999 
and Chairman of Tate & Lyle pie until 2009 From 2001 to 2006 he was 
Non executive Jomt Deputy Chairman of Brambles Industries pie and 
Brambles Industries L1m1ted Sir David 1s a Fellow of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants m England and Wales The Board considers that 
Sir David's detailed understanding of the defence sector, coupled with 
his extens1veexper1enceof corporate governance and the City and 
its 1nst1t1Jt1ons s1gn1ficantly enhances the operation of the Board 
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S Cohn Balmer 
Non· executive Director - 63 
------------
Appointed Non executive Director rn February 2003 

Chairman oft he Security Cornm1ttee Member of the Compliance 
Comn11ltee Norrnnat1ons Comrmttee and Remuneration Cornrrnttee 

Colin served as Managing Director of the Cabinet Office frorn 2003 
until his retuement in 2006 Previously, he was Finance Director 
of the MOD, with respons1btl1ty for Ornet1Q's pr1v;:itisat1on and the 
subsequent investment by Carlyle as part of the PPP Transaction 
Colin has extensive experience across the MOD and 1s CtHrently 
a member of the Foreign and Cornmonwealth Office's Audit and 
Risk Comrrnttee and 1s on the Bo;:ird of the Royal Mint. chairing 
its Audit Cornm1ttee The Board considers that Colin's extensive 
knowledge oft he development ofQ1net1Q throughotJt its p1Jbl1c­
pr1vate partnership and his m depth understanding of the working 
of Government, particularly the UK MOO, provides the Board with 
a un1q1Je ms1ght into the issues facing Government 1n delivering its 
µrocurement objectives and part ner1ng with industry suppliers 

6 Noreen Doyle 
Non-executive Director - 61 

Appointed Non executive Director m October 2005 

Cha1rrnan of the Remuneration Committee Mernber of the 
Audit Committee 

Noreen sits on the Board of Credit Swsse Group (Zurich) and 1s a 
Non executive Director of Newrnont M1mng Corporation (DenvPr) 
and Rexam pie Prior to her apprnntrnent in 2001 as First Vice President 
ofthP European Bank for Recon~truct1on and Development (EBRO) 
Noreen was head of Risk Management Previously Noreen had a 
d1stingu1~hed career at Bankers Trust Company (now Deutsche B.mk) 
in corporate finance and leveraged financing, with a concentration 
1n oil gas and mining The Board considers that Noreen's extensive 
international b1Js1ness experiencf', particularly m the areas of 
corporate finance, risk management and banking, 1s of ~1gn1ficant 
benefit to the Board 

7 David Langstaff 
Non executive Director - 55 

Appointed Non executive Director in AugtJst 2009 

Member of the Audit Comrn1ttee, Norninat1ons Comrrnttee and 
Remuneration Comn11ttee 

David was formerly President and Ch1Pf Executive Officer of 
Verid1an Corporation Prior to that, Davrd held pos1t1ons with First 
Boston lntPrnat1onal, Blyth Eastman Dillon lnte1nat1onal and the 
Inverness Group focused on corporate finance venturecaprtal and 
mergers and acqu1s1t1ons David currently serves on the Boards of 
TASC, Inc, the US Defense Business Board SRA International Inc 
and The Aspen Institute Busmess and Society Program The Board 
cons1rler~ that David's prof Pss1onal services experience and 1n depth 
understandmg oft he security rnarket is highly beneficial to the 
future development of 01net1Q's business 
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8 Admiral Edmund P Giambast1an1 Jr, US Navy (retired) 
Non-executive Director - 62 

Appointed Non executive Dnector in February 2008 

Men1ber of the Compliance Cornrrnttee 

Bet ween 2005 and 2007, Ed was the second-highest ranking military 
officer rn the United States, having served as the seventh VtceChairman 
of the Joint Chiefs of Staff A career nuclear-trained submarine 
officer, Eds d1stmgu1shed service has also included assignments 
as Special Assistant to the CIAs Deputy Director for Intelligence, 
Senior Military Assistant to the US Defense Secretary and 
Cornmander, US Joint Forces Command He also served as NATOs 
first Supreme Alhed Commander Transformation After ret1rernent 
and until October 2009, he served as the Non executive Chairman 
oft he Board of Directors for A!enia North America Inc He currently 1s 
a Non executive Director ofThe Boeing Company, SRA International 
Inc and Monster Worldwide, Inc and Sf'rves in a pro bona capacity 
on a number of US Government advisory boards and panels The 
Board considers th<it Ed's extensive knowledge of the US defence and 
secuuty dornam s1gn1ficantly enhances the operation oft he Board 
as Q1r1f>t1Q conl1rnJf'S to pursue its ~trategy of developing its US 
platforrn 1n the defence and secu11tytechnology sector 

9 Nick Luff 
Non-executive Director - 43 

Appointed Non-executive Director m June 2004 

Chairman of the Audrt Comrn1ttee, Member of the Con1pl1ance 

Committee and Security Cornm1ttee 

Nick was appointed Finance D1rectorofCentr1ca pie in March 2007, 
having previously served as CFO of the P&O Group Hetramed as a 
charterld accountant with KPMG and 1s a rnernber of the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales Nick JOmed the 
P&O Board as Finance Director in 1999 In October 2000 he became 
Chief F1nanc1al Officer of P&O Princess Cruises pie on its demf'rger 
from the P&O Group and returned as Ct11efFrnanc1al Officer of P&O 
1n May 2003 Nick has also served as a Non executive Director on 
the board of Royal P&O Nedlloyd NV, the Dutch-listed international 
container sh1ppmg company The Board considers that Nicks experrence 
of operelt1ng as Chief F1nanc1al Officer/Finance Director with P&O 
and Centrica, coupled with his extensive exposure to a variety of 
1ndustr1al sectors provides the ngo1ous financial and commercial 
scrutiny required of a F fSE-listedcompany at Board level, particularly 
1n the context of his role as Chal/fnan of the Audit Comrn1ttee 

10 Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent 
Non executive Director - 60 

Appointed Non executive Director in April 2010 

Member of the Compliance Committee, Remuneration Committee 
and Security Cornrrntlef' 

Sn James cornn1anded the <Hrcraft carrier HMS lnv1nc1ble and three 
other ships and StJbmar1nes during a 37 year career in the Royal Navy 
which culnunated in his appointment as Commander-in Chief Fleet 
\n between ope1at1ona\dul1es he se11Jed 1n sever a! appo1nt1nents 1n 

the Ministry of Defence and gained cro~~ Whitehall experience while 
on secondrnent lo HM Treasury The Board considers that Sir Jarnes' 
expertise 1n the Governrnent contracting domain, particularly with 
the UK MOD and HM Treasury, 1s highly beneficial 1n the context of 
Q1net1Q s Government sourced operations 
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Directors' Report - Governance 

Corporate governance report 

The Board is committed to promoting the highest standards of 
corporate governance and believes that strong governance is 
key to delivering value to all stakeholders, maintaining investor 
confidence and managing change. 

Thi~ ~f'cl1on of the Annual Report, together with the Report al the 
Remuneration Comrrnt tee on pages 36 to 41 describes how Qmet1Q 
has promoted strong governance throughout the Grotip by applying 
the pr1nc1ples of the UK F1nanc1al Reporting Councils Combined Code 
on Corporate Governance (the Combined Code) The Board considers 
that Ornet1Q ha<> complied with the prov1s1ons of the Combined Code 
throughout the last financial year except that the Cornbined Code 
recomrnends that a company's chairman should be independent 
on appointment and that its Chief ExeCLJt1ve Officer (CEO) should 
not become cha1rrnan of the same company Sir John Chisholm, the 
Chairman of the Group until February 2010, was not regarded as 
independent under the Combined Code as he was forrnerlyQ1net1Q's 
CEO, the Board gave the reasons for this non compliance both 1n the 
prospect us published as part of the Company s ln1t1al Public Offering 
(IPO) 1n 2006 and m subsequent AnmJal Reports 

The Board - governance, processes and systems 
Highlights 

Conducted a global search culm1nat1ng tn the appointment 
of a new Chairman 

Managed the process of appointing a new Chief Executive Officer 

Created a new Security Cornrn1ttee and conducted a review of the 
compos1t1on of the Board Committees 

Appointed Sir Robert Nelson to conduct an independent 
mve~t1gat1on into the conclusions and recommendations rnade 
m the Haddon-Cave report 

Created a revised risk register and introduced dear processes 
in relation to oversight and management ot risk 

Board objectives 

Provide support to the new Chief Executive Officer to ensure 
the Group's s1JCcess 

Assist 1n the developrnent of a new strategic d1rectron for the 
Grmip's business 

Remarn focused on s1JCcess1on planning tor the Board 

• Dehver the highest standards of health aml safety 
management across the Group 

Support the Chief Executive Officer m ensuring that the 
key recommendations of Sir Robert Nelsons review of the 
Haddon Cave report published 1n November 2009 are 
1mplernented across the Group 

Continue to promote the highest standards of corporate 
governance and rigorous oversight of Group performance 
and risk rnanagemer1t 
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Compos1t1on of the Board 
The Board currently has ten mernbers the Non executive Chairman 
seven other Non executive Directors and two Executive Directors 
namely the CEO and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), with the 
objective ofach1ev1ng a balance of Executive and Non executive 
Directors 

Mark Elliott has been the Non-executive Chairman ofQ1net1Q since 
1 March 2010 following Sir John Chisholm stepping down from this 
role Mr Ell10HJ01ned the Board as a Non executive Director on 
1 June 2009 During the year the Board also welcomed David Langstaff, 
who Joined as a Non PXPcut1ve Director on S Augu~t 2009, LM Quinn 
who JOtned as Ornet1Q s Chief Executive Officer on 16 Novernher 
2009 and Admiral Sir James Burnell Nugent. who Joined the Board 
as a Non exeoit1ve Director on 10 April 2010 Mr Quinn replaced 
Graham Love who ceased to be CEO on 31 October 2009 The Board 
would like to express its thanks to Su John Chisholm, Graharn Love 
and Dr Peter Fellner, all ofwhorn stepped down during the year 
for their ded1cat1on and valtiable contr1but1ons during their years 
of service 

The Board considers its overall size and compos1t1on to be 
appropriate, having regard 1n particular to the independence of 
character and integrity of all the Directors and the experience and 
skills which they bring to theH duties, which prevents any md1v1du<1I 
or small group from dorrnnatrng the Board's dec1s1on making 

The Board considers that the skills and experience of its md1v1dual 
rnernbers, part1culady m the areas of UK/US defence and security, 
the corn rnerc1ahsat1on of 1nnovat1ve technologies corporate 
finance mergers and acqws1t1ons and risk rnanagement, have 
been fundamental m the purswt of Omet1Q's strategte 1mt1at1ves 
(<is described in the Ch1efExec1Jt1ve Officer's Review ~ect1on of 
this Annual Report) m the past year In add1t1on, the quoted 
company experience available to members of the Board 1n a 
variety of mdtJslty sectors and 1nternat1onal markets has also 
been invaluable to the Group as 1t seeks to penetrate new 
markets and geographic terntones 
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Roles and respons1bil1ties 
The Board 1s responsible for managing the Group's operations and, 
m this capacity, determines the Groups strategic and investment 
policies The Board also morn tors the performance of the Group's 
senior management team and organises its business to have regular 
1nte1act1on with key rrierr1bers oft he Group, including those based m 
North America The Directors are responsible for the rnanagement of 
the bus mess of the Group and their powers are subject to the Articles 
of Assoc1at1on and any apphcable leg1slat1on and regulation 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
The roles of Chairman and CEO are separate with their respons1b1ht1es 
having been clearly art1eulated by the Board m wr1tmg The Chairman, 
Mark Elliott 1s responsible for the effect1veoperat1on of the Board 
and ensures that all Directors are enabled and encouraged to play 
their full part in Board act1v1t1es The CEO Leo Quinn is responsible 
to the Board for d1rect1ng and promoting the profitable operation 
and development of the Group consistent with enhancing long term 
stakeholder value, which includes the day to day management oft he 
Group formulating cornrnunicat1ng and executing Group strategy 
and thf' 1mplPmentat1on of Board policies 

Senior Independent Director 
The Semor Independent Non executive Director 1s Sir David Lees 
Sir David is also Deputy Chairman of the Board and serves as an 
add1t1onal point of contact tor shareholders should lht>y feel that 
their concerns are not being addressed through the normal channels 
Sir David 1s, furthermore available to fellow Non-exec1Jt1ve Directors, 
either md1v1dually or coltect1vely should they wish to discuss matters 
of concern in a forum that does not include the Chairman, the 
Executive Directors or the senior management of01net1Q 

Independence of Non-executive Directors 
Of the current Directors oft he Company the Board considers 
Admiral Sir James Burnell-Nugent, Nort>en Doyle, Mark Elliott 
Admiral Fdmund P G1a111ba~t1am, David Langstaff Sir David lees 
and Nick ltJffto be independent ofOmet1Q s executive management 
and free from any business or other relat1onsh1ps that could materially 
interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement Oft he 
remaining Non executive Directors the Board considers that Calm 
Balrnt>r 1~ not independent for Combined Code purpo~es on the bas1~ 
that he wa~ (1Jnt1I MOD sold its entire ordinary shareholding in the 
Company on 9 September 2008) the MOD's nominated director 

Based on the above, the Board considers that over half of its members 
were independent Non executive Directors throughout the last 
financial year 

Performance of the Board 
During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, Q1net1Q conducted 
its fotHI h evaluation of the performance oft he Board and its 
Comrrnttees since IPO Given that the Group had undertaken 
an externally facilitated evaluation rn the previous financial year 
and the nurnber of Board changes occurring rn year, the 2009/10 
evaluation exercise was an internal exercise led by Sir John Chisholm 
The Chairman used the core condus1ons arcs mg out of the prior year's 
exerc1~f' a~ a rf'ference pomt for a se11esof questions focused on be~! 
practice areas of corporate governance, which was supplemented by 
a number of meetings held 1nd1v1dually with each of the Directors at 
whKh the performance of the Board, its Committees and md1v1dual 
Board members was discussed Sir David lees In his capacity as the 
Senior Independent Non executive Director, also met with 1nd1v1du<1I 
rnembers of the Board to evaluate the performance of the Chairman 
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The evaluation process revealed that the operation at the Board 
was conducted man open and transparent manner with the Board 
possessing an appropriate range of skills which were well matched 
to Omet1Q s business and having devoted increased attention to 
strategic planning, succession and risk management 1n the year 
As a result of the evalliat1on exercise, the Board agreed to maintain 
its focus on these key ISSlJCS 1n the coming year 

As a separate exercise the Chairman held various meetings with 
the Non executive Directors in the last financial year, without the 
Executive Directors pre~ent, in order to review both the operation 
of the Board and the perforn1anceofthe Executive Directors 
In add1t1on the Executive Directors were appraised as part of 
the annual salary review process which was overseen by the 
Remuneration Committee 

Directors' 1nduct1on, on-go1ngtra1n1ng and 1nformat1on 
All newly appornted Directors part1c1pate man induction 
programme, which ts tailored to meet their specific needs in relation 
to 1nformat1on on the Group This induction prograrnme includes 
an induction pack which 1s refreshed to ensure 1t cont1ms the most 
up to-dale 1nformat1on available on the Group 

All Directors are encouraged to v1s1t Qmet1Q's principal sites and 
to meet a wide cross section of the employee base During the 
last financial year, the Board held one of its meetings at 01net10's 
facility m Mclean, V1rg1ma and one at 01netiQ's facil1t1es m Walthan1, 
Massachusetts, which allowed members of the Board to better 
appreoate the operational dynamics and technical offerings of the 
ONA busrness The Board also held one of its meetings at Q1net1Q s 
Farnborough site 

As part of the corporate planning process the Board has the 
opporturnty to question the sector heads and the Executive Directors 
1n relation to the formulation of the corporate plan at sector level 
and the impact of these plans on the Group strategy as a whole 
The Non executive Directors also have> an opportLm1ty to rneet 
with other employees w1th1n the Group (including, but not !irn1ted 
to, other rnernbers of the semor managen1ent team) at hmchtime/ 
evening events whtch are scheduled to coincide with Board rneet1ngs 

framing 1s also available to the Board on key business 1s~1Jes or 
developments in policy, re>gulat1on or legislation on an as needed 
basis 

Each of the Directors has access to thP services of the Company 
Secretary, and there IS abo an agreed procedure for the D1rPctors 
to seek independent advice at the Cornpany's expensf' 

Re-election of Directors 
Rules concerrnng the appointment and replacement ofDirPCtors 
of the Company are contained m the Articles of Assoc1al10n and 
changes to these articles 1nust be subrn1tle>d to shareholders for 
approval Accord mg to the Art ides of As~oc1at1on, all Directors 
are subject to election by shareholders at the first ACM following 
then apprnntment, and lo re election thereafter at intervals of no 
more than three years It 1s the Company s practice for each serving 
member of the Board to be put forward for election or rP f'lect1on 
at each AnnlJal General Meet mg 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Corporate governance report (continued) 

Board meetings and attendance 
fhe Board has regular schedtJled meetings Nine scheduled Board 
meetings were held 1n the last financial year Members ofthP 
Board were also invited to attend a dinner on the occasion of each 
scheduled Board meeting, to assist m the process of relat1onsh1p 
building and to ensure that key slrategic m1t1at1ves were thoroughly 
discussed The Board held two of1ts scheduled rneetings 1n the US 1n 
the last financial year to give rnernbers oft he Board an opportunity 
to meet with senior management m ONA One Board meeting was 
held at OinetiQ's Farnborough site to provide members of the Board 
with greater opportunity to understand the operational dynamics of 
the UK business at first hand 

The following table shows the nurnber of Board meetings held 
during the year and the attendance by 1nd1v1dual directors 

Attendance at Board meetings Apnl 2009 to March 2010 
Members 

Board rneet1ngs held 1n 2009/2010 

Cohn Balmer 9/9 

Admiral Sir James Burnell Nugent!ll 0/0 
~--------------

S 1 r John Ch1sholm(2l 8/8 

NorPPn Doy!e 8/9 

Mark Ell1otto1 7/7 

Dr Peter Fellner!•) 2/3 

Admiral Edrnund P G1arnbast1ani 9/9 
----------- - ----- ---------
David Langstaff151 7/7 

Sir David Lees 9/9 -------------
Graham Lovetfol 

Nick Luff 

David Mellors 

Leo Qu1nn111 

Ill Ad mu al 511 James Bu1nell Nugent was appointed lo the Board 
on lOAprrl 2010 

msn John Chisholm resigned from the Board on 28 February 2010 
1•1 Mark Elliott w1s appointed to the Board on 1 June 2009 
1•1 Dr Peter Fellner resigned from the Board on 4 August 2009 
~l David Langstaff was appomtrd to the Board on) August 2009 
"I Graham Love ceased to be a Duector on 31 October 2009 
171 teo Qumn w1sappo1nted to the Board on 16 November 2009 

Matters reserved to the Board 
The Board opPrates through a comprehens1vP sPt of processP!:> 

5/5 

9/9 

9/9 

4/4 

which define the schedule of 1natters to be considered by the Board 
and its Com nut tees during the annual business cycle the level of 
delegated author1t1es (both financial and non financial) available to 
both Executive Directors and other layers of management w1th1n the 
business and Oinet1Q's Business Ethics, Risk Management and HPalth, 
Safety and Erw1ronrnental ptoce~ses The Board devotes onP entire 
meeting each year to consider strategy and planning issues which 
have an unpact on the Group, frorn which the five year corporate plan 
1s generated The Board also has a clearly art1ctJlated set of matters 
which are specifically reserved to 1t for cons1derat1on which include 
reviewing the annual budgets, ra1s1ng indebtedness, granting security 
over Group assets, approving Group stratPgy and the corporate 
plan, approval of the annual and mterim report and accounts, 
approval of significant mvestment bid, acqws1t1on and divestment 
transactions, approval of Human Resources pohc1es (including pension 
arrangements) reviewing rnalenal llt1gat1on and rnornloring the 
overall sy~terr1of1ntPrnal control<>, 1nclud1ng risk rnanagernPnt 

30 www 01nt>t1Q corn 

Prt12.Ae111ew 1ndd 30 

Operation of the Board 
The Board receives written reports from the CEO and CrOeach 
month, togetht>r with a separate report on investor relations (which 
IS prepared m consultation with Qmel1Q's brokers) and a report 
produced by the Company Secretary on key legal and regulatory 
issues affecting the Group The Board also considers reports from the 
Chairs of the Comrmttees oft he Board at the next scheduled Board 
meeting, follow mg the date on which each Comm1ttPe rneetmg 
was held 

The CEO s monthly report addresses the key strategic 1mt1at1ves 
which have had an impact on the Group since the previous meet mg 
of the Board and foetlses, m particular, on the progress of each 
oft he '\ectors Other key area<> of focus include health, safety 
and environmental matters, employee and organisational issues, 
corporate respons1b1lity, the status of key account rnanagernent/ 
custorner relationship m1t1at1ves, the p1pelme of potential bids, 
acqu1s1t1ons, disposals and 1nvestrnents, and the post acqws1t1on 
perforrnance of recently acquired businesses The Board also receives 
updates from the CEO's key functional reports on an ·a~ nPeded' 
basis, on issues such as Hurnan Resowces Treasury Corporate 
Respons1b1lity Real Estate and Pensions, throughout the financial 
year Key issues considered by the Board m the past year included 
succession planning, which culminated 1n the appointment of a 
new Chairman and CEO in year strategy (in particular the strategic 
re><>ponse to the operational challenges faced by the ONA and EMEA 
businesses, as dt>scr1bed 1n the Business Review) and the Company's 
response to the key findings oft he Haddon-Cave report into the 
N1rnrod aircraft which crashed In Afghanistan 1n 2006 

The CF O's monthly report addresses the financial pf'rformance and 
outlook of the Group and each of the sectors, both on a rnonthly and 
year to date basis, with the key performance ind1cato1s analysed by 
the Board being those 1denllfied on pages 16 and 17 The Group Risk 
Register also forrns part of the CFO s report on a quarterly basis and 
tracks the 'Principal risks and uncertainties' 1dent1fied on pages 18 to 
21 at the Business RPv1ew The CFO also reports on a monthly basis 
as part of his inve!:>tor relations report. on the key issues raised by 
shareholders, potential investors and othe>r important stakeholders 
on Q1net1Q's performance and key strategic 1nitiallves 

Conflicts of interest 
1 he Company has established a process requ1r1ng D1rPctor!:> to 
disclose proposed outside business interests before they are entered 
mto This enables prior assessment of any conflict, or potential 
conflict of interest and any impact on t1rne comrrntn1ent An annual 
review of all external interests 1s carried out by the Board 

Directors' respons1b1ilties 
Statements explaining the Directors respons1b1ht1es for preparing 
the Group's financial statements and the auditor's respons1b1lit1es for 
report mg on those state1nents are set out on pages 44 and 45 

Other Directors' Information 
Details of Executive Directors' service contracts and the Non 
executive Directors letters of appointment are set out 10 the Report 
of the Remuneration Cornn11ttee Copies of Directors' service contracts 
and letters of appointment will be ava1lallle for 1nspect1on at the 

Co1npany's AGM 
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Other rnanagement committees 
RPspons1b1l1ty for the day to day rnanagement of the Groups 
activ1t1es, with the exception of01net1Q's North American 
operations (which are managed through the Proxy Board, as 
described m the section below headed Management and control of 
US subs1d1ar1es') 1s conducted through the Q1net1Q Executive Team 
(OET) The GET comprises the Group CEO, Group CFO, F1mct1onal 
Directors and the Managing Directors of each of the Sectors The 
QET meets on a rnonthly basis and receives weekly updates on key 
operational issues by way of pre~scheduled conference calls The 
act1v1t1es of the GET are supplemented by the Proxy Board and the 
Executive Management Team m ONA Separate committees have 
also been established to review Group strategy 1n the areas 
of Technology, Commumcat1ons and Corporate Respons1b11ity, 
each of which meets on a periodic basis 

Board comm1ttees 
The Board has established five prinopal committees the Audit 
Committee the Remuneration Co1nm1ttee the Nominations 
Committee, the Compliance Committee and the Security Committee 
Each operates w1thrn written term~ of reference approved by the 
Board, details of which are set out rn the Investor Relations section 
of 01 net1Q's website (www01net1Q com) L:ich Chairman of a Board 
Cornn11ttee reports on the key issues discussed, and dec1s1ons taken, 
at the next meeting oft he Board following the Committee meeting 
in question Details of each of these Comrnittees are stJmmar1sed 
below along with details of Committee rnembers' attendance at 
Cornn11ttee meetings 

Audit Committee 
Members 

(omrn1tteL r'eet1r fS he Id 111 L00q/ 2010 

Nick Luff(Cha1rrnan) S/S 
----- ------------

Noreen Doyle 
------------

Mark Ell1ott(1l 

Dr Peter Fellnerf2J 
----------

5/5 

1/2 

2/2 

3/3 Dav1~gsta!fl'~- ___ _ - ----- ------
Sir David ! ees(4 l 0/0 --- ---- - -- --- ---
II> Appointed on S August 2009 and ceased to be a member on 1March2010 
0) Resigned on 4 August 2009 
{•IAppo111ted on S August 2009 
141Appomted on 28 Ap1112010 

H1ghlrghts 
lntr-0duct1on of an updated/more comprehensive 
~elf Cf'rt1ficat1on tool 

l~c~:._a.:_ed foc~J: on C:N~n!er~al co~t~o~ct1v!..2__ __ _ 
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Audit Committee- role and focus 
Each member oft he Audit Comrrnttee 1s an independent Non­
execut1ve Director The Conunittee 1s chaired by Nickl uff, who has 
been a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants 1n England 
and Wales ~mce 1991 The Board considers h1rn to havP recent and 
relevant financial experience, given his forrner roles as CFO of P&O 
and P&O Princess Cruises and his current pos1t1on as Finance Director 
of Centrica The Audit Comrn1ltee meets as necessary and at least 
four times a year During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, 
the Committee met on five occasions The external atid1tor has the 
right to request that a meeting of the Audit Committee be convened 
During the past financial year, the Cornrnit tee mi>t with Oinet1Q's 
external auditor on two separatecx:cas1ons, without Executive 
Directors presf'nt to discuss the audit procf'SS The Cornm1ttee 
Chairman also rnet with the Group Head of Internal Audit on the 
sarne basis 

The CEO CFO Group Frnanc1al Controller, Group Head of Internal 
Audit the Internal Audit Manager, and a representative of the 
external auditor normally attend Audit Cornrrnttee rneetrngs 
except where not perrmtted 

During the last financial year cons1derat1on of the audit process 
for the fiJll year and interim results represented the principal areas 
of focus for the Audit Comrrnttee These included detailed reviews 
of asset valuation and 1mpa1rrnent test mg Thf> Comn11ttee also 
assessed the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, thro1Jgh 
a balanced scorecard rPv1ew prcx:essdes1gned to measure the 
achievement of Internal Audit objectives, which resulted 1n the 
approval of a detailed 12 n1onth work programme for the function 

In the context of the Groups North American business the 
Committee undertook two m depth revlf'WS oft he 1ntPrnal 
controls environrnent across ONA which included an assessrnent 
oft he effectiveness of the financial controls m place across t hP US 
business contract managernent act1v1ty and the resourcing oft he 

ONA Internal Audit learn As part of its review of internal controls 
the Committee focused 1n particular on those rnJtters which had 
failed to achieve at least a 'satisfactory' audit raltng 1n the year, and 
the management plans to adrlress the issues raised by the Internal 
Audit function, which benefited from the mtr<xluct1on of a rnore 
comprehen!>1Ve 'self cert1ficat1on process across the EMEA and ONA 
businesses m year The Conirrnttee also reviewed the act1v1t1es of the 
pensions, tax, insurance and treasury functions rn detail as well as 
overseeing the level of KPMG's audit fees I he Committee confirrns 
its view that 1t has received sufficient rehable and timely rnformat1on 
from management 1n the last financial year to enablf' 1t to fulfil 
its respons1b1J1t1es 
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Directors' Report -Governance 

Corporate governance report (continued) 

In order to safeguard auditor independence and obJect1v1ty, the 
Commit tee en!>tHes that any other adv1sory/consult1ng services 
provided by the auditor does not conflict with their statutory 
audit respons1b1t1tres and are conducted through entirely separate 
working teams such advisory and/or consulting services generally 
only cover regulatory reporting tax and mergers and acqu1s1t1ons 
work Any non-audit services conducted by thf' auditor require 
the consent of the C~O or the Chairman of the Audit Comm1llPe 
before being 1n1t1ated, with any such services exceeding £50,000 
1n value requiring the consent oft he Audit Comrmttee as a 
whole In the last financial year, the only non-audit act1v1ty 
conducted by KPMG on behalf of Qmet1Q which exceeded this 
£50 000 threshold related to the prov1s1on of services to support 
detailed strategic planning work being conducted across the 
EMEA business, as well as taxation advisory services to the Group, 
neither of which the Committee concluded created any conflict 
of interest issues which rrnghl cornprorn1se the independence of 
KPMG atJdlt work 

It 1s also Qmet1Q's policy that no KPMG employee rnay be 
appointed mto a senior pos1t1on w1thtn the Omet1Q Group 
without the prior approval of the CFO The cost of non audit 
work LJndertaken by the auditor was reviewed by the Committee 
on several occas1ons durmg the last f1nanc1al year this process 
enables the Cornm1ttee to take corrective action 1f 1t believes that 
there 1s a risk of the auditor's independence bemg undermined 
through the award of such work 

KPMG has been the Company s auditor ~1nce 2003 The members 
oft he Audit Committee have declared themselves satisfied with the 
performancf' of KPMG as the Company~ auditor m the last financial 
year A rotation ofKPMG's lead audit partner was undertaken during 
2008 1t 1s antrc1pated that he will continue rn this role for a maximum 
term of five years 

Remuneration Committee 
Members 
--------- - -------------
Comrr,,ttee rnn t11 gs tl'ld 111 2000/.;'010 
-------- - -------------
Noreen Doylt> (Chairman)11l 

Cohn Balmerl.i> 
--------

Adn11ral Sir Jame~ Bwnell-NugPntlll 
----------- --------
Mark Ell1ottm 

Dr Peter Fellner141 

David langstaffUJ 
-----------------

6/6 

3/3 

0/0 

3/3 

3/3 

3/3 

6/6 

m Appointed as Chan of the Remuner al1on Cornrrnttee on 5 August 2009 upon 
Dr Peter Fellner s res1gn1bon 

(21 Appointed on~ August 2009 
!•I Appointed on 28 April 2010 
f.o.> Resrgned on 4 August 2009 
~I Ceased lobe 1 member on 28Apr112010 
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Remuneration Committee- role and focus 
The Comrmttee rneets as necessary althotJgh norrnally not !e~s than 
three times a year During the financial year ended 31 March 2010 
the Remuneration Comrrnttee rnet on six occasions Although not 
rnernbers of the Cornrn1ttee, the former Group Chairman the Gro1Jp 
CEO, the Group HR Director and the Group Head of Reward normally 
attended Comrmttee meetrngs, together with representatives of 
the Comrrnttei>'s external consultants Delo1tte & Touche l LP, as 
necessary Executive Directors are not present when their own 
remtJnerat1on 1s being discussed Further 1nforrnat1on on the 
act1v1ties oft he Rernunf'rat1on Cornm1ttee durrng the last financial 
year are set out 1n the Report of the RemtJnerallon Cornrmttee on 
pages 36 to 41 

Nominations Committee 
Members 

(orr>m1ttte mtet1ngs be'd 11 .2009/ .2010 

Sir David lees (Chairman) 

Colin Balmer 

Sir John Ch1sholrnl1) 

Noreen Doylel2l 

Mark Ell1ott1i1 

Dr Peter Fellner!4
) 

Admiral Edmund P G1ambast1amPJ 

David LangstaffllJ 

Nick LLJffl21 

Leo Qwnn(» 

n1 Resigned on 28 February 2010 
l•I Ceased to be a member on 28April 2010 
ui Appointed on S August 2009 
i.o1 Resigned on 4 August 2009 
~l Appointed on 28 April 2010 

H1ghhghts 
Appointment of Mark Elliott as a Non executive Director and 
Cha1rrnan elect 
Appointment of David Langstaff and Admiral Sir James Burnell­
Nugent as a Non executive Directors 

3/3 

3/3 

2/3 

2/3 

1/1 

2/2 

2/3 

1/1 

3/3 

0/0 

Apprnntment of Leo Quinn as the Group CEO and Exe0Jt1ve Director 
- -------------- -------------

Nom1nat1ons Committee- role and focus 
The Cornrn1ttee rneets as neces~a1y and when called by its Chair 
During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the Committee met 
formally on three occa~1ons and consulted informally on ~ever al 
other occasions 

fhe principal focus oft he Cornrrnttee s act1v1t1e~ during the financial 
year ended 31 March 2010 was to review Omet1Q's succession 
planning processes at both the [xecut1ve and Non executive 
Director levels As part of the process, the Cornrn1ttee oversaw 
the recruitment of a new Cha1rrnan elect, whJCh culminated 1n the 
apporntrnent of Mark Elhotl as Non executive Director 1n June 2009 
Mark look over the role of Cha1rrnan in March 2010 The Commit tee 
also oversaw the appointment oftwoadd1t1onal Non executive 
Directors which culminated 1n the appointment of David Langstaff 
m Augu~l 2009 and Adrrnral Sir lames Burnell-Nugent 1n April 2010, 
together with a new CEO whKh culminated m the appointment of 
Leo Quinn m November 2009 
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Compliance Committee 
Memb~rs~ ___ _ 

Committee m!'etmg> held 1n .2009/2010 

Sir David lees (Cha1rrnan) 

Calm Balmer 

Admiral Sir Jarnes Burnell-Nugent('I 

Str John Ch1sholmm 

Mark Ell1ottm 
-~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

4/4 

4/4 

0/0 

4/4 

2/2 

Adrrnral Edmund P Gta1nbast1am<ll 1/2 

Graharn_L_o_'e~"-'-------------------"2:..:/2 
Ntck LtJffl1l 0/0 

Leo Ou_'"-"-'-''---------
oo Appo1nte<l on 28 April 2010 
DI Resigned on 28 Februaiy 2010 
«1Appomted on 5 August 2009 
!"I Ceased to be a member on 31 October 2009 
II) Appomted on 16 November 2009 

H1ghl1ghts 

2/2 

lrans1t1on of the Committee's focus to include wider compliance 
issues, SlJCh as eth1Cs and the ONA Proxy Reg1rne 
Further widening of the Committee's remit, to include matters such 
as Trade Controls and Health, Safety and Environment 

Compliance Committee- role and focus 
During the last financial year the remit of the Cornrmttee was 
widened to provide oversight of other s1gmficant comphance issues 
beyond the operation of the Complr;ince Regime, particularly the 
act1v1t1es that fall w1th1n the scopf' of the Helsinki Protocol covering 
trials involving hurnan volunteers the Groups Bus mess Ethics policy 
and the Proxy regime 

The Comrrnttee continues to monitor the Compliance Regime which 
1s designed to give MOD customers confidence that Q1net1Q 1s able 
to prov1<ie 11npart1al adv1eedur1ng any compet1t1ve evaluation of a 
procurement whereQ1net1Q wishes tooperateon both the 'buy and 
the 'supply' sides Q1net1Q 1s rf'qu1red by its Articles of Assoc1at1on to 
implement a Compliance Regime which was established on its creal ion 
out of DE RA Central toth1s Regime 1~ the requirernent for Omet1Q to 
seek perrrnss1on from the MOD prior to providing commercial defence 
services to others where there 1s potential for a conn1ct of mterest with 
the services that Qmet1Q provides tot he MOD 

In designing the Compliance Regune, the MOD and Oinet1Q smJght 
to achieve a balance between meeting the needs of the procurement 
customers w1thm the MOD (principally Defence Equipment and 
Support) and the need to allow Qinet1Q flex1b1lity to exploit rf'search 
into the ~up ply chain and pursue 1b planned cornrnerc1al act1v1t1es, 
w1th0tJI cornprom1smg the defence or security interests of the UK 
The Compliance Regnne is largely self pohc1ng, m that 1t 1s applied 
by Q1net1Q m respect of its act1v1tees without extensive mtervenl1on 
or oversight by the MOD Since the 1nceptron of the Compliance 
Reg1n1e over 97% oft he requests to the MOD to allow Qmet1Q to 
operate on the supply side of the cornn1erc1al defence market have 
been approved Oversight of the operation of the Regime 1s provided 
by the Compliance (ornrrnttee The Board nominates two semor 
execut1Vf'S to act as Cornpliance l1nplPmentat1on Director and 
Compliance /\tJd1t Director 
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Omet1Q's Cornpl1ance Committee meets on four occasions each 
year It receives a qtJarterly report on the compliance areas that 1t 
monitors from the Head of Bu~mess Assurance In respect of the 
Cornpl1ance Regime, the Comrrnttee receives a report from I he 
Company s Compliance Implementation Director whJCh describes 
the perrn1ss1ons which have been sought and granted since the last 
meeting oft he Committee and the status of projects where the 
potential contl1cts of interest are being managed The Committee 
also receives from the Compliance Audit Director, a report on the 
effectiveness of the controls that are in place lo ensure that the 
Regnne IS operated correctly The Committee 1s the forum that would 
address any issues ar1s1ng out ofQ1net1Q's failure to comply with the 
reciu1rements oft he Regime The Committee reviews the systems 
that support the Compliance Regime and those that may havf' an 
impact on 1t, d1rectmg changes, ifappropnate A computer based 
trammg packagecont1mJes to be used to ensure that all relevant 
employees have a satisfactory knowledge of the operation of the 
Regime For key roles competence 1s dernonstrated by passing an 
annual mandatory test 

The MOD reviews the operation Jnd effectiveness of the Compliance 
Regime, through its right to have an observer at the Compliance 
Cornrn1ttee meetings 

Dtuing the year a total of six new perm1~s1ons were sought from 
the MOO under the Compliance Regime where potential conflicts 
of interest were identified by Omet1Q, with one perm1ss1on reqtJest 
being outstanding from the previous year Of these seven reqtJests, 
five were approved one was re;ected and one rernamed outstanding 
at theend of March 2010 At theend of the year, 16 firewalls were 
1n place, with two being established and ten being closed down 
during the year Smee vesting m 2001 a total of 119 firew;ills have 
operated with 103 now closed No breaches of the MOD Compliance 
Regime were noted dtJrmg the year A firewall is a series of rules and 
procedures governing written and oral comrnun1cat1on between 
employees contr1butmg to products man MOD compet1t1on with 
industry (outside the wall) and employees a~sf'ssmg those products 
for MOD (ms1de the wall) 

Following the end of the last financial year the remit of the 
Committee was further widened to 1ncludeovers1ght of Health 
Safety and Environment, Trade Controls Ethic.; and Security 

Security Committee 
Members 
-- --- ------ ---- -------
Calm Baitner (Cha1rrnan)(1) 

---------
Adrniral Sir James Burnell-Ntigent!ll 

Sir John Ch1sholrnll> 
-------~ --------------

Sir D;iv1d Leesl11 

---------- ----~-----
Nick Luff11l 
---- ~-- ------
Graham Love(•l 

David Mellors(ll 

LeoOwnnl>) 

(11 Appointed on S August 2009 
<'I Appointed on 28Apr1I 2010 
1•1 Appointed on 5 August 2009 and !l's1gned on 28 February 2010 
<-1 Appointed on 5 August 2009 and Cl:'J~ed to be a member 

on 31 October 2009 
"1 Appointed on 16 November 2009 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Corporate governance report (continued) 

Q1net1Q Group Board and 
Committee structure 

Security Committee - role and focus 
The Sec1H1ty Cornm1ttPe was established In June 2009 to allow UK 
nationals on the Board to consider matters of a UK national security 
d1rnens1on which have an impact on Q1net1Q's UK busmess The 
Cornrrnttee has not met since its 1ncept1on as no business has 
arisen which would require 1t to do so The Committee 1s chaired 
by Calm Balmer 

Going concern 
The Groups acl1v1tres, combined with the factors that are likely to 

affect its future developn1ent and perforrnance, are set out m the 
CEO's review on pages 6 to 11 The CFO s report on pages 12 to 15 
sets otJt details on the financial pos1t1on oft he Group, the cash nows 
comrrntted borrow mg fac1htres liqutd1ty and the Group's policies and 
processes for rnanagmg both its capital and financial risks Note 27 to 
the financial statements also provides details oft he Group's hedgmg 
act1v1t1es financial mstnJrnents and rts exposure to hqutd1ty and 
credit risk 

The rnarket conditions tn which the Group operates have been, 
and ;ueexpecte<:l to cont mLJf' to be, cha11engmg as spf'ndmg from 
the Group's key customers 1n its pr unary rnarkets 1n the UK and US 
remam under pressure In lrght ofth1s during the year the Group 
announce<:! revised results expectations which highlighted the 
challenges experienced from our key markets and customers 

Desp1!P these challenges the Directors believe that the Group 1s 
WPll pos1t1oned to manage its overall bu!>1ness risks successfully 
Aft pr rnakmg the appropr1ateenqu1r1es, 1ncltJdmg a review oft he 
latest five year forecast for cash flow and rf'sults, the Directors have 

a rf'a!>onable expectation that !ht· Group has adequate resources 
to contmue 1n operational existence for the foreseeable future 
Consequently, the Annual Report and Accounts have been prepared 
on a going concern bas1!> 

34 wwwQmet10corn 

Pr112_Review 1ndd 34 

Commun1cat1on with shareholders 
The Company attaches significant importance to the pffect1veness of 
its corn1nurncat1ons wrth shareholders During the last financial year 
the Company has rnaintamed regular dialogue with 1nst1tuttonal 
shareholders and the financial community, which has included 
presentations of the full year and 1nter1m results (including inVf'!>tor 

road shows held rn the UK Europe and US), regular meetings 
with rnaJor shareholders and industry analysts, part1c1pat1on 1n 
stockbrokers' serninars and investor site v1s1ts In add1t1on each 

member of the Board attended the Company's Annual General 
Meeting m August 2009 and a number of Non executive Drrectors 
attended key shareholder events 1n the la.:;t financial year, including 
the full year and interim results presentations, at which they were 
available to take questions frorn shareholders All shareholders 

and potential shareholders can gain access to the Annual Report 
presentations to investors and other s1gmficant information about 

Q1net1Q on the Cornpany s website (wwwQ1net10 corn) 

Holders of ordinary shares may attend the Cornpany'!> AGM at 
which the Cornpany highlights key business developments during 
the year and at which shareholders have an opporturnty to ask 
questions The Chairs of the Audit, Remuneration, Norninat1ons, 

Compliance and Security Committees will be available to answer any 
questions on the work oft he Cornm1ttees The Company confir1ns 

that 1t will send the AGM Notice and relevant doc1Jmentat1on lo all 
shareholders at least 20 working days before the date of the AGM 
For those shareholders who have elected to receive commurncat1ons 

electronically, notice 1s given of the ava1lab1lity of documents on the 
lnve!>tor Relations Section of the Group's website 

All shareholders will be entitled to vote on the resolutions put lo the 
AGM and to ensure that all vole!> are counted a poll will be taken on 

all the resolutions m the Not1ee of Meeting The results of the votes 
on the resolutions wrll bf' published on the Company's website 
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Respons1bil1ty for rn~Hntammg regular cornrnunrcat1ons with 
shareholders rests with the Executive Team, led by the CEO, assisted 
by an investor relations function which reports to the CFO The Board 
1s informed on a regular basis of key shareholder issues, rncludrng 
share price performance the cornpos1t1on of the shareholder register 
and City expectations Thf' Chairman, the Senior Independent 
Director and Non executive Directors rnake themselves available 
to meet with shareholders as reqwred 

Management and control of US subs1d1ar1es 
Q1net1Q s principal US sub~1d1ar1es are currently required by the US 
National Industrial Security Program to marnta1n facility security 
clearances and to be insulated from foreign ownership control 
or mtluence To comply with these requirements, Q1net1Q North 
America Inc (formerly known as 01net1Q North Arner1ca Operations 
LLC, a wholly owned s1ibs1d1ary of Q1net1Q 1n the u::i and the holding 
company for the substantive part ofQ1netrO s North American 
operations) and the US DoD have entered into a proxy agreement 
that regulates the ownership management and operation of 
these cornparnes Pursuant to this proxy arrangement, Omet1Q has 
appointed four US cit 12er1~ (Peter Marmo, Riley Mixson John Currier 
and Vince V1tto) holding requ1s1te US ~ecur1ty clearances as proxy 
holders to exercise the votrng rights ofOinet1Q North America Inc's 
shares 1n the US subs1d1ar1es The proxy holders are also appointed 
as directors of the relevant US subs1d1ar1es and, 1n add1t1on to their 
powers as directors have power under the proxy arrangements 
to exercise all prerogatives of share ownership ofOmet1Q North 
America, Inc The proxy holders have a fichic1ary duty to and agree 
to perform their role 1n the best interests of, Q1net1Q North America, 
Inc and consistent with the national security concerns oft he US 
Qmet1Q does not have any representation on the boards of the 
subsidiaries covered by the proxy agreement and does not have lhf' 
right to attend board 1neetings QmetiO may not remove the proxy 
holders except for acts of gross negligence or wilful misconduct 
or for breach of the proxy agreements (with the consent of the 
US Defense Security Service) 

Internal controls 
The Board IS ultimately responsible for the Group's system of 
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness m safeguarding 
shareholders' interests and the Cornpany's assets However, such a 
system 1s designed to manage rather than i>lirrnnate the risk of failure 
to achieve btisiness objectives, and can provide only reasonable 
and not absolute assLJrance against rnaterial rmsstaternent or 
loss Omet1Q managers are responsible for the 1dent1fication and 
evaluation of significant risks applicable to their areas of business, 
together with the design and operation of ~wtable internal controls 
to enstJrf' effective m1t1gat1on These risks which are related to the 
achievement of business Objectives are assessed on a continual basis 
and rnay be associated with a variety ofmternal and external events 
includmg control breakdowns compet1t1on, d1sruptmn regulatory 
requ1rernents and natural and other cata~trophes 
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An annual process of h1erarch1cal self cert1hcat1on ha~ been 
established w1thm theorgarnsat1on which provides a documented 
and aud1table trail of accountability for the operation oft he system 
of internal control 

This process 1s informed by a rigorous and structured ~elf assessment 
that addresses all the gtJ1dance cited 1n the Combined Code and 
compliance with Company polrcy The process provides for successive 
assurances to be given at increasingly higher levels of rnanagernent 
and, finally, to the Board The process 1s 1nforn1ed by the Internal 
Audit function, which also provides a degrf'e of assurance as to the 
operation and val1d1ty of the system of internal control In the last 
financial year the assessment was re designed to provide greater 
ob1ect1v1ty and incorporate a wider scope Planned corrective actions 
are independently monitored for their timely completion 

The centrally provided internal audit programme 1s pr1or1t1sed 
according to us ks 1dent1fied by the Company and IS integrated across 
all business and functional d1mens1ons, thereby reducing issues of 
overlap or gaps 1n coverage These nsks are 1dent1fied dynamically 
and the Board 1s involved 1n this process as well as the01net1Q 
Executive learn :ind the ONA Executive Team 

The Audit Committee reviews on behalf oft he Board, the risk 
management prcx:ess and the system of internal control necessary 
to manage risks and presents its findmgs to the Board Internal Audit 
independently reviews the ri~k 1dent1fical1on and control processes 
implemented by managf'rnent and reports to the Audit Committee 
Where areas for improvement m the sys tern of internal control 
are 1dent1fied, the Board considers the recon1rnendat1ons made by 
the Qinet1Q Executive learn, the ONA Executive Team the Audit 

Committee and the Compliance Commit tee 

The Audtt Cornrn1ttee also reviews the assurance process, ensuring 
that an appropriate mix oftechrnques 1s used to obtain the level 
of assurance required by the Board It presents its findings to the 
Board on a reglllar basis The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control that was 1n operation during the financial 
year ended 31 March 2010 The Board also routinely challenges the 
management to ensure that the systems of internal control are 
constantly improving to maintain their continuing effectiveness 

Q1net1Q ha~ 1n place mternal procedtJff·~ which are df's1gned not only 
to comply with, but to exceed, mternat1onal best practice m relation to 
the prevention of corruption This 1s fac1l1tated by the engagement of 
mdependent. 1nternat1onally recognised organisations, such as TRACE 
(Transparent Agents and Contracting Ent1t1es) which conduct anti 
bribery dtJf' diligence tf'v1ews and compliance trammg on behalf of 
the Group, particularly m circumstances m which OmetrO 1~ planning 
to engage third party agents overseas Omet10 has, smce 2006, been 
a member oft he UK Defence Industry Anti corruption Forum 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Remuneration report 

The key purpose of the Committee is to ensure that the 
remuneration structure supports the Company's strategy 
and that we are able to attract, retain and motivate the 
highest calibre executives while aligning their interests 
with those of shareholders. 
Noreen Doyle Chair, Remuneration Committee 

Intro due.hon 
I am pleased to present the Remuneration Committees report 
on Directors' remuneration for the year to 31 March 2010 

The primary objectives of our remuneration policy remain unchanged 

lncentlv1sing key executives and managers 

Driving stiperior performance 1n both the short and long term 

Ahgnment with the interests of shareholders 

During the year the Cornrrnttee approved the remuneration 
arrangements for the new Ch1efExecut1ve Officer (CEO) which are 
laid out m this report Exit payment!> lo the fortnf'f CEO Graham 
Love, were agreed by the Cornrrnttee In the light of existing 
contracttJal arrangements and the per forn1ance of the business 
at the lime of exit and these arrangernents are also detailed m 
this report 

Given the current challenging environment and our commitment 
to pay for perforrnance, we are reviewing all existing incentive 
arrangements to consider whether they remain appropriate to the 
Company s strategy 

Noreen Doyle Chair, Remuneration Committee 
2Jtme2010 

Report of the Remuneration Committee 
The followrng Report of the Rernunerat1on Committee has been 
approved by the Board for subrn1ss1on to shareholders 

The Report covers the remuneration of Dnectors and includes 
specific disclosures relating to their compenc;at1on shares and other 
interests The report also describes the share based incentive plans 
available to Executive Duectors and to other employees This report 
has been prepared and, where appropriate, a1id1ted, m accordJnce 
with the requirements of the Large and Medium sized Cornparnf's 
and Group~ (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 and the FSA 
listing Rules 

Membership 
The Comrrnttee rs cornposed oft he following Non executive 
Directors 

Noreen Doyle 
Colin Balmer 
Adrniral Sir James Burnell Nugent 
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Mark Elliott 
David langstaft 

Dr Peter Fellner served on the Committee unt1\ his res1gnat1on 
frorn the Board on 4 August 2009 Su David Lees was a mernber 
of the Cornrmttee until 28 April 2010when he was replaced by 
Adrrnral Sir James Burnell Nugent 

The full Terms of Reference of the Committee can be found on 
the 01netrQ website (wwwQ1nellO com) Copies are also available 
on request 

Governance 
The Committee 1s chaired by Noreen Doyle and all its members 
are Non executive Directors In the finJnc1al year 2009/10 the 
Cornrrnttee met six times 

Dur mg the year the Comrrnttee received advice from its apJX>mled 
independent advisors, Delo1tte LLP { Delrntte') Delo1tte proVlded other 
consulting ~er vices during the year to01net1Q, btJtd1rl not provide advice 
on executive ren1unerat1on matters other than totheCornrrnttee 

Following a review and a formal tender process, the Cornrn1ttee has 
apJX>1nted new rndependent advisers, tosupJX>rt the review of the 
ex1st1ng 1ncent1ve arrangements 

Market dalJ was provided by DPto1tteJnd by Hewitt Ni>w Bridge Street 
who also advised on whether performance targets had been met 

The former Group Chairman, Group Chief Executive, Group HR Director 
and Group Head of Reward also provided advice to the Cornrrnttee 
No employee of 01net1Q 1s penn1tted to part1c1pate m d1scuss1on~ 
about their own remuneration 

Activities 
During 2009/10 the Cornrn1ttee meetings covered ,1 mnnber 
or topics including 

April Executive Directors' FY09 bonuses 
FYlO perforrnance targets 

May Executive Directors' salary reviews 
Directors' RerntJnerat1on report 
Executive teani salary reviews and FY09 bonuses 

July • PPrformJnce Share PIJn, Restricted Stock Unit and 
Share Option awards 

- --- -- ----- ---- - --- - --
October 

November 

January 

• Olfer to LeoOtJ1nn 
• Exit te1n1s fo1 G1aham Love 

Review of Execut1veteJm total con1pensat1on 
Update on pay trends 
Review of Executwetearn shareholdings 

Review of Ren1unerat1on Cornrmttee remit 

~ev~:w ~f con1£ar~o.'..._group 
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Directors' remuneration pohcy 
lhf' Comm1\ tee a11ns to marntarn a rernunera\1on policy, cons1~tent 
with the Cornpany's business objectives which 

at tracts, retains and motivates md1v1duals of high calibre, 

1s responsive to both Company and personal performance, and 

competitive within industry 

The rernunerat10n po hey 1s bwlt on the following philosophy 

remuneration pack<lges are struchned to ~upport btJsmess ~trategy 
and conform to current best practice, 

appropriate rewards are given for meet mg specific target objecl1ves 
set at the beginning of each year, 

incremental compensation 1s achieved for attaining stretch 
perforrnancetargets and 

objectives are measured on metrics designed to be cons1stent with 
the interests of all shareholders 

The total rerrumerat1on levels of the Executive Dtreclms are reviewed 
anntJatly by the Corrun1ttee, taking into account 

pt rforrnance ofthP executive against specific targets, 

cornpet1t1ve market practice and remuneration levels and 

the general econornic environment 

Base salary 
Executive Directors' ba~e salaries are reviewed annually as are all 
other employees There were no changes 1n salary fo1 the Executive 
Directors 1n 2009/10 in hne with the treatment oft he rnaJority of 
employees w1th1n Q1nellQ and reflecting market cond1t1ons 

External remuneration consultants provide data about market salary 
levels For market cornparison purposes acco1Jnt 1s taken of cornpany 
type sector and company size 1n terrns of both rnarket cap1tal1sat1on 
and turnover 

No salary increase ha-s been recommended for Executive D1rectors 
m respect of 2010/11 

Executive Directors 
LeoQumn 
David Mellors 

Former Director 
Grahan1 Love 

Benefits 

2009/10 lOO&/O'f 

£580,000 

£300,000 £300 000 

£400,000 £400,000 

Benefits may include a pension or contr1but1on 1n heu, car allowance, 
health insurance, life insurance and membership of the GrotJp's 

employee Share Incentive Plan which 1s open to all UK ernployees 

Annual cash bonus 
Executive Director~ parl1c1pale in an annual cash bonus plan which 
IS non pPn~1onablf' Bonuse~ are linked to Group performance targets 
and are rnod1fied for perforrnance agamst personal obJect1ve!> The 
2009/10 bonus potential and awards are laid out in the followmg 
table expre~sed a~ a percentage of salary 
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2000;10 

C'n tnget Mi...,nium A•tual 
% of s.al~ry p .yr>ie"t payrre'lt p.;yrnent 

Executive Directors 
Leo Quinn 50% 100% 0% 
David Mellors 50% 100% 0% 

Former Director 
Graham Love 50% 100% 0% 

The cash bonus was determined on a constant exchange rate basis 
against four elements 1n 2009/10 operating profit, underlying EPS 
operating cash flow and turnover 

Dur mg 2009/10 target operating profit was not achieved and 
therefore annual bomises have not been awarded 

Leo Quinn Joined the Company on 16 November 2009 and was thus 

el1g1ble for a cash bont1s based on his perforn1anceduring his 4X 
months as CEO The Board agreed that Leo Olllnn had achieved his 
partial year objectives and was eligible for a pro rated annual cash 
bonus However, 1n reflecting on the current rf'~ults of the Group, 
Leo Quinn waived his right to a bonus for the finanoal year ended 
31 March 2010 

In line with the corporate plan for 2010/11 target payment has been 
reduced as in the table below and the new bonus plan will focus on 

operating profit 

operating cash flow and 

undi>rlying EPS 

2010/11 

Executive Directors 
Leo Quinn 
David Mellors 

40% 
40% 

100% 
100% 

Deferred Annual Bonus (DAB) Plan 
The DPferred Annual Bonus Plan align~ the interests of executives 
with shareholders and aids retention of key 1nd1v1duals by ensu11ng 
that executives are 1ncent1v1sed to take part oftherr annual bonus 
awards m shares rather than cash 

Executive Directors have a rnandatory def err al of 30% of any bonus 

payable and rnay voluntarily defer 1Jp to 50% of their bonus into 
Qinet1Q shares Any deferred bonus wlll be rnatched based on EP5 
performance up to a max1rnum match of 100% oft he deferred 
elenient 

The EPS elf'rnent 1s earned only 1f EPS growth, measured over three 

year~. exceeds defined largPtS EPS must grow by al least 22 5% 
to trigger any vesting, at which point 25% of the award will vest 

Vesting increases pro rat a to EPS growth up to a max1rnum of 100% 
of the award vesting at 52% EPS growth as illustrated below 

Awards are m the forrn of rnatch1ng shares delivered after three years, 
subject to the ach1eve1nent of the EPS based performance cond1t1ons 

Where an ind1v1dua! part1c1pates in the DAB and also receives an award 
under the Performance Share Plan (PSP) they will not receive share 

awards which m aggregate exceed 150%ofbase salary 1n anyone year 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Remuneration report (continued) 

long-term incentives for Executive Directors 
The objective IS to ahgn the rewards of executives with returns 
to shareholders by a focus on increasing the share price over the 
medium to long term Executive Directors are ehg1ble to pa1t1c1pate 
m both the PSP and the DAB Plan 

These arrangements are the principal rneans for long term 
mcent1v1sat1on of the Executive Directors and the direct reports of 
the CEO The Cornrn1ttee considered various perfonnance cond1t1ons 
and deterrnmed that the criteria set out below were appropriate to 
mcenbv1se the long term creation of shareholder value 

Performance Share Plan (PSP) 
Awards of performance shares under the PSP were made to 
Executive Directors and a l1rn1tPd number of other senior 
executives in July 2009 and to certain 1nd1v1duals on Joining Share 
awards are contingent on meeting pre deterrrnned perforrnance 
cr1ter1a lnd1v1dual part1c1pants' award levels a1edeterm1ned by 
the Committee annually based on these criteria and, with due 
cons1derat1on of bus1nf>SS and personal performancP 

Executive Directors are eligible to receive awards with a value of up 
to 100% of base salary and other exec1Jt1ves up to 75% of base salary 

Awards arP earned based on an equal we1ght1ng of relative total 
shareholder return (TSR) performance and absolute underlying 
earnings per share (EPS) growth 

The EPS perforrnance cr1tena for the PSP 1s the same as that applied 
to the DA8 (outlined above) 

The TSR part of the award 1s measured against the const1t1Jents 
oft he followmgcornparator group of companies 

Babcock International pie 

BAl: Systems pie 

BBA Av1at1on pie 

Bodycote International pie 

Cap1ta Gfoup plc 

Chemring Group pie 

Cobharn pie 

Cookson Group pie 

GKN pie 

Halma pie 

Hampson Industries PLC 

IMlplc 

Invensys pie 

logica pie 

Meggitt pie 

The Morgan Cruoble Company pie 

Rolls-Royce pie 

Serco pie 

Senior pie 

lornkms pie 

Ultra Electronics pie 

VT GrotJp pie 

V1ctrex Group pie 

WS Atkins pie 

Thf' TSR f'lf'ment 1searnf'd only 11 relative performance 1s at least at 
median against this cornparator group over a three year performance 
period, calculated by an independent third party 
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Incentive arrangements for new CEO 
The Board appointed Leo Qwnn on 16 November 2009 To attract 
the services of Leo Quinn, the Committee recommended and the 
Board approved a share scheme based on the ex1st1ng long term 
incentive plan and using the same TSR and EPS metrics as the PSP 
The Board granted a Matching Share Award under which Leo Ownn 
invested £1m m Q1net1Q shares The Company agreed to match that 
investment based on TSR and EPS cr1ter1a as 1n the PSP 

In add1t1on Leo Quinn was granted a PSP Mirror Award, with the 
terms of the plan rnirroring the normal PSP plan as described 
opposite 

External appointments 
Qinet1Q allows its Exec1Jt1ve Directors to broaden their knowledge and 
experience by becormng Non executive Directors of other companies 
Appomtrnents are approved by the Board or the Comrrnttee on 
the ba!>I!> lhat there 1s no conflict of interest or deter1oral1on m the 
Executive Director's performance Fees are normally retained by 
the 1nd1v1dual During the year ended 31 March 2010, none of the 
~xecut1ve Directors held such an appointment at a public company 

Performance graph 
The graph below shows the Company s TSR over the period frorn 
flotation to 31 March 2010 compared to thf' FTSE 250 and FTSE 350 
Aerospace & Defence md1ces over the same period These were 
chosPn for comparison as 01net10 1s a const1tuf>nt of both indices 
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Directors' terms and cond1t1ons 
Service agreements for the Executive and the Non-executive Directors are reviewed annually and amended as appropriate 

Not cc to be f!•ven 
by tre Corrpany 

Datt of wost retert 
Service A gr el ment Date of appo1nt1Tent 

Executives 

Leo Qu1nri!•l 

David Mellors 

Non-executives 

Mark Ell1ott!bl 

Sir David lf'es 

Colin Balmer 

Noreen Doyle 

Adrrnral ldrnund P G1arnbast1a111 

Nick Luff 

David Langstaffl01 

Admiral Sn James Burnell-Nugent(d) 

Former Directors 

Sir John Ch1sholrn!<:1 

Graham Lovelfl 

Peter Fell nerW 

1•1 Leo Quinn was appointed as a Director on 16 November 2009 

12 months 
12 rnonths 

12 rnonth~ 

28 October 2009 

20May 2008 

10 February 2010 

16 February 2006 

16 February 2006 

16 February 2006 

1 rebruary 2008 

16 February 2006 

4 August 2009 

lOApril 2010 

1 October 2006 

1 Decembf'r 2005 

16 February 2006 

November 2009 

August 2008 

June 2009 

/\ugust 2005 
February 2003 

October 2005 

February 2008 

June 2004 

August 2009 

April 2010 

February 2003 

February 2003 

Septernber 2004 

1>1 Mark Elhott was appomted as a Duectm on 1June2009 and as Chairman 1 March 2010 
1<1 David Langstaff was appointed as a Director on 5 August 2009 
Id! Admiral James Burnell Nugentw1s appointed as a D1recto1 on lOApnl 2010 
I~ Sir John Chisholm resigned as a Duector on 28 February 2010 
111 G1aham Love resigned as a D11ecto1 on 31 October 2009 
!II Peter Fellner resigned as a Directm on 4 August 2009 

~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

01net1Q's policy 1s that Executive Directors should have contracts with a rolling term providing for a maximum of one year's notice Consequently, 
rio Executive Director ha~ a (.Ontractual notice period in excess of 12 months In the event of early tf'rrn1nat1on this ensures that compf'nsat1on 1s 
restricted to a maximum of12 months' baslC salary and benefits The Cornrrnttee will generally require rr11t1gat1on to reduce the compensation 
payable to a departing Executive Director 

Non-executive Directors' terms, cond1t1ons and fees 
The Group Cha1rrnan rPv1ews the fees ol the Non 0xe0Jt1ve Directors 
and makes recorrunendallons to the Board Non executive Duectors 
receive add1t1onal fees as agreed by the Board for thechamng of 
Board cornrrnttees to take account oft he add1llonal respons1brl1t1es ot 
the role The Chaurnan s fees are reviewed by the Senior Independent 
Non executive Director who 1nakes rf'commendatrons to the Board 

The level of fees paid 1n UK organ1sat1ons of a s1rn1lar size and 
complexity to 01net1Q 1~ cons1df'red m set tmg the rermJnerat1on 
policy for Non executive Directors The fees are neither perforrnance 
rPlated nor pensionable Non executive Directors are not eligible 
to part1c1pate in bonus, profit sharmg or employee share schernes 

Current fpe strtJctures for Non executive Directors are shown below 

Non executive Chairrnan 

Basic fee for UK resident Non 0xecut1ve Director 

Ba~1c fee for US resident Non executive Director 

Add1t1onal fee for cha1rmg a Cornrn1tlf'e 

Add1t1onal fee to Deputy Chairman/Senior 
Independent Non executive D1r1'Ctor 

Pr112_Revt9111 lndd 39 

2009/10 fees 

£225 000 

£40,000 

$100,000 
01 £50000 

£7000 

£10000 

As the Group Chairman 1s a US resident, the Board have agreed 
an accomrnodat1on allowance of £7S 000 per annum 

Excluding the Group Cha1rrnan an add1tronal fee of $4,000 1s payable 
to US resident Nori exeClJt 1ve Directors when they attend Board 
Meetings 1n the UK 

The review of fees scheduled for October 2009 was deferred until 
Summe1 2010 

Non executive Directors contiacts are renewed on a rolling twelve 
month basis subject lo reappointment at the Annual General 
Meeting I here are no prov1s1ons m their contract~ for corripensat1on 
on early termmatmn 

Managernent of share based rewards 
The Cornrn1ttee also oversees arrangernents for share-based reward 
m re~pect of managers and the wider workforce In add1t1on to PSP 
the Company also operates the following executive share plans 

Executwe plans 
Qinet10 Share Option Scherne(QSOS) 
l<!e~trictf'd Stock Units (RSU) 

Executive Directors do not participate in f'llher plan 

01nel1Q Group pie Annual Report and Accounts 1010 39 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Remuneration report (continued) 

No awards were tnadedunng the year undet QSOS Provision exists 
for annual awards up to .i face value of 300% of salary to be granted 

All-employee plans 
Share Incentive Plan (UK and Australia) 

The Share Incentive Plan was operated m the UK and Australia 
m the form of a share purchase award with rnatching company 
contr1b1~t1on to f'ncouragf" ernployee ownership and engagement 
m the busmess 

Restricted Stock Units 
RSU awards are used m Omet1Q North America to retain and 
motivate senior managers The RSU awards vest evenly over a four­
year pericxl The vesting ofhatf of the award 1s subject to a cond1t1on 
that organic profit grows by a rnm1rnurn of5% per annum Max11n1nn 
veslmg of 125% oflhe aw aid occuis al 15% pe1 annutn 01garnc profit 
growth The other half of the award IS subject to time based vesting 
criteria 

Awards are grantNl ba~erl on b1Js1ness performance, balanced with 
the need to attract retain and motivate high calibre employees 

D1lut1on hm1ts 
In accordance with ABI guidelines, the Comrrnttee has deterrmned 
that no nlore than 10% of the Company s issued share capital will 
be used under all of the Cornpany's share schemes Thed1lut1on as 
at 31 March 2010 was s1gn1ficantly below this 10% lf'vel. and below 
5% in respect of executive schemes In add1t1on, the Board intends 
to continue to satisfy a proportion of awards with purchased shares 
held in the employee benefit trust 

Personal shareholding pohcy 
The Committee believes that a powerful way to align Executives 
mtf'rests with those of ~hareholders 1s for the Executives to build up 
and retain a personal holdrng 1n Q1net1Q shares 

The CEO and CFO afe feqmfe<l to ho\d the equwalenl of one tirnes 
their base salary in Q1net1Q shares 

David Mellors, havmgJoined on 20 August 2008, has been given 
four years to build up such a ~hareholdmg The Chief Executive has 
already met the Comrmttee s gu1del1ne on rnimrnurn shareholding 
requirement 

Direct reports of the CEO are required to hold the equivalent of 50% 
of their base salary m shares These can be accurnulated over a four 
year period following appointment 

Interests of Directors 1n office as at 31 March 2010 
(1nclud1ng shares held under SIP and DAB) 

Executives 
Leo Ownn 
David Mellors 

Non-executives 
Mark Elliott 
Sir David Lees 
Cohn Balmer 
Noreen Doyle 

NurPber lp 
ord•'1M) 

~~are~h .d.at 
lAptil 2009 

249 

73,000 

17000 
Admiral Edrrnmd P G1ambast1arn 
Nick Luff 50,000 
David langstaff 

Audited 1nformat1on 

Directors' remuneration 

Number lp 
ordinary 

~hare~ hdd at 
31March2010 

602 757 
24,284 

100,000 
83 000 

17,000 

70000 
12,000 

NurrbPr lp 
ordinary 

shares held at 
27 May 2010 

602,757 
24 538 

100 000 
83,000 

17000 

70,000 
12,000 

The information about Directors' r<>muneration and Directors' 
interests on pages 4Dto41 has been audited 

The table below shows the aggregate remuneration of the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2010 

- - ---- -----
Executives 
Leo Quinn 
David Mellors 

Non-Executives 
Mark Ell1ott 
Sir David Lees 
Colin Balmer 
Noreen Doyle 
Adrn1ral Edrnund P G1arnbast1am 
Nick Luff 
David Langstaff 
Adrrnral Sir James Burnell Nugent 

£217 872 
£300,000 

£72 271 
£64,000 
£40 000 
£44,667 
£62 880 
£47,000 
£42,643 

Other Other Pa)'mu1t fo• 
comp• n .. at o-i l'eri..tih cs~ of cfiici.. Totdl 2010 

-------- ---------- --

£600,000 £68 692 
£18,085 

£886,564 
£318 o8c; 

£72,271 
£64,000 
[40,000 
£44,667 
£62 880 
£47,000 

£42 643 

--- - ----------- --------- --
Former Directors 
Sir John Chisholm 
Graham Love 
Peter Fellner 
DotJg Webb 

Total 

£197,083 
£366,6671d) 

£16 028 

£1,471,111 

1>1 Before adjustments to basic pay for SMARf pensions. 

[ 12,633 
£64,438 

£600,000 £163,848 

£209,716 
£ 517, 1001°1 £948,BOS 

£16 028 

-- ----
£517,700 £2,752,659 

Total 2009 

£215 997 

£64 000 
£40,000 
[40,000 
£61,700 
£47000 

£230,100 
£488,009 

£47000 
f61 767 -- --

£1,295,573 

(ttteo Qumn was awa1ded a payment of £600 000 111 heu of compensatwn earned but not yet payable from a con ti actual arrangement with a third party 
1<1 Includes cir allowance he1lth insurance benefits and payments m lieu of pension 
(di Gtaham love \n!> ogi ePd to p1ovide se\\IKes to the Company du11r1g a srx month pe11od on a con!>u\\anty basis to ens we a smoo\ h \1 ansi\mn on the DTR prn1ect 

IOI which he has received £100,000 111 February2010 He received 1n add1t1on1I payment of £100 000 1n May 2010 
!<I In connection with his dPp1r lure, the following severance paymentswerP made loGratnm Love (1) p1yrnent of a cash sumequ1v1lent to 9:-S months bas1e pay 

(11) paynwnt 1n heu of 12 months pension ind fo1untaken1nnual leavP, (111) compens<1\1on for loss of offite and (iv) reimbursement of le•>s for leg;:il adv1te 111 
connecl1onw1th lus seve1ance terms 
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Pensions 
The Group's policy 1s to offer all UK ernployee:. membership in the 
Omet1Q Pension Scheme, as described in note 38 to the finanoal 
statements Executives whose benefits are likely to exceed the 
L1fet1me Allowance may opt out of the 01net1Q Pension Plan 
In such cases, the md1v1dual will be paid a supplement in lieu 
of pension contr1but1ons 

Interests of Directors under long-term incentives 

Leo Quinn 
Matching award TSR 
Matching award EPS 
PSP Mirror TSR 
PSP Mirror EPS 

David Mellors 

PSP TSR 
PSP EPS 
DAB match 
PSP TSR 
PSP EPS 

Former Executive Directors 
Graham Love 

PSP TSR 
PSP EPS 
DAB match 
PSP TSR 
PSP EPS 
PSP TSR 
PSP EF') 

Grant 
date 

16/12/09 
16/12/09 
16/12/09 
16/12/09 

21/08/08 
21/08/08 
01/07/09 
04/08/09 
04/08/09 

26/07/07 
26/07/07 
01/07/08 
07/08/08 
07/08/08 
04/08/09 
04/08/09 

Number 
at lApril 

2009 

75 567 
75 567 

so 288 
50,287 
53 756 

100 756 
100 755 

506,976 

Granted 
1nyear 

362 844 
362 845 
210 450 
210 450 

6 859 
100 000 
100 000 

133,333 
133,333 

1,620,114 

Contr1but1ons to the Defined Contr1but1on section of the Qmet1Q 
Pension Scheme were as follows 

Executive Directors 
David Mellors 

2009/10 

£60,000 

2008/09 

£36,846 

Leo Quinn and Graham love received contr1but1ons 1n lieu of a pension 

Exercised/ 
vested 
111year 

5o 2ss1<1 
50 287'<) 
25 1551<1 
43 9191<1 
43 9191<1 
13 6751<1 
13 6751<) 

240,918 

Lapsed 
1nyear 

28 601 
56 837 
56 836 

119 658 
119 658 

381,590 

Number at 
31 March 

2010 

362 844 
362 845 
210 450 
210 450 

75 567 
75 567 

6 859 
100 000 
100 000 

1,504,582 

Market price 
011 date of 

grant 

165pl•I 
165pl•I 
165pl>I 
165pM 

2178p(b) 
2178p(b) 
144 7p 
135 Op 
135 Op 

174p 
174p 

195 Sp 
198 Sp 
198 Sp 

135p 
135p 

Earliest 
ve~t date 

28/10/121•1 
28/10/121•1 
28/10/121•1 
28/10/121•1 

21/08/11 
21/08/11 
01/07/12 
04/08/12 
04/08/12 

26/07/10 
76/07/10 
01/07/11 
07/08/11 
07/08/11 
04/08/12 
04/08/12 

Latest 
vest date 

28/10/12M 
28/10/12M 
28/10/12M 
28/10/121•1 

21/08/11 
21/08/11 
01/07/12 
04/08/12 
04/08/12 

26/07/10 
26/07/10 
01/07/11 
07/08/11 
07/08/11 
04/08/12 
04/08/12 

M Awards to Leo Quinn 1n 2009 were based on an average market price of138p representing the average price over the ten days before- Joining 
lbl Awards lo David Mellors in 2008were based on a market pr1Ce of198 Sp as at 7 August 2008 
l<l These shares were subject to EPS and TSR conditions as outlined earlier m this report At the tune of departure- the Committee- Lons1dered the time elapsed and 

the ant1c1pated per for ma nee and resolved that the share awards would vest/lapse as disclosed These shares vested on 1 December 2009 at which tune the 
market price was 165p 

The interests 1n the table above are subject to the performance cond1t1ons described 1n note 33 The price of a Q1net1Q share at 31 March 2010 
was 134p The highest and lowest prices of a Q1net1Q share during the year ended 31 March 2010 were 178 Sp and 122 Op respectively 

D1rectors' 1nterest 1n the All-Employee Share Incentive Plan 

David Mellors 

Former Directors 
Sir John Ch1sholrn 
Graham Love 

'Acquired as an Executive Director 

Pr112_Aeview 1ndd 41 

lntere>t as 
at 1 Aprd 2009 

266" 
3,562 

P.irtne sh'p 
share~ acquired 

durirg year 

1,425 

MdU:h1ng sha 1es 
appropriated 

during year 

D1v1dend 
shares allocated 

durmgyear 
lnlerc~tasat 

31 March 2010 

1425 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Other statutory information 

Principal act1v1ty 
Qmet1Q Group pie 1s a public t1rrnted company, listed on the London 
Stock Exchange and incorporated m England and Wales with 
registered nurnber 4586941 

Q1net1QGroup pie 1s the parent company of a Group whose principal 
act1v1t1es during the year were the supply of tech meal advrce to 
customers m the global aerospace, defence and security markets 
Customers include government orgarnsat1ons, such as the UK MOD 
and the US DoD and cornrnerc1al customers around the world 

Research and development 
One of the Group's principal bus mess streams 1s the prov1s1on of 
funded research and development (R&D) for ciistorners The Group 
also invests 1n the comrnerc1al1sat10n of prom1s1ng technologies 
across all areas of business 

The majority of R&D-related expenditure 1s incurred on behalf of 
customers as part of specific funded research contracts R&D costs 
are included rn the income statement and R&D income IS reflected 
w1th1n revenue In the financial year, the Group recorded £425 6m 
(2009 £468 Sm) of total R&D related expenditure, of which £418 3m 
was customer funded work {2009 £4570m) 

In the year to 31 March 2010, £7 ~rn (2009 £11 Sm) of internally 
funded R& D was charged to the rncorne statement £70 6m (2009 
£0 2m) of late-stage developrnPnt costs were capitalised and £3 Orn 
{2009 £2 4m) of capitalised development costs were amortised rn 
the year 

Polley and practice on payment of supphers 
The policy of the Group 1s to agree terms of payment pnor to 
corrunenc1ng trade with a supplier and to abide by those terms 
based on the t1rnely subrniss1on of satisfactory invoices At 31 March 
2010, the trade creditors oft he Group represented 28 days of anrnJal 
purchases (2009 42 days) 

Pol1tfcal and charitable contributions 
Oinet1Q does not make pol1t1cal donations to parties as that term 
would be commonly recognised I he legal defin1t1on of that term 
1s, however, qwte broad and rnay have the effect of coverrng a 
number of normal business act1v1t1es that would not commonly be 
perceived to be pol11tcal donations, such as sponsorship of events 
These may include leg1t11nate rnteractrons in makrng MPs and others 
1n the political world aware of key 1nd1Jstry issues and matters 
affecting Q1net1Q, whJCh make an important contr1but1on to their 
understanding ofQ1net1Q, the rnarkets rn whJCh 11 operates and their 
constituents work During the last financial year this expenditure 
amounted to no more than £15,000 

Charitable donations during the year across the Group arnountPd 
to £114 100 (2009 £133 soo) 

Share capital 
As at 31 March 2010 the Company had allotted and fully paid share 
capital of 660 476 373 ordinary shares of lp eachw1th an aggregate 
nominal valtJe of £6 6 rrnlhon (including shares held by employee 
share trusts) and one Special Share with an aggregate nominal 
value of fl 

Details of the shares issued dtJr1ng the financial year are shown 
in note 32 on page 84 
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1 he rights of ordinary shareholders are set out in the Articles of 
Assoc1at1on The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive 
the Company s reports and accounts, to attend and speak at General 
Meetings oft he Company, to exercise voting rights 1n person or by 
appointing a proxy and to receive a dividend where declared or paid 
out of profits available for such a purpose 

The Special Share 1s held by HM Government through the Secretary 
of State for Defence and 1t confers certain rights under the Articles of 
Assoc1at1on which are detailed 1n note 32 on page 84 These mclude 
thP nght to require certain persons with a material interest in Qinet1Q 
to dispose of some or all of their ordinary ~hares on the grounds of 
national security or conflict of intf'test The Special Share may only be 
held by and transferred to HM Government At any time the Special 
Shareholder may require QmetiQ to redeem the share at pat and 1f 
wound up the Special Shareholder would be entitled to be repaid 
capital before other shareholders Anyvanat1on of the rights attaching 
to the Spectal Share requires the written approval of the MOD 

Change of control - s1gnrficant agreements 
lhe following srgn1ficant agreements contain prov1s1ons ent1thng 
the counter parties to require prior approval, exercise termination, 
alteration or other s1m1lar rights 1n the event of a change of control 
of the Company or 1fthe Company no longer remains a UK company 

the Combined Aerial Target Serv1cecot1tract 1s a 20 year contract 
awarded to Q1net1Q by MOD on 14 Decernber 2006 The terms of 
this contract require Q1net1Q l1m1ted to rerna1n a UK cornpany which 
1s incorporated under the laws of any part oft he UK or an overseas 
company registered m the UK and that at least SO% of the Board of 
Directors are UK nationals The terms also contain change of control 
conditions and restricted share tra115fer cond1t1ons which require 
prior approval from HM Government 1fthere 1s a material change m 
the ownership ofOmet1Q l1n11ted's share capital, unless the change 
relates to shares listed on a regulated market with material defined 
as being 10% or more of the share capital Add1t1onally, there 
are restr1ct1ons on transfers of shares to persons from countries 
appearing on the restricted l1sl as 1ss1ied by HM Government and 

the Long Term Partnering Agreement 1s a 25 year contract which 
Q1net1Q L1rrnted signed on 28 Ff>bruary 2003 to provide test 
evaluation and training servKes to the MOD This contract contains 
cond1t1ons where the prior approval of HM Government 1s required 
1fthe contractor Q1net1Q l1n11ted, ceases to be a subs1d1ary of the 
Q1net1QGroup, except where such change 1n control is permitted 
under the Shareholders Agreernent lo which MOD 1s a party 

The Company 1s party to a £500rn Revolving Credit Facility with 
Lloyds TSB Bank pie (as agent) expiring 19 August 2012 Under the 
terms of the fanlity 1fe1ther (1) the MOD ceases to retain 1n its 
capacity as Spena I Shareholder 1t s Special Shareholders Rights, 
or (2) there 1s a change of control of the Co1npany .rny lender may 
request by not less than 90 days' r1ot1ce to the Cornpany, that its 
cornrmtrnent be cancelled and all outstanding arnounts be repaid 
to that lender at the expiry of such notice period 

On 6 December 2006, Omet1Q US Hokl1ngs, Inc, formerly known 
as Omet1Q North America, Inc (as Borrower) and the Company (as 
Guarantor) entered mto a Note Purchase Agreernent to issue $135m 
S 44% Senior Notes due 6 Decernbe1 2013 and $125m 5 50% Senior 
Notes due 6 December 2016 Under the terrns of the agreement, 
1f either (1) the MOD ceases to retain in its capacity as Special 
Shareholder its Special Shareholders Rights, or (2) there 1s a change 
of control of the Company and (3) in either case where there has 
hPen a rating downgrade or where there are no rated securities 
(unless a rating of at least 1nve~trncrit gra<lf' 1~ riot obtained w1th1r1 
90 days of the change of control) thr Notes must be offered for 
pr1•payrnent by the Company wit hm 21 days of the change of control 
fhe prepayment date wotJld be no later than 45 days after the offer 
of prepayment by the Con1pany 
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On 5 February 2009 Omet1Q US Holdings, Inc, formerly known 
as QmellQ North America, Inc (as Borrower) and the (on1pany (as 
Guarantor) entered into a Note Purchase Agreement to issue $62m 
713% Senior Notes due S February 2016 and $238m 762% Senior Notes 
due 5 February 2019 Under the terms of the agreement, 1f either (1) the 
MOD ceases to retam m its capacity as Special Shareholder its ~pec1al 
Shareholders Rights, or (2) there 1~ a change of control of !hf' Company, 
the Notes must be offered for prepayment wrth1n 21 days of the 
change of control The prepayment date would be no later than 
45 days after the offer of prepayrnent by the Company 

Major shareholders 
At 24 May 2010 being the latest pract1Cabte date pnor to the 
issuance of this report, the Group had been notified of the following 
shareholdings of at least 3% 1n the ordinary share capital of the Group 

Ruane, Cunniff & Goldfarb, Inc 11 26% 

Lansdowne Partners Ltd {UK) 9 05% 

BlackRock Investment Management Ltd (UK) 8 93% 

Artisan 5 04% 

Fidelity International Ltd (UK) 4 97% 

Standard Life Investments Ltd 4 79% 

Legal & General 3 98% 

_A_X_A~ln_v_e_,t_m_e_n_t_M~'-"-'~ge~r~'-U~K~Lt_d~~~~~~~~~~~356% 

Allotment/purchase of own shares 
At the Company's AGM held in August 2009, the shareholders passed 
resolutions which authorised the Directors to allot relevant securities 
up to an aggregate nominal value of £4 403,174 {£2 201,587 ptnsuant 
only to a rights issue) tod1sapply pre emption rights (up to 5% of 
the issued ordinary share capital) and for the Company to purchase 
ordinary shares (up to 10% of its ordinary share capital) Equivalent 
resolutions will be laid before the 2010 AGM 

During the year, the Company provided funding to the trustees 
of its employee share scherries to make market purcha~es of the 
Cornpany s ordinary shares to cover future obligations under 
outstanding share option and other share-based awards Further 
details are disclosed in note 32 on page 84 

Restrictions on transfer of shares 
As OLJtlined 1n Note 32 on page 84, the Special Share confers certain 
rights under the Company's Articles of Assocrat1on to require certain 
persons with an interest in Qmet1Q's shares which exceed certain 
prescribed threshold~ to dispose of some or all of their ordinary 
shares on grounds of national security or conflict of interest 

Articles of Assoc1at1on 
Save in the respect of any variatron to the rights attaching to the 
Special Share the Cornpany has not adopted any special rtJles 
relating to the amendment oft he Company's Articles of Assoc1at1on 
other than as provided under UK corporate law 

Employees 
The Group 1s an equal opportunities employer, upholds the pr1nc1ples 
of the UK Employment Service's 'Two Ticks symbol and 1s accwd1ted 
by Investors 1n People Ew•ry po~~1ble cons1derat1on 1s given to 
appl1cat1ons for ernployrrient, rf"gardless of gender, religion d1sabd1ty 
or Pthmc origin, having rf'gard only to skills and competencies This 
policy 1s extended toex1st1ng employees and any change which may 
affect their personal circumstances The pohcy 1s supported by 
strategies for professional and career developrnent 
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Oinet1Q seeks to utilise a range of communication channels 
to employees m order to involve them 1n the running of the 
organisation This 1s done using vanous media, 1ndud1ng in-house 
magazines intranet regular newsletters bulletins, management 
briefings, trade tm1on consultatmn, the newly created Qinet1Q 
Employee For urn and widespread training programmes 

Employee Share Scheme 
Eqwmt1 Share Plan Trustees L1m1ted acts as trustee m respect of all 
ordinary shares held by employees under the Qinet1Q Group pk Share 
Incentive Plan (the Plan) Equ1mt1 Share Plan Trustees L1rrnted will 
send a Form of D1rect1on to all employees holding shares under the 
Plan and will vote on all resolutions proposed at general meetings 
in accordance with the instructions received In circumstances where 
ordinary shares are held by the corporate sponsored norrnnee service, 
Equm1t1 Corporate Nominees L1m1ted will send a Proxy Form to all 
shareholders ut1lls1ng such corporate nornmf'e S<'rv1ce, and will vote 
on all re~olut1ons proposed at general meetings in accordance with 
the instructions received 

Auditor 
KPMG Audit Pie has expressed its w1tl1ngness to continue in office as 
auditor and a resolutron to reappomt thern will be proposed at the 
Annual General Meeting 

Staternent of disclosure of 1nformat1on to auditor 
The Director~ who held office at the date of approval ofth1s Directors' 
report have confirmed that, so far as the Directors are aware, there 
1s no relevant audit information of which the Cornpany's auditor 1s 
unaware and the Directors have taken all the steps they reasonably 
ought to have taken as Directors to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit 1nformat1on and to estabhsh that the Company s 
auditor IS aware of that 1nformat1on 

Annual General Meeting 
The Company's Annual General Meeting will be held on Thursday 
29 July 2010 at 2 OOprn at The Auditorium, JP Morgan Cazenave, 
20 Moor gate l ondon EC2R 6DA Details of the business to be 
proposed and voted upon at the meeting I!> contained in the Notice 
of the Annual General Meeting which 1s sent to all shareholders and 
also published on the Company s webs1tP (wwwQ1net1Qcom) 

By order oft he Board 

Lynton Boardman Company Secretary 

85 Buckmgharn Gate 
London SW1E 6PD 
2 June 2010 
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Directors' Report- Governance 

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities 

fhe Directors are re~pons1ble for prPparing the Annual Report and 
the Group and parent cornpany financial ~tatements rn accordance 
with applicable law and regulations 

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and parent 
company financial statements for each financial year Under that 
law they are required to prepare the Group financial statements 1n 
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and applicable law and 
have elected to fHPpare the parent company financial statements 
1n accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law 
(UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) 

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial 
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs oft he Group and parent company and of 
their profit or loss for that period In preparing each of the Group and 
parent company hnanc1al statements I he Directors are required to 

select suitable accounting pol1c1es and then apply them 
consistently 

make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent 

for the Group financial statements state whether they have been 
prepared m accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU 

for the parent company financial stall•rnents, state whether 
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, stJbJPCt 
to any material departures disclosed and explamed m the parent 
co1npany financial statements and 

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis LJntess 
1t ts mappropr1ate to presume that the Group and the parent 
company will continue in business 

I he Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting 
records that are sufficient to show and explain the parent company's 
transactions and disclose with reasonable acctJracy at any time 
the financial pos1t1on of the parent co1npany and enable them to 
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Com pa mes Act 
2006 They have general respons1b1lity for taking such steps as are 
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and 
to prevent and detf'ct fraud and other 1rregular1t1es 

44 wwwQ1net1Qcom 
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Under applicable law and regulations thf' Directors are abo 
responsible for preparmg a Directors' Report, Directors' 
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Staternent 
that complies with that law and those regulations 

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of 
the corporate and financial inforrnallOn included on the Company s 
website Leg1slat1on m the UK governing the preparation and 
d1ssem1nat1on oftinanc1al staternents m.iy differ from leg1slat1on 
1n other JlHl<>d1ct1ons 

Respons1b1hty statement of the Directors 
1n respect of the Annual Report 
We, the Directors of the Company confirm that to the best 
of our knowledge 

the financial statements of the Grotip have been prepared in 

accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and for the Company 
under UK GAAP, 1n accordance with apphcab!e United Kingdom 
law and gJVe a true and fair view of\he assets, llab1lit1es, financial 
position and profit or loss of the Group and 

the Directors' Report includes a fa11 review oft he development 
and performance of the business and the pos1t1on of the Group 
together with a description of the principal risks and uncf'rta1nt1es 
that face the Group 

By order of the Board 

Leo Quinn 
Ch1efExecut1ve Officer 
2 June 2010 

David Mellors 
Chief Fmanoal Officer 
2June2010 

14/06/2010 17 431 



: ·::,···· •• i ••• 

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members 
of QinetiQ Group pie 

We have audited the linanc1al statements ofQ1netlOGroup pie for 
the year ended 31 March 2010 which comprise the Consohdated 
Income Statement the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
lncomP the Consolidated StatPrnent of Changes 1n (qtJ1ty the 
Consolidated and Parent Company Balance Sheets the Consolidated 
Cash Flow Statement and the related notes 

The financial reportrng framework that has been applied m the 
preparation of the gro11p financial statements is applicable law and 
lnternal1onal Frnanc1al Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by 
the EU The financial reportrng framework that has been applied 
rn the preparation oft he parent cornpany financial statements 1s 
applicable law and UK At counting Standards {UK Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice) 

This report 1s made solely to the company s rnernbers as a body 
1n accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 oft he Cornpan1es Act 2006 
Our audit work has been undertake-n so that we rrnght state to the 
company's members those matters wf' are required to state to them 
rn an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respons1b1hty to 
anyone other than the cornpany and the company's members, 
as a body, for our audit work for this report, or for theop1n1on!> 
we have fat med 

Respective responslbll1ties of Directors and auditor 
As explarned more fully 1n the Directors' Respons1b1lit1es Statement 
set out on page 44, the Directors are responsible for the preparation 
of the financial staternents and for being satisfied that they give 
a true and fair view Ow respons1b1hty 1s to audit the financial 
staternents 1n accordance with applicable law and International 
Standards on Aud1t1ng (UK and Ire-land) Those standards require 1is to 
comply with the Auci1l 1ng Practices Roard's (APB's) Ethical Standards 
for Auditors 

Scope of the audit of the financial statements 
A descr1pt1on oft he scope of an audit of financial statements 1s 
provided on the APB's web-site at www frc org uk/apb/scope/UKP 

Op1n1on on financial statements 
In our opinion 

the financial statements give a true and fair view oft he state of the 
group's and oft he parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2010 
and of the group's loss for the year then ended 

the group fin<1nc1al s tate-rnents have been prupPrly prepared 
m accordance with lfRSs as adopted by the EU, 

the parent company financial staternents have been properly 
prepared m accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting 
Pr<1ct1ce 

the financial staternPnts have been p1epared tn accordance with 
the requtrernents of the Companies Act 2006, and as regards the 
group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation 
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 
In our op1mon 

the part of the Directors' RernLmerat1on Report to be audited has 
bPen properly prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 
2006 and 

the information given in the Directors Report for the financial year 
for which the financial statements are prepared 1s con!>1!>tPnt with 
the financial statements 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We have nothing to report 1n respect of the following 

Under the Cornpan1es Act 2006 we are required to report to you 
1f, 1n our op1mon 

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent 
company or re-turns adequate for our audit havf' not bf'en received 
from branches not v1s1ted by us, or 

the parent cornpany financial statements and the part of the 
Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited are not 1n agreement 
with the accounting records and returns, or 

certain d1sclos1nes of directors' remuneration specified by law 
are not made or 

we have not received all the mfmmat1on and explanations 
Wf' require for our audit 

Under the listing Rutes we are reqmred to review 

• the directors' statement set out on page 34, 1n relation to going 
concern and 

·the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on page!> 28 35 
relating to the company s cornphance with the mne prov1s1ons of 
the June 2008 Combined Code srec1fied for our review 

Mike Maloney (Senior Statutory Auditor) 
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Pk Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Account<1nls 

B Salisbury Square 
London 
EC4Y 888 
2 Junf' 2010 

Q1net1Q Gro1ip pie Annual Report and Accounts 2010 45 

14/06.2010 17 4J I 



I •••• 

Financial Statements 

Consolidated income statement 
for the year ended 31 March 

2010 2009 

Before 
Before acqu1s1t1on 

acqu1s1t1on Acqu1s1t1on ammt1sat1on Acqu1s1t1on 
amort1sat1on 11mort1sat1on and specific arnort1sat1on 

and specific and specific non recuning and specific 
non recurring non recurnng items non recuumg Total 

al! figures 1n £ m1tl1on note items items• Total (restated)t items· (restated)' 

Revenue ll 1,625 4 1,625 4 1,617 3 1,617 3 

Other operating costs excluding 
deprec1at1on and amort1sat1on (1,465 8) (421) (1,507 9) (1,424 0) (1.4 24 0) 

Share of post tax loss of equity 
accotmted JOmt ventures and 
associates " 02 02 (7 2) (7 2) 
Other income 69 69 79 79 

EBITDA (earnings before 
mterest, tax, depreciation and 
amortisation) 166 7 (421) 124 6 1940 1940 

Deprec1at1on and 1mpa1rrnent of 
property plant and equ1prnent " {35 1) (240) (59 1) (33 5) (33 5) 
Amort1sat1on and 1mpa1rrnent of 
intangible assets 1112 (113) (79 5) (90 8) (89) (23 5) (32 4) 

Group operatmg (loss)/profit 120 3 (145 6) (25 3) 1516 (23 5) 1281 

Gain/(loss) on business 
divestments and 1mpa1rment of 
investments {62) (6 2) 73 73 
Finance 1ncorne 481 481 59 1 591 @ 
Finance expense (82 7) (82 7) (80 5) (80 5) 

(Loss)/profit before tax 85 7 (1518) (661) 130 2 (162) 114 0 

Taxation (12 9) 15 7 28 (26 7) 63 (204) 

(Loss)/profit for the year 
attributable to equity 
shareholders " 72 8 (1361) (63 3) 103 5 {9 9) 936 

Earnings per share 

Basic 10 (9 7)p 14 3p 
Diluted 10 (9 7)p 14 3p 

Specific non recurr1ng1tems 1nclu<h- amounts relating to ga1n/(loss) on busmessd1vestments and unreahsPd rmpar!nwnts ofinvestmf'nts amJ in 2010 thP 
impairment of p1operty plant and equipment 1mpa11ment of 1ntang1ble assets 1nd EMEA reorgar11s.at1on costs See note 4 

tRestatement relates to the transfer of the finance element of the IAS 19 pension cost totalling a net £3 4m credit to the finance income and expense hnes 
This w1s previously reported in other operating costs 
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Prt12_Review 1ndd 46 14/06/2010 17 431 



I -···· 

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
for the year ended 31 March 

all figures 111 [ rrulhon 

(Loss)/profit for the year 

Other comprehensive income 
Effective portion of change 1n fatr value of net investment hedges 
Foreign currency tran"!>lat1on differences for foreign operations 
Decrea~e in fair value of hedgmg derivatives 
Reclass1ficat1on of hedging derivatives to the income statement 
Movernent 1n deferred tax on hedging der1vat1ves 
Fair val tie gains on available for sale investments 
Actuarial loss recognised In defined benefit pen~1on scheme~ 
Increase tn deferred tax asset due to actuarial movement 1n pension deficit 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 

Total comprehensive income for the year attnbutable to equity holders 

Consolidated statement of changes in equity 
for the year ended 31 March 

Issued Cap1t;il 
share redemption Share Hedge Translation 

all figures m £ m1lhon capital reserve premium reserve reserve 

At 1 April 2009 66 399 147 6 (167) 56 5 
Total comprehensive income 
for the year 46 (21) 
D1v1dends paid 
Purchase of own sharps 
Share basPd payments 
Deferred tax on share based 
payments 

At 31 March 2010 66 39 9 147 6 (121) 544 

At 1 April 2008 66 39 9 147 6 (38) (17 5) 
Total comprehensive mcorne 
for the year (12 9) 74 0 
D1v1dends pa1cl 
Purchase of own shares 
Share based payment~ 
Deferred tax on share based 
payments 

At 31 March 2009 66 39 9 147 6 (167) 56 5 

Retained 
earnings 

368 7 

(1049) 
(316) 

(0 8) 
58 

237 2 

360 1 

32 8 
(28 9) 

(08) 
56 

(0 1) 

368 7 

• • ••• 

2010 2009 

(63 3) 93 6 

28 7 (107 6) 

(30 8) 181 6 
(02) (17 6) 
66 

(18) 47 
17 09 

(60 2) (95 8) 
16 9 34 1 

(391) 03 

(102 4) 93 9 

Mmonty Total 
Total Interest equity 

602 6 01 602 7 

(102 4) (102 4) 
(316) (316) 

(08) (0 8) 
58 58 

473 6 01 473 7 

S32 9 01 S3j O 

93 9 939 
(289) (289) 
(0 8) (0 8) 

5 6 56 

(01) (01) 

602 6 01 602 7 
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Financial Statements 

Consolidated balance sheet 
as at 31 March 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Non· current assets 
Goodwill 
Intangible assets 
Property plant and equipment 
Other financial asseb 
Equity accotJnted investments 
Other mvestments 
Deferred tax asset 

Current assets 
Inventories 
Other financial assets 
Trade and other receivables 
Current tax 
Investments 
Assets classified as held for sale 
Cash and cash eqwvatents 

Total assets 

Current hab1ht1es 
Trade and other payables 
Current tax 
Prov1s1ons 
Other financial l1ab1htles 

Non-current hab1hbes 
Ret1ren1ent benefit obligation 

Deferred tax l1abtl1ty 
Prov1s1ons 
Other financial l1abtl1t1es 
Other payables 

Total hab1hbes 

Net assets 

Capital and reserves 
Ordinary shares 
Capital redemption reserve 
Share prerrmnn accotJnt 
Hedging and translation reserve 

Retained earnings 

Capital and reserves attnbutable to shareholders of the parent company 

Total shareholders' funds 

note 

n 
11 

1' 

15 

16 

17 

" 

18 

15 

19 

n 

22 

ll 

15 

'" 
" 23 

" 22 

2010 2009 

5797 638 s 
1417 164 2 
285 5 332 4 

10 0 116 
09 07 
48 15 7 

28 7 

1,0513 1,163 1 

79 8 68 3 
78 31 

423 8 532 9 
86 

23 06 
51 18 

639 2621 

582 7 877 4 

1,634 0 2,040 5 

(396 4) (4472) 
(7 5) 

(161) (4 3) 
(8 9) (221) 

(428 9) (473 6) 

(147 3) (105 2) 
(10 8) (89) 

(7 9) (88) 
{530 2) (7926) 

(35 2) (48 7) 

(7314) (964 2) 

(1,160 3) (1,437 8) 

473 7 602 7 

66 66 
39 9 399 

147 6 147 6 
42 3 39 8 

237 2 368 7 

473 6 602 6 

01 01 

473 7 602 7 

The financial staten1ents were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 2June 2010 and were signed on 1ls behalf by 

Leo Qumn Chief l:.xec1Jt1ve Of fie Pr David Mellors Ch1et Financial Officer 
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Consolidated cash flow statement 
for the year ended 31 March 

all figures 1n £ m1lhon 

Net cash inflow from operations before EMEA reorgamsat1on cost 
Net cash outflow re\ at mg to EMEAreorgarnsallon 

Cash inflow from operations 
Tax rece1ved/(pa1d) 
Interest received 
Interest paid 

Net cash inflow from operating actlv1t1es 

Purlha::.e::. o( 1nlar1g1ble assel~ 
Purchases of property, plant and eqtJ1pment 
Costs from sale of property plant and equipment 
Equity accounted investments and other 1nvestrnent funding 
Purchase of subs1d1ary undertak1 ngs 
Net cash acqLJ1red with subs1d1ary undertakings 
Proceeds from sale of equity accounted investment 
Proceeds from sale of 1 nterests in subs1d1ary undertakings 

Net cash outflow from investing activities 

Cash outflow from repayment of loan notes 
(Repayment)/proceeds from bank borrowings 
Proceeds from US Private Placement 
Payment of deferred finance costs 
Settlement of forward contracts designated as net investment hedges 
Purchase of own shares 
D1v1dends paid to shareholders 
Capital element of finance lease rental payments 
Capital element of finance lease rental receipts 

Net cash (outflow)/mflow from financing activities 

(Decrease)/mcrease m cash and cash equivalents 
Effect of foreign exchange changes on cash and cash equivalents 
Ca~h and cash equivalents at beginning oft he year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Overdrafts 

Casll and cash equivalents at end of the year 

Reconciliation of movement in net debt 
for the year ended 31 March 

lll figures 111 £ m1ll1on 

(Decrease)/increase 1n cash and cash eqrnvalents in the year 
Ca<>h flows from repayment/(drawdown) of loans, private placement and other financial instruments 

Change m net debt resultmgfrom cash flows 
Other non cash movements including foreign exchange 

Movement m net debt m the year 
Net debt at beg1nn1ng oft he year 

Net debt at end of the year 

note 

'" 

l9 

n 
JO 

note 

l9 

30 

JO 

30 

JO 

2010 2009 

204 6 202 2 
('54) (270) 

169 2 175 2 

15 (2 5) 
04 10 

(36 8) (21 l) 

134 3 152 4 

(6 2) (33) 

(241) (29 1) 
(0 7) (12) 
(11) (5 8) 

(46 3) (92 9) 
01 37 

13 7 
211 72 

(56 6) (107 7) 

(0 5) 
(2321) 13 3 

2104 
(15) 

(14 3) 
(o 8) (0 8) 

(316) (28 9) 
(2 8) (2 8) 
3 0 3 0 

(278 6) 192 2 

(200 9) 236 9 
(0 5) 5 7 

2621 19 5 

601 262 1 

63 9 2621 
(32) 

601 262 1 

2010 2009 

(200 9) 236 9 
246 2 (2261) 

453 10 8 
352 (168 8) 

80 5 (158 o) 
(537 9) (379 9) 

(457 4) (537 9) 
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F1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements 

1. Significant accounting pohc1es 

Accounting policies 

The following accounting policies have been apphed consistently 
to all penods presented 1n deahng With items which are considered 
material 1n relation to the Group's financial statements The Group 
separately presents acqu1s1hon amort1sahon and specific non­
recurnng items m the mcome statement which, m the Judgement 
of the 01rec1ors, need to be disclosed separately by virtue of 
their size and mc1dence m order for the reader to obtain a proper 
understandmg of the financial mformatron Specif"ic non-recurnng 
items mclude amounts relating to gains and losses on business 
divestments and unreahsed rmpa1rments and m 2010 the 
1mpa1rmenl of property, plant and equipment 1mpa1rment 
of mtang1ble assets and EMEA reorganisation costs 

Basis of preparation 
The Group's financial statements have been prepared on a going 
concern basis as discussed m the Corporate Governance report on 
page 34 The Group's financial statements have been prepared and 
approved by the Directors 1n accordance with lntemat1onal Fmanc1al 
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ('Adopted IFRS') and 
the Compames Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under 
IFRS The Company has elected to prepare its parent company 
financial statements 1n accordance with UK GAAP, these are 
presented on pages 94 to 96 The financial statements have been 
prepared under the h1stoncal cost convention, as modified by the 
revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, and other relevant 
financial assets and hab1llties Non-current assets held for sale 
are held at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell The Group's reportmg currency 1s sterling and unless 
othenMse stated the financial statements are rounded to the 
nearest hundred thousand 

Basis of consohdat1on 
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 
statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings up 
to 31 March 2010 The purchase method of accounting has been 
adopted Those subsidiary undertakings acquired or disposed of 
1n the penod are included in the consolidated income statement 
from the date control is obtained to the date that control is lost 
(usually on acquisition and disposal respectively) A subs1d1ary 
1s an entity over which the Group has the power to govern financial 
and operating pohc1es m order to obtam benefits Potential votmg 
nghts that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered 
when determining control 

An associate rs an undertakmg over which the Group exercises 
s1gmficant influence usually from 20% to 50% of the equity 
voting nghts, over financial and operating pohcy A Joint venture 
rs an undertaking over which the Group exercises Joint control 
Assocrates and 101nt ventures are accounted for usmg the equity 
method from the date of acqu1s1t1on up to the date of disposal The 
Group's investments m associates and JOmt ventures are held at cost 
mcludmg goodwill on acqu1s1t1on and any post-acquisition changes 
1n the Group's share of the net assets of the associate less any 
1mpa1rment to the recoverable amount Where an associate or 
iomt venture has net hab11itres, full prov1S1on 1s made for the Group's 
share of ltab1llt1es where there IS a constructNe or legal obhgat1on 
to provide add1t1onal funding to the associate or Joint venture 

The financial statements of subs1d1anes Joint ventures and 
associates are adjusted where necessary to ensure complrance 

with Group accounting pohc1es 

On consohdat1on, all intra-group income, expenses and balances 
are ehmmated 

SD www01nt>l10corn 
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Revenue 
Revenue represents the value of work performed for customers, 
and 1s measured net of value added and other sales taxes on the 
followmg bases 

Long-term contracts 
The Group's long-term contract arrangements are accounted 
for under IAS 11 Construction Contracts Revenue 1s recognised 
once the Group has obtained the nght to consideration in exchange 
for Its performance No profit IS recogntsed on contracts until the 
outcome of the contract can be reliably estimated When the 
outcome or a contract can be estimated reliably revenue and 
costs are recogmsed by reference to the stage of completion 
of the contract activity at the balance sheet date This 1s normally 
measured by the proportion of contract costs mcurred for work 
performed to date compared to the estimated total contract costs 
after makmg suitable allowances for technical and other nsks 
related to performance milestones yet to be achieved When II 1s 
probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue 
the expected loss is recognised rmmed1ately as an expense 

Goods sold and services rendered 
Sales of goods and the provision of services not under long-term 
contract are recognised m the income statement when the 
significant nsks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 
to the customer and revenue and costs can be reliably measured 

Cost-plus contracts 
Revenue on cost-plus and t1me-and-matenals contracts 
is recognised as work 1s performed 

Royalties and intellectual property 
Royalty revenue 1s recognised on the earlier of the date on which 
the income 1s earned and measurable with reasonable certamty 
or cash ts received Cash received in advance 1s deferred over the 
penod to which the royalty relates Intellectual property revenue can 
be attnbuted either to perpetual hcences or limited licences L1m1ted 
hcences are granted for a specified time penod and revenue 1s 
recogmsed over the penod of the licence Perpetual licences are 
granted unlimited time frames and are recogmsed when the nsks 
and rewards of ownership are transferred to the customer 

Segmental information 
Segmental mformat1on ts presented according to the Group's 
management structure and markets 1n which the Group operates 
The principal activ1t1es or the Group are managed through three 
sectors organised according to the d1stmct markets m which the 
Group operates 

EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Australasia) mainly delivers 
technical advice, technology solutions, consultancy and managed 
services to the Ministry of Defence 1n the UK, and civil and other 
Government customers m the UK and Australia, 

Omet10 North Amenca mamly provides technology and services 
to the US Government, and 

Ventures mamly compnses commercial product busmesses and 
business venturing activ1t1es 

Segmental results represent the contnbut1on of the different 
segments to the profit of the Group Corporate expenses are 
allocated to the corresponding segments Unallocated Items 
comprise mainly profit on disposal of non-current assets, business 
divestments and unrealised 1mpa1rment of mvestments financing 
costs and taxation Eliminations represent mter-company trading 
between the different segments 
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1 Significant accounting policies (continced) 

Segmental assets compnse property, plant and equrpment, 
goodwill and other mtang1ble assets, trade and other receivables, 
mventones and prepayments and accrued income Unallocated 
assets represent financial assets which are included 1n net debt 
Segmental hab1ht1es comprise trade and other payables, accruals 
and deferred mcome and retirement benefit obhgat1ons Unallocated 
llab1hhes represent financial hab1ht1es which are included 1n net debt 
Segmental assets and llab1hhes are as at the end of the year 

Research and development expenditure 
Research and development costs incurred on behalf of a 
customer as part of a specific prOJeci are directly chargeable to 
the customer on whose behalf the work rs undertaken Internally 
funded development expenditure 1s capitalised m the balance 
sheet where there 1s a clearty defined project, the expendrtures are 
separately 1dent1fiable, the proiect 1s technically and commercially 
feasible, all costs are recoverable by future revenue and the 
resources are committed to complete the project Such caprtallsed 
costs are amortised over the forecast period of sales resulting from 
the development All other research and development costs are 
expensed to the income statement m the penod in which they are 
incurred If the research phase cannot be clearly d1stmgu1shed from 
the development phase, the respective project-related costs are 
treated as 1f they were incurred in the research phase only and 
expensed 

Fmancmg 
Financing represents the financial expense on borrowings 
accounted for using the effect1Ve rate method and the financial 
income earned on funds invested Exchange differences on finanCJal 
assets and llab1lrt1es and the income or expense from interest 
hedging instruments that are recognised in the income statement 
are included w1th1n interest income and expense m financing 

Taxation 
The taxation charge 1s based on the taxable profit for the year 
and takes into account taxation deferred because of temporary 
differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation 
and accounting purposes Current tax and deferred tax are charged 
or credited to the income statement except where they relate to 
items charged or credited to equrty in which case the relevant 
tax 1s charged or credrted to equrty Deferred taxation 1s the tax 
attnbutable to the temporary differences that appear when taxation 
authont1es recognise and measure assets and liabilllles wrth rules 
that differ from those of the consolidated financral statements The 
amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner 
of reahsatlon or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and 
hab1lrt1es, using rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date 

Any change 1n the tax rates are recognised 1n the income statement 
unless related to rtems directly recognised m equity Deferred tax 
hab1lrt1es are recogmsed on all taxable temporary differences 
excluding non-deductible goodwill Deferred tax assets are 
recognised on all deductible temporary differences provided that 
II 1s probable that future taxable income wdl be available against 
wh1ch the asset can be ut1hsed Deferred tax assets and llab1lrt1es 
are offset only where there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset 
and there 1s an mtent1on to settle balances on a net basis 
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Goodwill 
Business combinations are accounted for under the purchase 
accounting method All 1dent1fiable assets acquired and hab11it1es 
and contingent llab1hlles incurred or assumed are recorded at fair 
value at the date control is transferred to Qinet1Q, irrespective of the 
extent of any mmonty interest The cost of a business combination 
1s measured at the fair value of assets received, equity instruments 
issued and hab11Jt1es incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, 
plus costs directly attnbutable to the acqu1s1t1on Any excess of the 
cost of the business combination over the Group's interest m the 
net fair value of the identifiable assets, hab1llt1es and contingent 
l1ab1ht1es recognised 1s cap1tahsed as goodwill Goodw11l 1S subject to 
annual impairment reviews (see belOIN) If the cost of an acquisition 
1s less than the fan value of the net assets acquired, the difference 
1s 1mrned1ately recognised m the Consolidated Income Statement 
as a gam 

Intangible assets 
Intangible assets ansmg from business combinations are 
recognised at fair value and are amortised over their expected 
useful lives, typically between O and 9 years Internally generated 
mtang1ble assets are recorded al cost, including labour, directly 
attnbutable costs and any third-party expenses Purchased 
intangible assets are recognised at cost less amort1sat1on Intangible 
assets are amortised over therr respective useful lives on a straight 
hne basis as follWIS 

2-8 years Intellectual property nghts 
Development costs Useful economic hfe or umt of 

production method subject to a 
m1mmum amort1sat1on of no less than 
straight lme method over economic life 
of 1--4 years 

Other 1-9years 

Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation 
Freehold land 1s not depreciated Other tangible non-current assets 
are depreciated on a stra1ght lme basis over their useful economic 
trves to their estimated residual value as follows 

Freehold bu1ldmgs 
Leasehold land and 
buildings 
Plant and machinery 
Fixtures and fittings 
Computers 
Motor vehicles 

20-25years 
Shorter of useful economic life and 
the penod of the lease 
3-10years 
~10years 

3-Syears 
3-Syears 

Assets under construction are mctuded m property, plant and 
equipment on the basis of expenditure incurred at the balance 
sheet date In the case of assets constructed by the Group, the 
value includes the cost or own work completed, including directly 
attnbutable costs and interest 

The useful hves deprec1at1on methods and residual values 
applied to property, plant and equipment are reviewed annually 
and, rf appropnate, adjusted accordingly 
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Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

1. S1gn1f1cant accounting policies (cort1nuedJ 

Impairment of tangible, goodwill, 1ntang1ble and 
held for sale assets 

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 1s an 
md1cat1on that an asset may be 1mpa1red If the carrying amount 
of any asset exceeds its recoverable amount an 1mpa1rment loss 
1s recognised 1mmed1atety m the income statement In add1t1on, 
goodwill is tested for impairment annually irrespective of any 
1nd1eat1on of 1mpa1rment If the carrying amount exceeds the 
recoverable amount, the respective asset or the assets m the 
cash generating um! are written down to their recoverable amounts 
The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating um! 1s 
the higher of Its fair value less costs to sell and its value muse 
The value in use 1s the present value of the future cash flows 
expected to be denved from an asset or cash generating umt 
calculated using an appropnate pre-tax discount rate Impairment 
losses are expensed to the income statement 

Investments In debt and equity securities 
Investments held by the Group are classrfied as either a current 
asset or as a non-current asset and those classified as available 
for sale are stated at fair value, wdh any resultant gain or loss being 
recognised directly m equity, except for impairment losses When 
these mvestments are de-recognised the cumulative gam or loss 
previously recognised directly m equdy is recognised m the income 
statement 

The fair value of quoted financial instruments IS their bid pnce at the 
balance sheet date The fair value of unquoted equdy investments 
are held at fair value based upon the pnce of the mos1 recent 
investment by the Group or a third party If available or derived 
from the present value of forecas1 future cash flows 

Inventories 
Inventory and work-in-progress (1ncludmg OTR pre-contract costs 
capitahsed smce 01net1Q was awarded preferred bidder status m 
2007) are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value 
Work-in-progress and manufactured finished goods are valued at 
product10n cost Production cost includes direct production costs 
and an appropriate proportion of production overheads A prov1s1on 
1s established when the net realisable value of any inventory dem 
1s lower than its cost 

Bid costs 
Costs incurred 1n bidding for work are normally expensed as 
incurred In the case of large multi-year government contracts 
the b1ddmg process typically involves a competitive bid process 
to detenmne a preferred bidder and then a further penod to reach 
financial close with the customer In these cases, the costs incurred 
after announcement of the Group achieving preferred bidder status 
are deferred to the balance sheet withm work-in-progress From the 
pomt financial close is reached, the costs are amortised over the hfe 
of the contract If an opportunity for which the Group was awarded 
preferred bidder status fails to reach financial close, the costs 
deferred to that point will be expensed in the income statement 
1mmed1ately, when it becomes likely that financial close will not 
be achieved 

Trade and other receivables 
Trade and other receivables are stated net of prov1s1ons for doubtful 
debts Amounts recoverable on contracts are included 1n trade and 
other recervables and represent revenue recognised m excess of 
amounts 1nvo1ced Payments received on account are included m 
trade and other payables and represent amounts invoiced m excess 
of revenue recognised 
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Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash at bank and short-term 
deposits that are readdy convertible mto cash In the cash flow 
statement overdraft balances are included m cash and equivalents 

Current and non-current hab1hbes 
Current habdrhes include amounts due within the normal operating 
cycle of the Group Interest-bearing current and non-current 
llabd1t1es are recognised at fair value and then stated at amortised 
cost with any difference between the cost and redemption value 
bemg recognised in the mcome statement over the period of the 
borrowings on an effective interest rate basis Costs associated 
wrth the arrangement of bank fac1lltres or the issue of loans are 
held net of the associated hab1hty presented 1n the balance sheet 
Caprtalised issue costs are released over the estimated llfe of the 
facility or instrument to which they relate usmg the effect1Ve mteres1 
rate method If rt becomes clear that the facility or mstrument wlll 
be redeemed earty, the amort1sat1on of the issue costs will be 
accelerated 

Prov1s1ons 
A provision 1s recognised 1n the balance sheet when the Group has 
a present legal or constructive obllgat10n as a result of a past event 
which can be reliably estimated, and 1t is probable that an outflow 
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obhgallon Where 
appropriate, prov1s1ons are determmed by d1scountmg the expected 
cash flows at the Groups weighted average cost of capdal 

F1nanc1al instruments 
F1nanc1al assets and financial hab1lrt1es are recognised on the 
Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the ms1rument The derecogn1t1on of 
a finane1al instrument takes place when the Group no longer 
controls the contractual rrghts that comprise the financial mstrument, 
when the instrument expires or 1s sold, terminated or exercised 

Denvat1ve financial instruments 
Denvatrve financial mstruments are 1mllally recognised and 
thereafter held at fair value bemg the market value for quoted 
instruments or valuation based on models and discounted cash 
flow calculations for unlisted instruments 

Fair value hedging 
Changes in the fair value of denvat1Ves designated as fair value 
hedges of currency risk or interest rate nsk are recognised m the 
income statement The hedged item 1s held at fair value wrth respect 
to the hedged nsk with any gain or loss recognised tn the mcome 
statement 

Cash flow hedging 
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of denvatives 
designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised in equity The 
ineffective portion 1s recognised 1mmechately in the income 
statement Where a hedged rtem results in an asset or a Jiab1lrty, 
gams and losses previously recogn1Sed in equrty are included 
m the cost of the asset or hab1ldy Gains and losses previously 
recognised 1n equity are removed and recogn1Sed m the mcome 
statement at the same time as the hedged transaction 

Hedging of net investment 1n foreign operations 
The effective portion of changes m the fair value of denvatives 
designated as hedges of the net investment in a foreign entity 
are recognised in equity until the net investment 1s sold or 
disposed Any meffect1ve portion 1s recogmsed directly m the 
income statement 
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1. Significant accounting pohc1es (continued) 

Leased assets 
Leases are classified as finance teases when substantially all of the 
nsks and rewards of ownership are held by the lessee Assets held 
under finance leases are capdahsed and included m property, plant and 
equipment at the lower of the present value of minimum lease payments 
and fair value at the inception of the lease Assets are then depreciated 
over the shorter of their useful economic lives or the lease term 
Obhgations relatmg to finance leases, net of finance charges ansmg 
m future penods, are included under financial bab1ld1es 

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income 
statement on a stra1ghl-llne basis over the term of the lease 

Foreign currencies 
Transactions 1n foreign currencies are recorded usmg the rate 
of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets 
and llab1ht1es m foreign currencies are translated at penod-end 
rates Any resultrng exchange differences are taken to the income 
statement Gains and losses on desrgnated forward foreign 
exchange hedgrng contracts are matched against the forergn 
exchange movements on the underlying transaction 

The individual financial statements of each group company are 
presented in its functional currency On consohdahon, assets and 
l1ab1hhes of overseas subs1d1anes' associated undertakings and Joint 
ventures, including any related goodwill, are translated to ster1rng 
at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet dale The results and 
cash flows of overseas subs1d1anes, associated undertakings and 
1oinl ventures are translated to sterling using the average rates of 
exchange dunng the penod Exchange ad1ustments ansmg from 
the re-translation of the opemng net investment and the results for 
the penod to the penod-end rate are taken directly to equity and 
reported 1n the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

Post-retirement benefits 
The Group provides both defined contnbution and defined benefit 
pension arrangements The 6abllrties of the Group ans1ng from defined 
benefit obllgahons, and the related current service cost, are determined 
using the projected unrt credrt method Valuallons for accounting 
purposes are earned out halfyearty for the largest plans and on a 
regular basis for other plans Actuanal advice is provided by external 
consultants For the funded defined benefit plans, the excess or deficit 
of the fair value of plan assets less the present value of the defined 
benefit obhgat10n are recognised as an asset or a liabthty respectively 

For defined benefit plans, the actuarial cost charged to the income 
statement consists of service cost, interest cost and expected 
return on plan assets The finance element of the pension charge 
1s shown rn finance mcome and expenses, the remaining service 
cost element 1s charged as a component of employee costs rn 
the income statement Actuanal gains and losses are recognised 
rn full 1mmed1ately through the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income Contnbutrons to defined contnbut1on plans are charged 
to the Income Statement as incurred 

Share-based payments 
The Group operates share-based payment arrangements with 
employees The fair value of equity-settled awards for share-based 
payments 1s determined on grant and expensed straight hne over 
the period from grant to the date of earliest uncond1t1onal exercise 
The fair value of cash-settled awards for share-based payments 1s 
determined each period end until they are exercised or lapse The 
value 1s expensed straight lrne over the penod from grant to the date 
of ear11est uncondltional exercise The charges for both equity and 
cash-settled share-based payments are updated annually for non­
market-based vesting conditions 
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Share capital 
Ordinary share capital of the Company 1s recorded as the proceeds 
received less issue costs Company shares held by the employee 
benefit trusts are held at the cons1derat1on paid They are clasS1fied 
as own shares within equrty Any gain or loss on the purchase, sale 
or issue of Company shares 1s recorded rn equity 

Restatement of prior penods for finahsatJon of fair values 
ans1ng on acqu1s1tJons 
The fair values of the net assets of acquired business are f1nahsed 
within 12 months of the acqu1slt1on date, with the exception of 
certain deferred tax balances All fair value ad1ustments are 
recorded with effect from the date of acqu1S1t1on and consequently 
may result m the restatement of previously reported financial results 

Recent accounting developments 
The following EU endorsed new, revised and amended pubhshed 
standards and interpretations are effective for accounting penods 
beg1nmng on or after 1 Apnl 2009 and have been adopted 

IFRS 8, Operating Segments replaces /AS 14 Segmental 
Reporting and requires an entity to present segment mformat1on 
on the same basis as used for mtemal management reporting 
as provided to the chief operating dec1SJon maker Adophon of this 
standard did not affect the reportable segments, disclosures have 
been prepared m accordance with the new standard 

/AS 1 (revised), Preaentatlon ofF1nancial Statements requires 
the Group to present a Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
Statement of Changes m Equrty as primary statements The Group 
has elected to present the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
and the Income Statement as two statements These consohdated 
Financial Statements have been prepared under the revised 
disclosure requirements 

Amendment to IFRS 7, Financisl Instruments Disclosures 
requ1res enhanced disclosures around fair value measurement 
and hqu1dlly risk The disclosures in these financial statements 
have been prepared m accordance with the new standard 

The following EU endorsed amendments, improvements and 
rnterpretat1ons of pubhshed standards are effective for accounting 
periods beg1nnmg on or after 1 Apnl 2009 and have been adopted 
with no material impact on the Groups financial statements 

IAS 23 (revised), Borrowmg Costs, 

Amendments to IFRS1, F1rsttimeadopbon oflFRS and /AS 27, 
Consolidation and separate financ1a/ statements, 

Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based payment 

Amendments to IFRS 7, F1nanc1Sl /nstruments Disclosures and 
/AS 39, F1nanc1al Instruments Recognition and Measurement, 

Amendments to IAS 32, FmancJS//nstruments Presentabon and 
/AS 1 Presentat10n ofF1nanc1al Statements, 

Amendments to IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded 
Denvabves and /AS 39, Financial Instruments Recogn1bon 
and Measurement, 

Improvements to IFRS, 

IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, 

IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, 

IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment ma Foreign Operation 
(early adopted}, 

IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers, and 

Annual Improvements 2008-2009 
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F1nanc1at Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

1. Significant accounting policies (conmued) 

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following 
EU endorsed revised, amended and improved publsshed standards 
and 1nterpretat1ons, which have not been apphed m these financial 

statements, were m issue but not yet effedrve 

/FRS 3 (revised}, SuSJness Combinations and amendments to /AS 
27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements The standard 
continues lo apply the acqu1srbon method to business combinations wdh 
some significant changes For example all acqutslbon related costs \.\'Ill 
be expensed, all payments to purchase a busmess will be recorded at 
fair value at the acqu1srt1on date, wrth conbngent payments subsequently 
re-measured at fair value through the mcome statement There are also 
changes to the reporting of non-controll1ng interest These rev1S10ns will 
have an 1mpad on the way 1n wt11ch the Group reports all future 
business combmat10ns 

The impact of adoption of the following new, revised, amended and 
improved published standards and interpretations m future penods 
wh1Ch were also 1n issue at the date of authonsallon of these 
Financial Statements, 1s under assessment 

IFRS 9, Fmanc1al Instruments subject to EU endorsement 

/AS 24 (revised}, Related Party Disclosures subject to EU 
endorsement, 

Amendment to IFRIC 14, /AS 19 - The L1m1t on a Defined Benefit 
Asset, Mm1mum Fundmg Requ11ements and their Interaction, 
subiect to EU endorsement, 

IFRIC 19, Extmguish1ng Fmanc1al L1ab1/1hes wrth Equity 
Instruments, subject to EU endoroement, and 

Improvements to JFRSs 2010 subject to EU endorsement 

The Directors ant1c1pate that the adoption of the following new, 
revised amended and improved published standards and 
interpretations 1n future periods which were also 1n issue at the date 
of authonsat1on of these Financial Statements, will have no material 
impact on the Fmanc1al Statements of the Group 

IFRS 1 (revised), F1r..:;t time adopt/On offFRS, 

Amendments to JFRS 1 F1r..:;t time adoptton of JFRS, subject 
to EU endorsement, 

Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based payment, 

Amendment to IAS 32, Fmanc1al Instruments Presentatton, 

Amendment to IA S 39, Fmanc1al Instruments Recogmbon 
and Measurement, and 

IFRIC 17, D1stnbutlons of Non-cash Assets to Owne1S, 

Cnt1cal accounting estimates and Judgements 1n applying 
accounting pohc1es 
The following commentary 1s intended to h1ghhght those pohc1es 
hat are critical to the business based on the level of management 
Judgement required m their apphcat1on, the1r complexrty and their 
potential impact on the results and financial posrt1on reported for 
the Group The level of management judgement required includes 
assumptions and estimates about future events which are uncertam, 
the actual outcome of which may result ma materially different 
outcome from that ant1c1pated 

Revenue and profit recogn11Jon 
The estnnat10n process required to evaluate the potential outcome 
of contracts and projeds requires skill, kn()\f\,lledge and expenence 
from a vanety of sources wrthin the business to assess the status 
of the contrad, costs to complete mtemal and external labour resources 
required and other factors This process IS earned out conllnuously 
throughout the business to ensure that proiect and contract 
assessments reflect the latest status of such work No profrt IS 

recogmsed on a contract until the outcome can be rehably estimated 
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Business comb1nat1ons 
Intangible assets recogmsed on business comb1nat1ons have been 
valued using established methods and models to determine estimated 
value and useful economic lrfe, wrth input, where appropriate, from 
external valuation consultants Such methods require the use of 
estimates which may produce results that are different from actual 
future outcomes 

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any 
1mpa1rment This process 1s reliant on the use of estimates of the 
future profrtabdrty and cash flows of Its cash-generating umts which 
may differ from the actual results deltvered The Group add1t1onally 
reviews whether identified intangible assets have suffered any 
1mpa1rment 

Post-retirement benefits 
The Group's defined benefit pension obligations and net income 
statement costs are based on key assumptions including return 
on plan assets, discount rates, mortallly, inflation and future 
salary and pension increases Management exercises their best 
judgement, in consultation wrth actuarial advisors, in selecting 
the values for these assumptions that are the most appropriate 
to the Group Small changes m these assumptions at the balance 
sheet date, 1ndrvldually orcollectrvely may result m s1gnlf1eant 
changes m the size of the defier! or the net income statement costs 

Research and development expenditure 
Internally-funded development expenditure 1s caprtalised when 
cntena are met (see page 51) and 1s wrrtten off over the forecast 
penod of sales resulting from the development Management 
decides upon the adequacy of future demand and potential market 
for such new products in order to justify cap1tal1sation of mtematty­
funded development expenditure These can be difficult to 
determine when dealing with mnovat1ve technologies Actual 
product sales may differ from these estimates 

Tax 
In determinmg the Group's prov1s1ons for income tax and deferred 
tax 11 1s necessary to assess the likelihood and timing of recovery 
of tax losses created and to consider transa.ct1ons in a small 
number of key tax jur1sd1ct1ons for which the ultimate tax 
determmat1on 1s uncertain To the extent that the final outcome 
differs from the tax that has been provided adjustments will be 
made to income tax and deferred tax prov1s1ons held 1n the penod 
the detenmnat1on 1s made 

Unquoted equity investments 
The Group usually Judges the fair value of unquoted equrty 
investments using the valuation ascribed to the investment 
by a third-party funding round or S1m1lar valuation event for that 
investment In detennining the value of an investment the Group 
may use mformat1on from funding rounds, business plans and 
forecasts market pro1ect1ons and other est1mat1on techniques, 
including management estimates, as a guide These valuation 
techniques require estimates of the business's future performance 
The actual business performance of investments may drffer from 
these estimates 
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2. Revenue 

Revenue and other income 1s analysed as follows 

Year ended 31 March 

all figures in £ million 

Sales of goods 
Services 

Revenue 

Property rental income 

3. Segmental analysis 

Business segments 
Year ended 31 March 201 O 

all figures in£ rn1ll1on 

Revenue 

External sates(11 

Other 1nformat1on 
EBITDA before share of equrty accounted pint ventures and assocrates 
Share of equrty accoun1ed JOmt ventures and associates 

EBITDA before restructuring 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Amor11sat1on of purchased or internally developed mtang1ble assets 

Group operating prof1t/(loss) before acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on and 
spec1f1c non~recurnng 1tems121 

EMEA reorganisation 
lmpamnent of plant, property and equipment 
Amort1sat1on of intangible assets arising from acqu1S1t1ons 
Impairment of intangible assets 

Group operating (loss)/prof1t 
(Loss)/gain on business divestments and unrealised unpa1rment of 
investments 
Net finance expense 

Profit/(loss) before tax 
Taxation 

Profit/( loss) for the year 

(l) There were internal sales of £12 Sm from ONA to EMEA dur111g the year 

QinetlQ 
North 

America 

800 1 

74 3 
0 1 

744 
(5 7) 

67 7 

(20 2) 
(42 2) 

53 

Europe, 
Maddie East & 

Australasia 

818 8 

98 5 
0 1 

98 6 
(289) 

(86) 

611 
(421) 
(230) 

(5 9) 
(79) 

(178) 

. . : ... 

2010 

157 9 
1,467 5 

1,625 4 

69 

Ventures 

65 

(6 3) 

(6 3) 
(0 4) 
(1 8) 

(8 5) 

(1 0) 

(3 3) 

(12 8) 

2009 

216 3 
1.401 0 

1,617 3 

79 

Total 

1,625 4 

1665 
02 

1667 
(36 0) 
(104) 

1203 
(42 1) 
(24 0) 
(261) 
(53 4) 

(25 3) 

(6 2) 
(346) 

(661) 
28 

(63 3) 

!l) Group operatmg proflt/(loss) before acquisition amort1sat1on ts stated before specrfic non recurring items These compnse the EMEA reorgan1sat1on costs and 
1mpamnent of plant property and equipment and 111tang1ble assets This IS the measure of profit presented to the chief operating decision maker 
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F1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

3. Segmental analysis (con11nuec) 

Business segments 

Year ended 31 March 2009 

all figures in£ mllhon 

Revenue 

External sales(•> 

Other 1nformat1on 
EBITDA before share of equity accounted JOmt ventures and associates 
Share of equity accounted pint ventures and associates 

EBITDA 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Amort1sahon of purchased or internally developed mtang1ble assets 

Group operating prof1U(loss) before acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on 

Amort1sat1on of intangible assets ansmg from acqu1sit1ons 

Group operating profiU(loss) 
Gam on busmess divestments and unreahsed 1mpa1rment or mvestments 
Net finance expense 

Profit before tax 
Taxatron 

Profit for the year 

<
1
> There were internal sales of £4 Om from ONA to EMEA dunng the year 

Om et IQ 
North 

Amenca 

765 6 

89 5 

89 6 
(6 5) 

83 0 

(18 0) 

65 0 

Europe 
Middle East & 

Australasia Total 
(restatedi11 Ventures (restated)121 

842 3 94 1,617 3 

118 1 (6 4) 201 2 
(7 2) (7 2) 

118 1 (13 6) 194 0 
(26 7) (0 3) (33 5) 

(7 2) (1 7) (8 9) 

94 2 (15 6) 151 6 

(55) (23 5) 

78 7 (15 6) 128 1 
73 

(21 4) 

114 0 
(20 4) 

93 6 

w Restatement relates to the transfer of the finance element of the IAS 19 pension cost totalling a £3 4m net credit to the income statement to the finance 
income and expense lines This was prev10usly reported 1n other operating costs 

Year ended 31 March 2010 

QlnetlQ Europe, 
North Middle East & 

all figures in£ million America Australasia Ventures Unallocated Consolidated 

Segment assets .. 8981 638 2 16 0 1,552 3 
Segment 1Jab1ht1es 

. 
(1506) (4640) (66) (621 2) 

Unallocated net debt (note 30) (4574) (467 4) 

Net assets 747 5 174 2 94 (4574) 473 7 

Other 1nformat1on 
Capital expenditure - own equ1pmenr 90 10 9 1 3 21 2 
Capital expenditure - L TPA funded~ 91 91 

Total capital expenditure 90 200 1 3 303 
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3 Segmental analysis (continued) 

Year ended 31 March 2009 

Ometia Europe 
North Middle East & 

all figures in£ m1lhon Amen ca Australasia Ventures Unallocated Consolidated 

Segment assets 983 8 748 8 311 1,763 7 
Segment llabll1t1es (160 8) (459 4) (2 9) (623 1) 
Unallocated net debt (note 30) (537 9) (537 9) 

Net assets 823 0 289 4 282 (537 9) 602 7 

Other information 
Capital expenditure- own equipment* 9 1 10 B 02 20 1 
Capital expenditure - LTPA 1ur.ded• 12 3 12 3 

Total capital expenditure 9 1 231 02 32 4 

+Segment assets and llab1ht1es exclude unallocated net debt 
• Gap1tal expend1tlJre 1s defined as cash paid for property plant and equipment adcht:Klns and purchased and internally developed intangible assets 

Revenue by maior customer type 
Year ended 31 March 2010 

QlnetiQ Europe, 
North Mtddle East & 

an figures in £ m1111on America Australasia Ventures Consolidated 

UK Government 614 1 04 6145 
US Government 743 2 10 3 06 7541 
Other 56 9 194 4 55 2568 

Total 800 1 818 8 65 1,626 4 

Year ended 31 March 2009 

QmetlO Europe 
North Middle East & 

all figures m £million Amer1ea Australasia Ventures Consolidated 

UK Government 638 7 638 7 
US Government 716 1 4 1 1 2 721 4 
Other 495 199 5 82 257 2 

Total 7656 842 3 94 1,617 3 

Revenue by customer location 

Year ended 31 March 

all figures 1n £ m1111on 2010 2009 

North Amenca 825 3 787 5 
United Kingdom 720 0 772 9 
Other 80 1 569 

Total 1,625 4 1,617 3 

Q1net1Q Group pie Annual Report and Accounb 2010 57 

Pr112_R!Mew 1ndd 57 14J06/2010 17 431 



I ,····· ·-
F1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

4 (Loss)/prof1t before tax 

The following Items have been charged m arnvmg at (loss)/profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 

all figures 1n £ m1i11on 2010 

Fees payable to the auditor 
- Statutory audit 1 0 
-Audit of the Company s subs1d1anes pursuant to leg1slat1on 0 1 
- Other services supplied pursuant to leg1slat1on 
- Other services relating to taxation 0 1 
- Other services 04 

Total auditor's remuneration 1 6 

Inventories recogmsed as an expense 76 9 
Deprec1at1on of property, plant and equipment 
- Ov\lned assets before 1mpa1rment 351 
- Ov.ined assets 1mpa1rment 24 0 
- Under finance lease 
Foreign exchange gains 02 
Research and development expenditure - customer funded contracts 418 3 
Research and development expenditure - Group funded 73 

The following rtems have been charged m arnvmg at (loss)/profit before tax m the column trtled 'acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on and specific 
non-recurring items' 

all figures m £ m1ll1on ""' 2010 

EMEA reorgan1sat1on costs111 (421J 
Impairment of plant property and equipment 14 (24 OJ 
Amort1sat1on of 1ntang1ble asset ansmg on acqu1s1t1ons 12 (26 1 J 
Impairment of mtang1ble asset 12 (3 3J 
Impairment of goodwi1112

> " (501J 

Total goodwill and 1ntang1ble 1mpa1rment and acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on (79 5J 
Gam/(loss) on business divestment 5 1 
Unrealised 1mpa1rment of investment (11 3J 

Gam/(loss) on business divestment and unrealised 1mpa1rment of investment (6 2J 

Total non-recurring items before tax (151 BJ 

2009 

1 1 
0 1 
0 1 
0 1 

1 4 

91 8 

33 5 

05 
457 0 

11 5 

2009 

(23 SJ 

(23 5J 
13 0 
(5 7J 

73 

(16 2J 

111 The EMEA reorganisation programme announced in May 2009 was largely completed this financial year The cost of this programme IS £42 1 m wt11ch has 
been expensed to the income statement this year as a non recurnng item the cash spent against this dunng the year was £35 4m 

121 The goodwill 1mpa1rment charge of£50 1 m arises in three Cash Generating Units (CGUs) Technology Solutions in QNA (£11 4m) M1ss1on Solutions 
m ONA (£30 Sm) and Australia in EMEA (£7 9m) 
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5. (Loss)/gain on business divestments and 1mpainnent of investments 

For the year ended 31 March 

all figures in£ mdhon 

Gain on business divestments 
Unrealised impairment of investments 

• • ••• 

2010 

51 
(11 3) 

(6 2) 

2009 

13 0 
(5 7) 

73 

The gam on business divestments m the year relates to the disposal of two businesses On 30 September 2009 the Group disposed of the 
Underwater Systems business, a div1s1on of CmetlO L1m1ted, to Atlas Elektronik UK L1mrted for a cons1derat1on before costs of £23 Sm which 
resulted m a profit on drsposal of £6 9m On 31 July 2009 the CalJbratJOn business of the Group, mcludmg ASAP Cahbrallon Ltd, was sold for 
proceeds before costs of £0 4m and resulted 1n a loss on disposal of £1 am 

The current year 1mpa1rment of investments and associated committed costs relates to a £11 3m (2009 £5 7m) charge m respect of the 
1mpa1rment m the carrying value of investments held for sale 

The pnor year gain on business divestments of £130m compnses £3 Sm of profit on the disposal of a sales contract by QNA's Mission 
Solutions business and a £9 Sm profit on the disposal of part of the Cody Gate Ventures LLP (formerly Qmel1Q Ventures LLP) which was 
held as an equity investment 

6. Finance income and expense 

For the year ended 31 March 

2009 
all figures m £million 2010 (restated)" 

Receivable on bank deposrts 04 1 0 
Finance lease income 1 4 1 6 
Expected return on pension scheme assets 46 3 56 5 

Finance income 48 1 591 

Amortisation of recapdahsat1on fee (07) (0 3) 
Payable on bank loans and overdrafts (7 9) (13 8) 
Payable on US dollar pnvate placement debt 1232) (10 7) 
Finance lease expense (11) (1 4) 
Unwmdmg of discount on financial habllrties (1 0) (1 2) 
Interest on pension scheme hab111!1es 1488) (53 1) 

Finance expense 1827) (80 5) 

Net finance expense 134 6) (21 4) 

"Restatement relates to the transfer of the finance element of the IAS 19 pension cost totalling a net £3 4m credit to the income statement, to the finance 
income and expense Imes This was previously reported mother operating costs 
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Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

7. Taxation 

2010 2009 
Before 2010 Before 2009 

acquisition Acquisition acqLIISltlOn Acqws1t1on 
amorUsabon amortisation amorllsat10n amort1sat10n 
and specific and specific and specific and specrt"ic 

non· noo· non- non-
recumng recurring 2010 recurring recumng 2009 

all figures 1n £. mdllon Items ltoms Total rte ms items Total 

Analysis of charge 
UK corporation tax 
overseas corporation tax 16 7 (8 8) 79 29 (5 8) (2 9) 

Total corporation tax 16 7 (8 8) 79 29 (5 8) (2 9) 
Deferred tax (3 6) (69) (10 5) 23 1 (0 5) 22 6 
Deferred tax m respect of pnor years (0 2) (02) 07 0 7 

Taxation (cred1t)/expense 129 (157) (28) 26 7 (6 3) 20 4 

Factors affecting the tax charge 1n year 
The pnnc1pal factors reducmg the Group's current year tax 
charge below the UK statutory rate are explamed below 
(Loss)/profd before tax 85 7 (151 8) (661) 130 2 (16 2) 114 0 

Tax on (loss)/prof1t before tax at 28°/o (2009 28°/o) 240 (42 6) (185) 364 (4 5) 31 9 
Effect of 
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, research and 
development relief and non-taxable items (19 6) 294 98 (17 8) (0 1) (17 9) 
Unprovided tax losses of overseas subs1d1anes JOtnt 
ventures and associates (01) (0 1) 1 4 1 4 
Movements in unrecognised deferred tax assets 
1n respect of tax losses 61 61 07 07 

@ Deferred tax m respect of pnor years (0 2) (0 2) 09 09 
Effect of different rates m overseas JUr1sd1ct1ons 27 (2 6) 0 1 5 1 (1 7) 34 

Taxation (credrt)/expense 12 9 (15 7) (2 8) 26 7 (63) 20 4 

The effedNe tax rate on acquis1t1on amortisation and specific non-recurnng items m 2010 1s lower than the Group rate as most of the 
elements do not attract tax rehef The tax rate on acqu1s1t1on amort1sat1on and specific non-recurring items m 2009 exceeds the overall 
Group tax rate as II pnmanly relates to items subject to the higher US tax rate 

Factors affecting future tax charges 
The effectNe tax rate continues to be below the statutory rate m the UK primanty as a result of the benefit of research and development 
rehef 1n the UK The effective tax rate 1s expected to remain below the UK statutory rate in the medium term subject to any future tax 
leg1slat1on changes 
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8. Dividends 

An analysis of the d1v1dends paid and proposed 1n respect of the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009 are provided below 

Interim 2010 
Final 2010 (proposed) 

Total for the year ended 31 March 2010 

Interim 2009 
Final 2009 

Total for the year ended 31 March 2009 

9. Analysis of employee costs and numbers 

Pence per 
share 

1 58 

1 58 

1 50 
3 25 

4 75 

£m Date paid/payable 

10 4 Feb 2010 

10 4 

98 Feb 2009 
21 3 Sep 2009 

31 1 

The largest component of operating expenses IS employee costs The year-end and average monthly number of persons employed by the 
Group mcludmg Directors, analysed by business segment, was 

Omet1Q North America 
Europe, Middle East & Australasia 
Ventures 
Corporate 

Total 

The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows 

all figures in £ m1lllon 

Wages and satanes 
Social security costs 
Other pension costs 
Cost of share-based paymenls 

Employee costs before EMEA reorgan1sat1on costs 
EMEA reorgamsat1on costs 

Total employee costs 

Year end 31 March 

2010 
Number 

6,178 
6,760 

65 
76 

13,078 

2009 
Number 

6,348 
7 565 

68 
79 

14,060 

""' 

33 

Monthly average 

2010 2009 
Number Number 

6,316 6,167 
7,141 7,570 

66 66 
81 79 

13,604 13,882 

2010 2009 

576 1 568 2 
62 1 53 4 
44 6 46 6 
68 56 

680 6 673 8 
421 

722 7 673 8 

The 2010 EMEA reorgan1sat1on costs principally compnse the headcount rectuct1on programme announced on 21 May 2009 
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Fmanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

10. Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by div1drng the profit altnbutable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of ordrnary 
shares 1n issue during the year The weighted average number of shares used excludes those shares bought by the Group and held as own 
shares (see note 32) For drluted earnings per share the weighted average number of shares rn issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all 
potentially d1luhve ordmary shares arising from unvested share-based awards rnclud1ng share options Underlying basic earnrngs per share 
figures are presented below m addition to the basic and diluted earnings per share as the Directors consider this gives a more relevant 
rnd1cat1on of underlymg business performance and reflects the adjustments to basic earnmgs per share for the impact of spec1f1c 
non-recurring items, amortisation of acquired mtan91ble assets and tax thereon 

For the year ended 31 March 

2010 2009 

Basic EPS 
(Loss)/profrt attnbutable to equity shareholders £m (63 3) 93 6 
Weighted average number of shares m1lhcn 653 5 652 7 

Basic EPS pence (9 7) 14 3 

Diluted EPS 
(loss)fproflt attributable to equity shareholders £m (633) 936 
Weighted average number of shares md11on 653 5 652 7 
Effect of dilutive secunt1es• million 28 

Diiuted number of shares million 653 5 6555 

Diluted EPS pence (97) 14 3 

Underlying basic EPS 
(Loss)fprofrt attributable to equity shareholders £m (63 3) 93 6 
Reorganisation costs £m 421 
(Gam)/loss on busmess divestments, disposals and unreahsed 1mpa1rment 
of mvestments £m 62 (7 3) 
Impairment of property plant and equipment £m 24 0 
Amort1sahon of 1ntan91ble assets ansmg from acqu1sit1ons and 1mpa1rment 
of mtan91ble assets £m 79 5 235 
Tax impact of Items above £m (157) (6 3) 

Underlying profit after taxation £m 72 8 103 5 

Weighted average number of shares m1111on 653 5 652 7 

Underlying basic EPS pence 111 15 9 

•The loss attnbutable to equity shareholders m the year ended 31 March 2010 results m no effect of d1lut1ve secunttes to the weighted average number of 
shares If there had been a profit m the year en dee 31 March 2010 the effect of d1lut1ve secunt1es would have been to increase the diluted number of shares 
by4 2m 
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11 Goodwill 

all figures in£ million ""' 2010 

Cost 
At 1 Apnl 639 0 
Acqurs1t1ons 13 19 1 
Foreign exchange {282) 

At 31 March 629 9 

Impairment 
At 1 April {06) 
Impairment 1n year {501) 
Foreign exchange 04 

At 31 March {502) 

Net book value at 31 March 579 7 

Goodwill at 31 March 2010 was allocated across seven cash generating units (CGUs) m ONA and EMEA In the year two CGUs 1n the 
EMEA business were amalgamated into one to reflect the way in wtuch these CGUs are managed and operated 

2009 

437 9 
37 9 

1632 

639 0 

{O 5) 

{O 5) 

638 6 

Goodwill is attributable to the excess of cons1derat1on over the fair value of net assets acquired and includes expected synergies, future 
growth prospects and staff knowledge, expertise, customer contacts and security clearances The Group tests goodwlll 1mpa1rment for each 
CGU annually or more frequently 1f there are 1nd1cat1ons that goodwill might be 1mpa1red 

Key assumptions 
The value m use calculations use discounted future cash flo'NS based on the most recent forecasts from the five-year corporate plan 
The five-year corporate plan 1s approved by the Board Cash flows for periods beyond this period are extrapolated based on the final year 
of the corporate plan, with a terminal growth rate assumption applied 

Terminal growth rates 
The specific plans for each of the CG Us have been extrapolated using a terrrnnal growth rate of 1 5% to 2 5% (2009 2 5% to 3 0%) Growth 
rates are formed based on management's estimates which take into cons1derat1on the long-term nature of the industry m which the CGUs 
operate and external forecasts as to the hkely growth of the industry in the longer term 

Discount rates 
The Group's weighted average cost of capital (VVACC) was used as a basis m determ1nmg the discount rate to be apphed adjusted for risks, 
specific to the geographical location of CGUs as appropnate on a pre-tax basis The pre-tax discount rate apphed for ONA CGUs was 
11 8%-12 1% and a range from 9 3%-16 9% for EMEA CGUs 

Impairment 
Them year 1mpa1rment charge of£50 1m anses m three CGUs Technology Solutions 1n ONA (£11 4rn), M1ss1on Solutions 1n ONA (£30 Sm), 
and Australia m EMEA (£7 Sm) 

Defence markets remam challenging as a result of the economic environment and both CGUs have seen a moderation m market growth 
expectations which has led the Group to re-evaluate the growth forecasts for the CGU, 1ncludmg the long term growth rate Addrt1onally, 
Technology Solutions m ONA has been affeded by the finahsation of the strategy for the US's continued involvement m Afghanistan and 
the completion of key Department of Defense (DoO) leadership appointments 

The Austrahan CGU 1mpa1rment reflects an overall moderation m anticipated market growth which has, m turn, had an impact on the growth 
assumptions for this CGU and an associated moderation m the terminal growth rate 
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Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

11. Goodwill (continued) 

S1gn1ficant CGUs 
Sen51t1vdy analysis shows that both the discount rate and growth rate assumptions are key components of the outcome of the recoverable 
amount 

The Technology Solutions CGU was 1mpa1red during the year by £11 4m If the discount rate assumption was increased by 1 % the 
impairment charge would have increased by £28 1m to £39 Sm or, conversely, should the discount rate have been 1% lower this would 
have given the CGU headroom of £28 3m Sensrt1vrty analysis shows that a move of up to 1% m the tennmal growth rate could result 1n 
an impairment of £33 am or headroom of £20 3m The resultmg carrying value of goodwill for th rs CGU at 31 March 2010 was £120 7m 

The Systems Eng1neenng CGU had headroom, wdh current assumptions, of £109 1 m The Group's sens1t1vdy analysis shows that the 
pre-tax discount rate would have to increase to 16 6% or the terminal growth rate to decline to (1 4)% to cause the carrying value of 
the CGU to exceed its recoverable amount The carrying value of goodWlllforth1s CGU as at 31 March 2010 was£161 4m 

During the perrod, the M1ss1on Solutions business was 1mpa1red by £30 Sm If discount rates were assumed to be 1% higher the 1mpa1rment 
charge would have increased by £53 4m to £a4 2m Conversely, rf discount rates were 1% lower the CGU would have had a headroom of 
£47 3m The sensd1vdy to terminal growth rates would imply that a decrease of 1% would result 1n a further 1mpa1rment of £43 am, or an 
increase of 1% would show the CGU wdh headroom of £32 9m The resulting carrying value of goodwill for this CGU at 31 March 2010 
was £240 4m 

In EMEA the Managed Services and Consulting CGUs have significant headroom An mcrease 1n edher the discount rate or decrease m the 
terminal growth rate by 1% would not cause the net operating assets to exceed therr recoverable amount 

The Technology Solutions CGU 1n EMEA has headroom, under current assumptions, of £21 7m 1f the discount rate was lo decrease 
or increase by 1%, the CGU would have headroom of £43 9m or £5 7m respectively Similarly, If terminal growth rates were to decrease 
or increase by 1 % , headroom would be £9 3m or £39 1 m respectrvely 

During the penod, the Australia CGU was 1mpa1red by £7 9m If discount rates were assumed to be 1% higher the impairment charge would 
have mcreased by £0 7m to £a 6m Conversely, rf discount rates were 1% lower the extent of the 1mpa1rment would have been reduced by 
£0 am to £7 1 m The sens1hv1ty to terminal growth rates would imply that a decrease of 1% would result m a further 1mpa1rment of £0 Sm or 
an mcrease of 1 % would reduce the 1mpa1rment by £0 6m 

The Directors have not 1dent1fred any other likely changes in other s1gnrf1eant assumptions smce 31 March 2010 and the s1gnmg of the 
financial statements that would cause the carrying value of the recognised goodwill to exceed ds recoverable amount 
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12. Intangible assets 

Year ended 31 March 201 O 

Acquired othu 
Intangible Development intangible 

all figures m £ million """ assets* '""' assets Total 

Cost 
At 1 Apnl 2009 221 5 10 9 34 4 266 8 
Add1tlons- mtemally developed 06 06 
Add1t1ons - purchased 56 56 
Addrhons - recognised on acqu1s1t1ons " 16 0 16 0 
Disposals (02) (43) (45) 
Disposals - recognised on drveslments (05) (08) (1 3) 
Transfers 21 14 35 
Foreign exchange (82) (0 2) (84) 

At 31 March 2010 228 8 134 36 1 278 3 

Amort1sabon and 1mpa1rment 
At 1 April 2009 86 0 45 12 1 102 6 
Amort1-a.at1on charge for the year 261 30 83 374 
Impairment m year 33 33 
Disposals (0 2) (3 1 J (3 3) 
Disposals - recogmsed on divestments (0 5) (04) (0 9) 
Foreign exchange (2 4) (01) (2 5) 

At 31 March 2010 109 2 73 20 1 136 6 

Net book value at 31 March 2010 119 6 61 16 0 141 7 

Year ended 31 March 2009 

Acquired Other 
mtang1ble Development mtan91ble 

all figures m £million "~' assets• "''" assets Total 

Cost 
At 1 Apnl 2008 119 4 10 7 31 8 161 9 
Addrtions - mtemally developed 02 0 1 03 
Additions - purchased 22 22 
Additions- recogmsed on acqu1s1t1ons " 53 4 534 
01spos'1ls (0 3) (0 1) (0 4) 
Forergn exchange 49 0 04 494 

At 31 March 2009 221 5 10 9 344 266 8 

Amort1satton and impairment 
At 1 April 2008 45 2 2 1 55 52 8 
Amort1sat1on charge for the year 23 5 24 65 32 4 
Disposals (0 1) (0 1) 
Foreign exchange 17 3 02 17 5 

At 31 March 2009 860 45 12 1 102 6 

Net book value at 31 March 2009 1355 64 22 3 164 2 

•Acquired intangible assets pnnc1pally consist of the value of attnbuted to customer contracts including orders, backlog and certain customer relat10nsh1ps 
a mmor element 1s attnbuted to technology patents/11cences and brand names No value IS atlnbuted to customer rela11onsh1ps where short·term contracts 
are held that are subject to regular re-compe!lllon 
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F1nanoal Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

13. Busmess combmat1ons 

In the year to 31 March 2010 the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Cyverllance, Inc If this acqu1s11ton had been completed 
as at 1 Apnl 2009 Group revenue for the year ended 31 March 2010 would have increased by £2 Om to £1,627 4m and Group loss before 
tax would have reduced by £0 1 m to £66 Om 

Acqu1s1t1ons in the year to 31 March 2010 

all figures m £ million 

Dato Cash Deferred 
Company acquired acquired conslderat1on< 11 cons1deration<4

f Goodwill 

QNA acqu1s1t1ons 
Cyve1llance, tnc 1July2009 261 04 19 1 

Current year acqu1s1t1ons 261 04 19 1 

Deferred cons1derat1on 1n respect 
of prior year acqu1s1t1ons1' 1 

ITS Corpora1ion 62 
Novare Services Pty Lid 04 
Spectro, Inc 08 
Dom1mon Technology Resources, Inc 12 8 

Total 46 3 04 19 1 

<
1
, Initial cash consideration includes acqws1t1on costs and pnce adjustments for working capital and net debt 

m Fair value of assets acquired are provtS1onal 

Contribution post-acquisition 

Fair value 
of assets Operating 
acqulredm Revenue profit 

74 59 09 

74 59 09 

74 59 09 

ui cash cons1derat1on paid m the year includes deferred cons1derat1on amounts 1n respect of pnor year acqu1s1t1ons as a result of payment cntena being met 
<
4
I Deferred oons1derat1on of £0 4m has been recognised on the acquisition of Cyve1llance Inc based upon the estimated payment to be made The maximum 
amount pciyable 1s S40m depending on the financial performance of Cyve1tlance 1n the t\Alo-year period ending 31 December 2010 

Set out below are the allocations of purchase cons1derat1on, assets and lrab111t1es of the acqu1srt1ons made m the year and the ad1ustments 
required to the book values of the assets and llab1ht1es 1n order to present the ne1 assets of these businesses at fair value and 1n accordance 
with Group accounting po\1e1es These allocat1ons and ad1ustments are provisional There were no adjustments to the provisional fair values 
at 31 March 2009 

Acqu1s1t1on 1n the year to 31 March 2010 

all figures m £ million 

Intangible assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Trade and other receivables 
Other current assets 
Trade and other payables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Deferred tax hab1bty 
Other hab1ht1es 

Net assets acquired 
Goodwill 

Cons1derat1on satisfied by 
Cash 
Deferred consideration 

Total cons1derat1on before costs 
Related costs of acqu1srt1on 

,~. Book value 

12 

" 04 
1 0 
07 

(02) 
07 ,. 

(49) 

(23) 

Fair value Fair value at 
adjustment acquisJbon 

16 0 160 
04 
10 
07 

(0 2) 
07 

(6 3) (63) 
(4 9) 

97 74 
191 

26 5 

256 
04 

260 
05 

26 5 

The fair value adjustments include £16 Om m relation to the recogmt1on of acquired mtang1ble assets less the recognllton of a deferred tax 
liab1hty of £6 3m 1n relation to these mtang1ble assets 
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13. Business combinations (continued) 

Acqu1s1t1ons 1n the year to 31 March 2009 

all figures in£ m1ll1on Contnbut1on post-acqu1srtion 

Fa Jr value 
Date Initial cash Deferred of assets Operating 

Company acquired acquired cons1derat1cn111 cons1derat10n GooctNlll acquired Revenue profit 

QNA acqu1srt1ons 
Spectro, Inc 23 July 08 62 05 22 45 59 09 
Dom1n1on Technology Resources, Inc 170ct08 74 2 22 6 33 6 632 16 0 1 6 
EMEA acqu1s1t1ons 
Commerce Decisions Ltd 13 Oct 08 12 5 64 6 1 24 1 0 

Current year acqu1s1t1ons 92 9 23 1 42 2 738 24 3 35 
Update 1n respect or acqu1srllons 
made 1n the year to 31 March 2009 (4 3) (43) 

Total 92 9 18 8 37 9 73 8 24 3 35 

11
> lnrtial cash cons1deratlon includes acquis1t1on costs and pnce adjustments for'NOrkmg capllal and net debt 

Set out belOIN are the allocations of purchase cons1derat1on, assets and habdrhes of the acqu1srllons made m the year and the adjustments 
required to the book values of the assets and hab1lrt1es in order to present the net assets of these businesses at fair value and 1n accordance 
with Group accounting pohcies 

Acqu1s1t1ons 1n the year to 31 March 2009 

all figures in£ million 

Intangible assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Deferred tax asset 
Trade and other receivables 
Other current assets 
Trade and other payables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Debt and other borrowings 
Deferred tax hab1trty 

Net assets acquired 
Goodwill 

Cons1derat1on satisfied by 
Cash 
Deferred cons1derat1on 

Tota I cons1derat1on before costs 
Related costs of acqu1s1tion 

Prl12_Re111ew lndd 67 

Fair value Fair value at 

""' Book value adjustment acqu1s1tion 

12 53 4 53 4 
t4 07 02 09 
24 34 6 34 6 

6 1 8 1 
1 7 1 7 

(7 3) (2 0) (9 3) 
37 37 

,. (19 3) (19 3) 

69 66 9 73 8 
42 2 

116 0 

89 6 
23 1 

112 7 
33 

116 0 
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Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

14. Property, plant and equipment 

Year ended 31 March 2010 

Plant, Computers 
Land and machinery and office Assets under 

all figures in£ m1ll1on buildings and vehicles equipment construction Total 

Cost 
At 1 Apnl 2009 302 2 136 6 62 5 24 4 625 7 
Additions 1 9 34 34 14 8 23 5 
Acqu1srtion of subs1d1aries 01 03 04 
Disposals (3 5) (1 0) (2 2) (48) (11 5) 
D1sposars - recognised on divestments (1 7) (2 8) (1 3) (5 8) 
Transfers 67 15 9 (3 0) (221) (3 5) 
Foreign exchange (0 1) (04) (0 9) (0 1) (1 6) 

At 31 March 2010 3046 151 7 58 8 12 2 527 3 

Oeprec1at1on 
At 1 Apn1 2009 545 90 1 38 7 1933 
Charge for the year 118 16 7 66 351 
Impairment 207 33 24 0 
Disposals (3 5) (1 0) (2 2) (6 7) 
Disposals - recognised on divestments (1 0) (1 8) (1 0) (3 8) 
Transfers 31 (0 1) (3 0) 
Foreign exchange (0 1) (0 1) 

At 31 M11rch 2010 956 107 2 39 0 241 8 

Net book value at 31 March 2010 2090 44 5 19 8 12 2 285 5 

Impairment of land and buildings of £20 7m relates to vacant owned properties wrthm the EMEA sector where there are no external tenants 
following vacancies ans1ng m the year Plant, machinery and vehicles 1mpa1rments of £3 3m relates to the impairment of assets which are 
no longer generating a return Both these 1mpa1rments relate to reductions m the carrying value of these assets lo their recoverable amounts 

Year ended 31 March 2009 

Plant, 
Land and machinery 

all figures m £ m~hon buildings and veh1Cles 

Cost 
At 1 Apnl 2008 306 8 115 5 
Additions 09 55 
Acqu1srtion of subsldranes 03 03 
Disposals (1 8) (0 8) 
Transfers (6 21 13 1 
Foreign exchange 22 30 

At 31 March 2009 302 2 136 6 

Deprecu1t1on 
At 1 April 2008 54 6 73 9 
Charge for the year 11 6 14 7 
Disposals (1 7) (0 6) 
Transfers (1 7) (0 3) 
Foreign exchange 1 7 24 

At 31 March 2009 64 5 90 1 

Net book value at 31 March 2009 237 7 46 5 

Assets held under finance leases, capitalised and included m computers and equipment, have 

a cost of £n1t (31 March 2009 £5 2m), 

aggregate depreciation of £ml (31 March 2009 £5 2m), and 

a net book value of £ml (31 March 2009 £ml) 

Computers 
and office Assets under 

equipment constructmn 

420 22 0 
4 5 18 2 
03 

(20) 
92 (161) 
85 0 3 

625 244 

25 4 
72 

(20) 
1 9 
62 

387 

238 24 4 

Total 

486 3 
291 
09 

(4 6) 

14 0 

525 7 

153 9 
33 5 
(4 3) 
(0 1) 
103 

193 3 

3324 

Under the terms of the Business Transfer Agreement wrth the MOO certain restrrchons have been placed on freehold land and bu1ldmgs, 
and certain plant and machinery related to them These restnchons are detailed m note 35 
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15. Other financial assets 

As at 31 March 

all f19ures 1n £ m1ll1on 

Oenvat1ve financial instruments 
Net investment 1n finance lease 

Total current financial assets 

Net investment m finance lease 
Denvatlve financial instruments 

Total non-current financial assets 

Total f1nanc1al assets 

16. Equity accounted investments 

Year ended 31 March 2010 

all figures m £ m11!1on 

Revenue 

Profit after tax 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 

Current hab111t1es 
Non-current lrab1ht1es 

Net assets 

Year ended 31 March 2009 

all figures 1n £ m1ll1on 

Revenue 

Loss after tax 

Non-current assets 
Current assets 

Current hab111t10s 
Non-current hab1l1t1es 

Net assets 

• • • •• 

2010 2009 

48 0 1 
30 30 

78 3 1 

10 0 11 6 

10 0 11 6 

17 8 14 7 

Joint ventures Group net share 
and associates of joint ventures 

financial results and associates 

18 9 59 

05 02 

1 2 04 
69 21 

8 1 25 
(4 7) (1 5) 
(0 2) (0 1) 

(4 9) (1 6) 

32 09 

Jo mt ventures Group net share 
and associates of J01nt ventures 
financial results and associates 

14 2 52 

(14 7) (7 2) 

07 02 
64 22 

7 1 24 
(3 5) (1 3) 
(1 5) (04) 

(5 0) (1 7) 

2 1 07 

The unrecognised share of losses of equity accounted mvestments at 31 March 2010 was £ml (31 March 2009 £m~ Ounng the 'iear ended 
31 March 2010 there were sales to J01nt ventures of £n1I (2009 £2 6m) and to associates of £2 7m (2009 £m~ At the 'iear end, there were 
outstanding receivables from 101nt ventures of £nd (2009 £ml) and £0 3m (2009 £ml) from assoQates There were no other related party 
transactions between the Group and its JOmt ventures and associates m the year 
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F1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

17 Other non-current investments 

all figures m £million 

Available for sale investments at 1 Apnl 
Cash (repa1d)/mvested 1n year 
Non-cash add1t1ons m year 
Impairment charged to income statement m yeat 
Foreign exchange 

Available for sale investments at 31 March 

2010 

15 7 

(108) 
(0 1) 

48 

2009 

14 7 
(06) 
56 

(50) 
1 0 

15 7 

Impairments m the year relate to four unquoted investments due to a declme m the future growth prospects of the markets m which these 
investments operate 

18. Inventories 

As at 31 March 

alt figures m £ m1ll1on 2010 2009 

Raw matenals 44 34 
Work m progress 32 8 26 4 
Fm1shed goods 42 6 38 5 

79 8 68 3 

Included m work m progress 1s an amount of £30 Bm (2009 £19 6m) relating to deferred pre-contract costs relating to the DTR programme 
which are recoverable m more than one year 

19 Trade and other receivables 

As at 31 March 

all figures m £ m1lhon 

Trade debtors 
Amounts recoverable under contracts 
Other debtors 
Prepayments 

2010 2009 

213 0 331 2 
180 7 1691 

99 148 
20 2 17 8 

423 8 532 9 

In determmmg the recoverab1hty of trade receivables, the Group considers any changes 1n the credit quality of the trade receivable from 
the date credit was granted up to the reporting date Credit nsk IS hm1ted due to the htgh percentage of tumover bemg denved from UK and 
US defence and other government agencies Accordingly, the Directors behave there 1s no further credit prov1s1on required m excess of the 
allowance for doubtful debts As at 31 March 2010, the Group earned a prov1s1on for doubtful debts of £8 Bm (2009 £5 9m) 

Ageing of past due but not impaired receivables 

all figures m £ m1lhon 

Up to 3 months 
Over 3 months 
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2010 

29 4 
28 

322 

2009 

836 
9 1 

92 7 
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19 Trade and other receivables (cont•n,ed) 

Movements on the Group doubtful debt prov1s1on 

all figures in £ m1lhon 

At 1 April 
Created 
Released 
Ut11Jsed 

At 31 March 

. . ' ... 

2010 

59 
56 

(27) 

BB 

2009 

62 
37 

(4 0) 

59 

The maximum exposure to credrt nsk m relation to trade receivables at the reporting date 1s the fair value of trade receivables The Group 
does not hold any collateral as security 

20 Current asset investments 

As at 31 March 

all figures in£ m1lhon 2010 2009 

Available for sale investment 23 06 

At 31 March 2010 the Group held a 4 9% shareholdmg m pS1v1da Limited (31 March 2009 4 9%) a company listed on NASDAQ and the 
Australian and Frankfurt Stock Exchanges The mvestment 1s held at fair value of £2 3m (2009 £0 6m) using the closing share price at 
31 March 2010 of A$4 20 per share (31 March 2009 A$1 30 per share) Dunng the year, the mcrease m value of £1 7m (2009 reduction 
£0 7m) has been recognised as a gain m the statement of comprehensive income 

21. Cash and cash equivalents 

As at 31 March 

all f1gures in£ mllhon 

Cash 
Cash equivalents 

Total cash and cash equivalents 

2010 

57 2 
67 

63 9 

At 31 March 2010, £4 4m (31 March 2009 £4 Sm) of cash was held by the Group's captive insurance subs1d1ary mcludmg £3 Sm 
(2009 £3 Sm) which 1s restncted m Its use 

22 Trade and other payables 

As at 31 March 

all figures 1n £ m1lllon 2010 

Payments received on account 69 9 
Trade creditors 480 
Other tax and social security 36 9 
Other creditors B7 3 
Accruals and deferred income 164 3 

Total current trade and other payables 396 4 

Payments received on account 23 7 
Other payables 11 5 

Total non-current trade and other payables 35 2 

Total trade and other payables 431 5 

2009 

128 2 
133 9 

2621 

2009 

82 8 
71 3 
369 
664 

189 8 

447 2 

293 
19 4 

48 7 

495 9 
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Fmanoal Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

23. Prov1s1ons 

Year ended 31 March 201 O 

all figures m £ million Reorganisation Other'11 Total 

At 1 April 2009 09 12 2 131 
Created m year 441 79 62 0 
Released m year (4 1) (41) 
Ut1hsed m year (354) (1 6) (37 0) 

At 31 March 2010 96 14 4 240 

Current hab1lrty 96 66 16 1 
Non-current hab1lrty 79 79 

At 31 March 2010 96 14 4 240 

111 Other prov1S10ns comprise legal, environmental property and other hab11it1es 

Year ended 31 March 2009 

all figures m £ m1!hon Reorganisat10n Other Total 

At 1 April 2008 29 3 16 4 45 7 
Created m year 63 63 
Released 1n year (1 1) (4 0) (5 1) 
Utll1sed m year (27 3) (65) (338) 

At 31 March 2009 09 12 2 13 1 

Current llabdrty 09 34 43 
Non-current hab1lrty 88 88 

At 31 March 2009 09 12 2 13 1 

24. Deferred tax 

Deferred lax assets and hab1ht1es are offset only where there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset and there 1s an mtent1on to settle the 
balances net 

Movements m the deferred tax assets and hab1ht1es are shown below 

Year ended 31 March 2010 
Deferred tax asset 

all figures m £ m1lhon 

At 1 Apnl 2009 
Created 
Prior year adjustment 
Foreign exchange 
Transfer 

Gross deferred tax asset at 31 March 201 O 
Less llab1hty available for offset 

Net deferred tax asset at 31 March 2010 
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Pension 
liability 

29 4 
11 8 

41 2 

Hedging 

66 
(29) 

37 

other Total 

22 0 580 
64 15 3 
1 3 1 3 

(1 1) (1 1) 
68 68 

35 4 80 3 
(51 6) 

28 7 
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24 Deferred tax (cont nuedl 

The net deferred tax asset created 1n the year relating to the penslOn ltabllrty includes £16 9m released to equity (2009 £34 1m released 
to equity} 

Deferred tax llab1llty 

all figures m £ mrll1on 

At 1 April 2009 
Acqu1sll1ons 
Created 
Prior year adjustment 
Foreign exchange 

Gross deferred tax hab1hty at 31 March 201 O 
Less asset available for offset 

Net deferred tax hab1hty at 31 March 2010 

Accelerated tax 
depreclabon and 

amortisation 

(66 9) 
(6 3) 
10 2 
(11) 
1 7 

1624) 
61 6 

(10 8) 

Al the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of £117 1m (2009 £77 Sm) potentrally available for offset agamsl future profits 
No deferred tax asset has been recognised m respect of this amount due to uncertainty over the t1mmg of rts ut1hsat1on These losses can be 
earned forward indefinitely 

Year ended 31 March 2009 
Deferred tax asset 

all figures rn £ m1lhon 

At 1 Apnl 2008 
Created 
Pnor year adjustment 

Gross deferred tax asset at 31 March 2009 
Less hab1bty available for offset 

Net deferred tax asset at 31 March 2009 

Deferred tax hab1hty 

a" figures 1n £ mllhon 

Al 1 April 2008 
Acqu1s1t1ons 
Created 
Foreign exchange 

Gross deferred tax hab1hty at 31 March 2009 
Less asset available for offset 

Net deferred tax hab1hty at 31 March 2009 

25. Other financial habihties - current 

As at 31 March 

all f,gures in£ m1ll1on 

Bank overdraft 
Deferred financing costs 
Finance lease creditor 
Denvat1ve financial instruments 

Pension llabllity 

65 
22 9 

294 

Further analyS1s of the terms and maturity dates for financial llab1ht1es are set out 1n note 27 

Hedging 

12 
47 
07 

66 

Other 

11 8 
15 4 
(5 2) 

22 0 

2010 

32 
(07) 
28 
36 

89 

Total 

19 5 
43 0 
(4 5) 

68 0 
(580) 

Accelerated tax 
deprecrabon and 

amorttsat10n 

(50 3) 
15 3 

(26 2) 
(5 7) 

(66 9) 
58 0 

\6 9) 

2009 

(0 7) 
28 

20 0 

221 
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F1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

26. Other financial liabiht1es - non-current 

As at 31 March 

all figures in£ m1lhon 

Bank loan 
Deferred financing costs 

US $135m 5 44% private placement, repayable December 2013 
US $62m 7 13% pnvate placement repayable February 2016 
US $125m 5 5% pnvate placement, repayable December 2016 
US $238m 7 62% pnvate placement, repayable February 2019 
Fmance lease creditor 
Oenvatrve financial instruments 

2010 2009 

143 7 386 2 
109) (1 6) 

142 8 384 6 
90 4 95 5 
41 9 43 3 
83 4 880 

161 0 166 2 
97 11 4 
1 0 36 

630 2 792 6 

The bank loan reflects draw-downs under the Revolving Credit Fac1l1ty compnsmg loans of US$210m and €6m After the effect of interest 
rate swaps the loan has an average ftxed rate of 4 35% until September 2010, when 11 returns to floating rate 

All the US private placements have been issued as fixed rate bonds and have not been converted to floating rate Further analysis of the 
terms and matunty dates for financial hab11Jt1es are set out in Nole 27 

27. Financial risk management 

The Groups 1nternat1onal operations and deb1 financing expose 11 to f1nanc1al nsks which include the effects of changes m foreign exchange 
rates, interest rates, credit nsks and hqu1d1ty nsks 

Capital, treasury and risk management pol1c1es are set by the Board, setting out specific guidelines on financial nsks and the use of financial 
instruments to manage nsk The instruments and techniques used to manage exposures include foreign currency denvatives and interest 
rate denvatrves Group treasury monitors financial nsks and comphance with nsk management policies These pohc1es are d1SCussed further 
in the Chief Financial Officer's review on pages 12-15 

A) Fair values of financial instruments 

Effectrve 1 Apnl 2009, the Group adopted the amendment to IFRS7, Financial Instruments Disclosures, for the financial instruments that are 
measured m the balance sheet at fair value This requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value 
measurement hierarchy 

Level 1 Quoted pnces (unadjusted) 1n active markets for 1dent1cal assets or habll1t1es, 

level 2 Inputs other than quoted pnces including within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hab1hty, either directly (1 e as prices) 
or indirectly (1 e denved from pnces). and 

level 3 Inputs for the assets or hab11lty that are not based on observable market data (1 e unobservable inputs) 

The following table presents the Group's assets and llab1ht1es that are measured at fair value at 31 March 2010 

, .. Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2010 Total 

Assets 
Current denvative financial instruments " 48 48 
Current other investments 20 23 23 
Non current other mvestments 17 48 48 

L1ab1ht1es 
Current derrvatrve financ1al instruments 25 13 6) 13 6) 
Non-current derrvat1ve f1nanc1al mstruments 26 11 0) 11 0) 

Total 23 02 48 73 
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27. F1nanc1al risk management (continued) 

For cash and cash equ1Valents, trade and other receivables and bank and current borrowings, the fair value of the financial instruments 
approximate to their carry mg value due to the short maturity periods of these financial instruments For trade and other receivables 
allowances are made w1thm the carrying value for credit risk For other financial instruments, the fair value 1s based on market value, 
where available Where market values are not available, the fair values have been calculated by discounting cash flows to net present 
value using prevallmg market-based interest rates translated at the year-end rates, except for unlisted fixed asset investments where 
a fair value equals carrying value 

All fmanctal assets and llab1ht1es have a fair value 1dent1cal to book value at 31 March 201 O and 31 March 2009 except where noted below 

As at 31 March 2010 

Fmanc1al 
asset fair 

value Financial 
through l1ab1httes at Derivatives Total 
income Available loans and amortised used as carrying Total fair 

all figures m £ m1llmn ""' statement for sale receivables cost hedges value value 

F1nanc1al assets 
Non-current 
Net mvestment m finance lease 31 10 0 10 0 11 4 
Equity accounted mvestments 16 09 09 09 
Other mvestments 17 4B 4B 4B 
Current 
Derivative financial instruments 15 4B 4B 4B 
Net investment m finance leases 31 30 30 30 
Trade and other receivables 19 423 B 423 B 423B 
Investments 20 23 23 23 
Cash and cash equivalents 21 63 9 63 9 639 

4B BO 500 7 513 5 6149 

F1nanc1al hab1ht1es 
Non-current 
Trade and other payables 22 (35 2) (35 2) (35 2) 
Derivative financial instruments 26 (1 0) (1 0) (1 0) 
Bank and other borrowmgs 26 (519 5) (619 6) (552 7) 
Fmance lease 31 (9 7) (9 7) (10 7) 
Current 
Trade and other payables 22 (3964) (396 4) (396 4) 
Derivative financial instruments 25 (3 6) (3 6) (36) 
Finance lease 31 (2 B) (2 B) (2B) 
Bank overdraft and finance costs 25 (2 5) (2 5) (25) 

(966 1) (4 6) (970 7) (1,004 9) 

Total 4B BO 500 7 (9661) (4 6) (457 2) (490 0) 

Q1net1Q Group pie Annual Report and Accmints 2010 75 

Prl12_Review 1ndd 75 14106!2010 17 441 



Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued} 

27. Financial risk management (continued) 

As at 31 March 2009 

F1nancKil 
asset fair 

value Fmanc1al 
through l1abi11t1es at Derivatives Total 
mcome Available Loans and amortised used as carrvmci Total fair 

all figures m £million ""' statement for sale recervables "°'' hedges value value 

F1nanc1al assets 
Non-current 
Net investment m finance lease 31 11 6 11 6 12 3 
Equdy accounted investments 16 07 07 07 
Other investments 17 15 7 15 7 15 7 
Current 
Derivative financial instruments " 0 1 0 1 0 1 
Net investment m finance leases 31 30 30 30 
Trade and other receivables " 532 9 532 9 532 9 
Investments 20 06 06 06 
Cash and cash equivalents 21 262 1 262 1 262 1 

01 17 0 809 6 826 7 827 4 

F1nanc1al hab1l1t1es 
Non-current 
Trade and other payables 22 (48 7) (48 7) (48 7) 
Derivative financial instruments 26 (36) (3 6) (3 6) 
Bank and other borrowings 26 (777 6) (777 6) (756 8) 
Finance lease 31 (11 4) (11 4) (11 2) 
Current 
Trade and other payables 22 (447 2) (447 2) (447 2) 
Derivative financial instruments 25 (200) (20 0) (20 0) 
Finance lease 31 (2 8) (2 8) (2 8) 
Bank overdraft and finance costs 25 0 7 07 07 

(1,287 0) (236) (1,310 6) (1,289 6) 

Total 0 1 17 0 8096 (1,287 0) (236) (4839) (462 2) 

Market values, where available, have been used to determine fair values Where market values are not available, fair values have been 
calculated by discounting cash flows to net present values using preva1lrng market-based interest rates translated at year-end exchange 
rates, except for unlisted fixed asset investments where a fair value equals book value 
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27. Financial risk management (can11nuedJ 

B) Interest rate risk 

The Group operates an mterest rate policy designed lo opt1m1se interest cost and reduce volat1lrty m reported earnings The Group's current 
policy 1s to require rates to be fixed for 30-80% of the level of borrowings, but wrth a maximum 100% fixed for no more than 12 months 
Thts 1s achieved pnmanty through fixed rate borrowmgs, and also through the use of interest rate swaps Al 31 March 2010 98% (2009 73%) 
of the Group's borrowings were at fixed rates, after ad1ustmg for interest rate swaps 

F1nanc1al assets/(l1abtl1t1es) 

As at 31 March 2010 

Financial asset Financial liability 

Fixed or Non-tnterest Fixed or Non-interest 
all figures in £ m1ll1on capped Floating beanng capped Floating beanng 

Sterlmg 13 0 553 105 (12 5) (0 3J (0 BJ 
US dollar 44 (615 2) (0 1) (3 BJ 
Euro 1 4 (5 2) 
Australian dollar 1 B 23 (1 2) 

13 0 539 12B (5277) (6BJ (4 6J 

As at 31 March 2009 

Financial asset Financial l1ablhty 

Fixed or Non-interest Fixed or Non-mterest 
all figures m £ m1lhon capped Floating beanng """"" Floating beanng 

Sterlmg 14 6 2161 165 (14 2) (97 7J (18 5) 
US dollar 42 6 (5811) (696J (5 1J 
Euro 1 4 (11 GJ 
Austrahan dollar 20 06 (16 9J 

14 6 2521 171 (695 3) (195BJ (23 6J 

Floatmg rate financial assets attract mterest based on the relevant national UBID equivalent Floating rate financial hab1lrt1es bear interest 
at the relevant national LIBOR equivalent Trade and other rece1vables/(payables) are excluded from this analysis 

For the fixed or capped rate financial assets and llab1ht1es, the average mterest rates (mclud1ng the relevant marginal cost of borrowing) 
and the average period for which the rates are fo:ed are 

2<110 2009 

Weighted Weighted 
Fixed or average Weighted Fixed or average Weighted 
capped 1ntarest rate average years """"" interest rate average years 

£m % to maturity £m % to maturity 

Fmanc1al assets 
Sterling 13 0 13 4°10 55 14 6 13 4% 65 

Fmancial habdrt1es 
Sterlmg (125J 12 1°10 55 (14 2J 12 1% 65 
US dollar (515 2J 59°k 4B (5811J 58% 55 

(5277J 61°k 4B (595 3J 59% 55 

Sterling assets and llab1llt1es consist primarily of finance leases with the weighted average interest rate reflecting the mternal rate of return 
of those leases 

Interest rate nsk management 
The ma1onty of the Group's bank and private placement borrowmgs were fixed through a combination of interest rate swaps and fixed rate 
debt The notional pnnetpal amount of the outslandmg interest rate swap contracts at 31 March 2010 was £138 4m or US$210m (31 March 
2009 £188 1m or US$270m) The swaps have the economic effect of converting floating rate US dollar borrowmgs mlo fo:ed rate US dollar 
borrowings and are accounted for as cash fJO'v\I hedges 
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F1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

27. Financial risk management (continued) 

C) Currency risk 

Transactional currency exposure 
The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency risks ans1ng from sales or purchases by businesses in currencies other than their functional 
currency It 1s Group pohcy that when such a sale or purchase 1s certain, the net foreign exchange exposure 1s hedged usmg forward 
foreign exchange contracts Hedge accounting documentat10n and effectiveness testing are undertaken for all the Group's transactional 
hedge contracts 

The table below shows the Groups currency exposures, bemg exposures on currency transactions that give nse to net currency gains 
and losses recognised m the income statement Such exposures compose the monetary assets and hab11it1es of the Group that are not 
denommated in the funct10nal currency of the operating company involved, other than certain non-sterhng borrowmgs treated as hedges 
of net investments m overseas entities 

Functional currency of the operating company 

all figures in £ million 

31 March 2010- sterling 
31 March 2009 - ster1mg 

US dollar 

5 1 
56 

Net foreign currency monetary assetsf(l1ab1l1t1es) 

Euro Australian dollar 

14 
1 4 

4 1 
06 

Other 

04 
09 

The amounts shown m the table take into account the effect of the fo1Vo1ard contracts entered mto to manage these currency exposures 

Total 

11 0 
65 

The Group enters into forward foreign currency contracts to hedge the currency exposures that arise on sales and purchases denominated 
m foreign currencies, as the transaction occurs The pnnc1pat contract amounts of the outstanding forward currency contracts as at 31 March 
2010 against sterling are net US dollars sold of £6 2m ($9 4m) and net Euros sold of£ 12 5m (€14 1 m) 

Translabonal currency exposure 
The Group has significant investments 1n overseas operat1ons, particularly 1n the United States As a result, the sterhng value of the Groups 
balance sheet can be significantly affected by movement m exchange rates The Group seeks to mitigate the effect of these translational 
eirposures by matching the net investment rn overseas operations with borrowmgs denominated m their functional currencies unless the cost 
of such hedging activity is uneconomic This is achieved by borrowing m the local currency, or m some cases indirectly through the use of 
forward foreign exchange contracts 

Net investment hedges 
The Group had one €6 million currency loan designated as a net investment hedge at 31 March 2010, but no swap contracts Dunng the 
year the Group de-designated currency loans of $210m which had previously been used to hedge translational currency exposures, and 
entered mto offsetting currency swaps to eliminate any future exchange exposure ansmg from this loan 

D) Financial credit nsk 

The Group 1s exposed to credit related losses 1n the event of non-performance by counterpart1es to financial instruments, but does not 
currently expect any counterpart1es to fail to meet their obligations Credit risk 1s mitigated by the Board-approved pohcy of only selecting 
counterpar11es with a strong investment grade long-term credit rating for cash deposits, normally at least AA - or equivalent In the normal 
course of business, the Group operates notional cash poohng systems, where a legal right of set-off applies 

The maximum credit-risk exposure m the event of other parties failing to perform their obhgat1ons under financial assets, excluding trade and 
other receivables, totals £80 2m At 31 March 2010 the maximum exposure with a single bank for deposits and cash was £41 9m, whilst the 
maximum mark to market exposure for derrvat1Ves was £4 Sm These exposures were with different financial mstltut1ons rated AA or better 
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27 Financial risk management (continued) 

E) L1qu1d1ty nsk 

Borrowing fac1ht1es 
As at 31 March 2010, the Group had a Revolving Credit Facility (RCF) of £500m (2009 £500m) The RCF ts contracted until 2012 and 
1s utilised as shown in the table below 

Committed fac1ht1es 31 March 2010 
Freely available cash and cash equ1Valents 

Committed facll1t1es 31 March 2009 
Freely avallabte cash and cash equ1Valents 

Available funds 31 March 2009 

Interest rate 
% 

LIBOR plus 
0 3°/o 

Total 
Em 

500 0 

5000 

In add1!1on to the above borrowing fac1hhes there 1s debt of £376 7m (2009 £393 Om) under the US private placement 

Gross contractual cash flows for borrowings and other financial hab1ht1es 

Drnwn 
£m 

143 7 

386 2 

Undrawn 
£m 

356 3 
63 9 

420 2 

113 8 
258 6 

372 4 

The following are the contractual matunt1es of fmanc1al habtht1es mclud1ng interest payments The cash flows associated wrth der1Vatives that 
are cash flow hedges are expected to have an impact on profrt or loss in the periods shown 

As at 31 March 2010 

Contractual More than 
all figures 1n £ m1ll1on Book value cash nows 1 year or less 1·2 years 3-5 years 5 years 

Non-der1vat1ve financial l1ab1l1t1es 
Trade and other payables (431 6J (431 6J (3964J (35 2J 
Bank overdrafts (3 2J (3 2J (3 2J 
US private placement debt (376 7J (649 9J (24 2J (24 2J (1569J (3446J 
Mult1-c:urrency revolving factlrly (143 7J (143 7J (143 7J 
Recaprtahsahon fee 1 6 
Fmance leases (12 5J (15 5J (2 8J (2 8J (85J (14J 
Oenvat1ve financial hab1l1t1es 
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges (3 8J (3 8J (2 8J (0 8J (02J 
Forward foreign currency contracts - cash 
flow hedges (O 8J (0 8J (0 BJ 

(970 7J (1,148 5J (430 2J (630J (309 3J (346 OJ 

As at 31 March 2009 

Contractual More than 
all figures 1n £ m1ll1on Book value cash flovvs 1 year or less 1-2 years 3-5 years 5 years 

Non-derivative financial hab1l1t1es 
Trade and other payables (495 9) (495 9) (447 2) (15 5) (33 2) 
Bank overdrafts 
US pr1Vate placement debt (393 0) (601 7) (20 7) (25 5) (76 8) (478 6) 
Multi-currency revolving fac1trty (3862) (389 7) (6 2) (383 5) 
Recaprtahsallon fee 23 
loan notes 
Fmance leases (14 2) (18 3) (2 8) (2 8) (8 4) (4 3) 
Derivative f1nanc1al l1ab1l1t1es 
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges (8 0) (8 0) (5 0) (2 2) (0 8) 
Forward foreign currency contracts - cash 
flow hedges (1 3) (1 3) (0 6) (0 7) 
Forward foreign currency contracts - net 
mvestment hedges (14 3) (14 3) (14 3) 

(1,3106J (1,529 2J (496 8J (468) (502 7) (482 9) 
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Fmanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

27. Financial risk management (conhnued) 

F) Denvabve financial instruments 

As at 31 March 

all figures in £ m1lllon 

Interest rate swaps 
Fornard foreign currency contracts - cash flow hedges 
Foiward foreign currency contracts - not designated as hedge 
accounted 
Forward foreign currency contracts - net investment hedges 

Derivative assets/(hab1ht1es) at the end of the year 

As at 31 March 

all figures m £ m1~1on 

Expected lo be recognrsed 
In one year or less 
Between one and two years 
Between two and five years 

Asset 
gains 

48 

48 

Asset 
gains 

48 

48 

2010 

L1ablllty 
losses 

(3 8) 
(0 8) 

(4 6) 

2010 

Uabllrty 
tosses 

(36) 
(08) 
(02) 

(46) 

2009 

Asset L1ab1hty 
Net gains losses Net 

(3 8) (80) (8 0) 
(0 8) 0 1 (20) (1 9) 

48 
(13 6) (13 6) 

02 0 1 (23 6) (23 5) 

2009 

Asset L1ab1hty 
Net gams losses Ne\ 

1 2 0 1 (19 9) (19 8) 
(08) (2 9) (2 9) 
(0 2) (08) (0 8) 

02 0 1 (236) (23 5) 

The forward currency contracts that are not hedge accounted compnse denvahves entered mlo dunng the penod to offset the net investment 

hedges de-designated as explained earlier m Note 27C) 

G) Matunty of financial l1ab1lot1es 

As at 31 March 2010 

Trade Bank Fmance leases and 
and other borrowings derivative financial 

all figures in£ million payables and loan notes Instruments Total 

Due m one year or less 396A 25 64 405.3 
Due m more than one year but not more than two years 36 2 (07) 26 371 
Due m more than two years but not more than five years 143 5 67 150 2 
Due m more than five years 376 7 1 4 3781 

431 6 5220 171 970 7 

As at 31 March 2009 

Trade Bank Finance leases and 
and other borrowings denvat1ve financial 

all figures m £ m1lhon payables and loan notes instruments Total 

Due m one year or less 447 2 (0 7) 22 8 469 3 
Due m more than one year but not more than two years 15 5 (0 7) 49 19 7 
Due m more than two years but not more than five years 33 2 385 3 74 425 9 
Due m more than five years 393 0 27 395 7 

495 9 776 9 378 1,310 6 
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27. Financial risk management {continued) 

H) Sens1t1v1ty analysis 

• • ••• 

The Group's sensit1vrty lo changes m market rates on financial assets and hab1lrhes as at 31 March 20101sset out m the table below 

The amounts generated from the sens1t1v1ty analysis are forward-lookmg estimates of market nsk assuming certain adverse market 
cond1hons occur Actual results m the future may differ materially from those pro1ected resuhs due to developments m the global financial 

markets which may cause fluctuations m mterest and exchange rates to vary from the hypothetical amounts disclosed m the table below, 
which therefore should not be considered a proJectton of likely future events and losses 

The estimated changes for interest rate movements are based on an instantaneous decrease or increase of 1 percent (100 basis pomts) 
m the specific rate of mterest applicable lo each dass of financial instruments from the levels effective at 31 March 2010, wrth all other 
vanables remammg constant The estimated changes for foreign exchange rates are based on an instantaneous 10 percent weakening or 
strengthening 1n sterling against alt other currencies from the levels apphcable at 31 March 2010, wrth all other varrables remammg constant 
Such analysis 1s for 1llustrat1ve purposes only - m practice market rates rarely change m rsolat1on 

As at 31 March 2010 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Sterling 
US dollar 
Other 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Sterlmg 
US dotlar 
Other 

As at 31 March 2009 

all figures m £million 

Sterhng 
US dollar 
Other 

Pr112_Review mdd 81 

1% decrease In interest rates 

Equity 

(3 1) 

P•oflt 
before tax 

(03) 

1% Increase In interest rates 

Equity 

31 

Pmflt 
before tax 

05 

1% decrease 1n interest rates 

Equity 

(0 1) 
(0 1) 

Profit 
before tax 

(11) 
06 
02 

10% weakening In sterling 

Equity 

(41 8) 
(0 1) 

P•oflt 
before tax 

(34) 

10% strengthening In sterllng 

Equity 

34 2 
0 1 

P•oflt 
before tax 

28 

10% v.eakenmg m ster1mg 

Equity 

(68 5) 
(2 7) 

Profit 
before tax 

(3 9) 
(0 1) 
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f1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued} 

28 Cash flows from operations 

all figures in £ mtlllon 

(Loss)fprofd after tax for the penod 
Adjustments for 
Taxation 
Net finance costs 
Loss/(ga1n) on busmess divestments and impairment of mvestments 
Amort1sat1on of purchased or internally developed mtang1ble assets 
Amortisation of mtang1ble assets ansmg from acqu1s1t1ons and 1mpa1rments 
Deprec1at1on and 1mpa1rmenl of property, plant and equipment 
Share of post tax (profd)Jloss of equdy accounted entities 
Retirement benefit obhgat1ons deficit payments 
Net movement m prov1S1ons 

Increase m inventories 
Decrease m receivables 
(Decrease)/tncrease 1n payables 

Changes 1n working capital 

Cash generated from operations 
Add back cash outflow relating to EMEA reorganisation 

Net cash flow from operations before EMEA reorgamsat1on costs 

Year ended 
Year ended 31 March 2009 

31 March 2010 (restated)* 

(63 3) 93 6 

(2 8) 204 
34 6 21 4 
62 (7 3) 

11 3 89 
79 5 23 5 
591 33 5 
(0 2) 72 

(13 0) 
10 9 (326) 

122 3 168 6 

(13 1) (2 9) 
89 9 44 

(29 9) 5 1 

46 9 66 

169 2 175 2 
354 27 0 

204 6 202 2 

"Restatement relates to the transfer of the finance element of the IAS 19 pension cost totalling a net £3 4m credit to the income statement to the finance income 
and expense Imes 

29 Reconc1hation of net cash flow to movement m net debt 

Year ended Year ended 
all figures m £ m1ll1on o«o 31 March 2010 31 March 2009 

(Decrease)l1ncrease 1n cash 1n the year (2009) 2369 
Repayment/(addrt1onal) bank loans 2321 (13 3) 
US private placements (210 4) 
loan note repayments 05 
Settlement of forward contracts designated as net investment hedges 14 3 
Payment of deferred financing costs 1 5 
Escrow cash receipt (4 2) 
Capital element of finance lease payments 28 28 
Capital element of finance lease receipts (30) (3 0) 

Change m net debt resulting from cash flows 45 3 10 8 
Amort1salton of deferred financing costs 107) (0 3) 
Finance lease receivables 1 4 1 6 
Finance lease payables (1 1) (1 4) 
Foreign exchange movements and other non-cash movements 35 6 (158 7) 

Movement 1n net debt 1n the year 80 5 1158 0) 
Net debt at the start of the year (537 9) (379 9) 

Net debt at the end of the year 30 (457 4) 1537 9) 
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30 Analysis of net debt 

all figures in £ m11J1on 

Due w1th1n one year 
Bank and cash 
Bank overdraft 
Recaprtahsat1on fee 
Fmance lease receivables 
Fmance lease payables 
Denvat1ve financial assets 
Derivative financial hab11Jt1es 

Due after one year 
Bank loan 
Recaprtahsahon fee 
US pnvate placement 
Fmance lease receivables 
Fmance lease payables 
Oenvatrve financial assets 
Denvatrve financial lrab1ht1es 

Total net debt as defined by the Group 

31 Finance leases 

Group as a lessor 
The minimum tease receivables under finance leases fall as follo'o\IS 

all figures in£ million 

Amounts receivable under finance leases 
Within one year 
In the second to fifth years inclusive 
Greater than five years 

Less unearned finance income 

Present value of m1n1mum lease payments 

Class1f1ed as follows 
Fmanc1al asset - current 
Fmanc1al asset - non-current 

• • ••• 

Year ended 
31 March 2009 

262 1 

07 
30 

(2 8) 
01 

(20 0) 

Cash flow 

(197 7) 
(3 2) 

(3 0) 
28 

14 3 

2431 (1868) 

(386 2) 
1 6 

(393 0) 
11 6 

(11 4) 

(3 6) 

2321 

(781 0) 2321 

(537 9) 453 

Non-cash Year ended 
movement 31 March 2010 

(0 5) 63 9 
(3 2) 
07 

30 30 
(2 8) (2 8) 
47 48 
2 1 (3 6) 

65 62 8 

10 4 (143 7) 
(0 7) 09 
16 3 (376 71 
(1 6) 10 0 
1 7 (9 7) 

26 (1 OJ 

28 7 (520 2) 

35 2 (457 4) 

M1n1mum lease payments Present value of m1mmum lease payments 

2010 2009 2010 2009 

30 30 30 30 
12 0 12 0 89 89 

1 6 45 1 1 2 7 

16 5 19 5 
(35) (4 9) 

130 14 6 13 0 14 6 

30 30 
10 0 11 6 

13 0 14 6 

The Group leases ou1 certain bu1ldmgs under fmance leases over a 12-year term expmng m 2015 
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Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

31. Finance leases (continued) 

Group as a lessee 
The minimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows 

Minimum lease payments Present value of minimum lease payments 

all figures in£ m1ll1on 

Amounts payable under finance leases 
Within one year 
In the second to fifth years mclusrve 
Greater than frve years 

Less future finance charges 

Present value of m1n1mum lease payments 

Class1f1ed as follows 
Financial 1Jab11lty - current 
Financial llabllity - non-current 

2010 

28 
11 3 

1 4 

16 6 
(3 0) 

12 6 

2009 

28 
11 3 
42 

18 3 
(4 1) 

14 2 

2010 

28 
89 
08 

12 5 

28 
97 

12 6 

2009 

28 
89 
25 

14 2 

28 
11 4 

14 2 

The Group utilises certain buildings under finance leases Average tease terms are typically between two and ten years (31 March 2009 
between two and ten years) 

32 Share capital and other reserves 

Shares allotted, called up and fully paid 

At 1 April 2008 
Issued m year 

At 31 March 2009 
Issued 1n year 

At 31 March 2010 

Ordinary shares of 1 peach 
(equity) 

Number 

6,604,764 660,476 373 

6,604,764 660,476,373 

6,604,764 660,476,373 

Special share of£ 1 
(non-equity) 

Number 

Except as noted below all shares m issue at 31 March 2010 rank pan passu mall respects 

Rights attaching to the Special Share 

Total 

Number 

6,604,765 660,476,374 

6,604,765 660 476,374 

6,604,765 660,476,374 

OinettO carrtes out act1vrties which are important to UK defence and secunty interests To protect these interests in the context of the 
ongoing commercial relat1onsh1p bet...veen the MOD and QinetiO, and to promote and reinforce the Compflance Pnnc1ples, the MOD holds 
a Spec1al Share in QinettO The Special Share confers certain nghts on the holder 

a) to requlfe the Group to implement and maintain the Compliance System (as defined m the Articles of Assoc1at1on) so as to make at all 
times effective its and each member of OmehQ Controlled Group's apphcat1on of the Compliance Principles, 1n a manner acceptable 
to the Special Shareholder, 

b) to refer matters to the Board or the Compliance Committee for its consideration m relation to the apphcahon of the Compltance Pnnc1ptes, 

c) lo veto any contract, transaction, arrangement or activity whtch the Special Shareholder considers 

1) may result in e1rcumstances which constitute unacceptable ownership, influence or control over Omet10or any other member of the 
Omet1Q consolldated Group contrary to the defence or secunty interests of the Umted Kingdom, or 

11) would not, or does not, ensure the effective appl1cat1on of the Compliance Pnnc1ples to and/or by all members of the OinetrO 
Controlled Group or would be or 1s otherwise contrary to the defence or secunty interests of the United Kmgdom 

d) to require the Board to take any action (1ncludmg but not hmrted to amendmg the Compliance Pnnctples), or rectify any om1ss1on m the 
apphcation of the Compliance Pnnc1ples 1f the Special Shareholder 1s of the opm1on that such steps are necessary to protect the defence 
or secunty interest of the United Kingdom 

e) to exercrse any of the powers contained 1n the articles in relation to the Comphance Committee, and 

f) to demand a poll at any of OmehO s meetings (even though rt may have no voting nghts except those speetfically set out m the Articles) 
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The Special Shareholder has an option to purchase defined Strategic Assets of the Group in certain circumstances The Special Shareholder 
has, mter alla, the nght to purchase any Strateg1e Assets which the Group wishes to sell Strategic Assets are normally testmg and research 
fac1ht1es (see note 35 for further details) 

The Special Share may only be issued to, held by and transferred to HM Government (or as rt directs) At any time the Special Shareholder 
may require CmehQ to redeem the Special Share at par If Qmet1Q rs wound up the Special Shareholder will be entrtled to be repaid the 
capital paid up on the Special Share before other shareholders receive any payment The Special Shareholder has no other nght to shares 
m the caprtal or profits of Omet1Q 

The Special Shareholder must give consent to a general meeting held on short notice 

The Special Share entitles the Special Shareholder to require certain persons who hold (together wrth any person actmg m concert wrth 
them) a material mterest 1n Oinet1Q to dispose of some or all of their Ordinary Shares m certain prescribed circumstances on the grounds 
of national securrty or conflict of mterest 

The Directors must register any transfer of the Special Share wrthm seven days 

Other reserves 
The translation reserve includes the cumulative foreign exchange difference ansmg on translation smce the Group transrt10ned to IFRS 
Movements on hedge instruments, where the hedge is effective, are recorded 1n the hedge reserve until the hedge ceases 

The capital redempt10n reserve 1s not d1stnbutable and was created following redemption of preference share capital and the bonus issue 

of shares 

Own shares 
Ovo.in shares represent shares m the Company that are held by independent trusts and shares held by the employee share ownership plan 
Included m retained earnings at 31 March 2010 are 6.440 256 own shares (2009 7,911,191 shares) 

33. Share-based payments 

The Group operates a number or share-based payment plans for employees The total share-based payment expense 1n the year was £5 am 
(year to 31 March 2009 £5 6m) 

2003 Employee share option scheme (2003 ESOS) 
Under the employee share option scheme all employees as at 25 July 2003 received share opt10ns which vested when the Group completed 
its IPO and had to be exercised withm ten years of grant The optlOns are settled by shares 

2010 2009 

Weighted Weighted 
average average 
exercise exercise 

Number price Number price 

Outstandmg at start of the year 924,186 2 3p 1,210,122 2 3p 
Exercised during the year (103,822) 2 3p (207,644) 2 3p 
Forfeited dunng the year (105,524) 2 3p (78,292) 2 3p 

Outstanding and exercisable at end of the year 714.840 2 3p 924.186 2 3p 

The 2003 ESOS are equity settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an average remaining life of3 3 years (31 March 
2009 4 3 years) In respect of the share options exercised durmg the year the average share price on the date of exercise was 143p 
The exercise pnce of the outstanding options was 2 3p 
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Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

33. Share-based payments (coct'""•dl 

Q1net1Q Share Opbon Scheme (QSOS) 
The exercise pnce of the options rs equal lo the average market pnce of the Group's shares on the date of the grant The options vest after 
three years For 8, 711,683 (2009 17 ,930,229) of the options outstanding at the end oft he year the number that will vest is dependent upon 
the growth of earnings per share ('EPS') over the measurement penod 25% of options will vest 1f EPS grO'Nlh 1s 22 5% for the penod and 
100% will vest If growth IS at least 52% No options will vest 1f EPS growth 1s below 22 5% Options Wiii vest on a straight line basis 1f EPS 
growth 1s between 22 5% and 52% There were no optrons subject to total shareholder return ('TSR') performance targets (2009 173,071) 
For awards with a TSR performance cond1hon, the EPS growth target 1s replaced by a performance target based on Omet1Q s ranking by 
reference to total shareholder return ( TSR') agamst a comparator group or FTSE hsted companies over a three-year performance penod 
such that a below mechan rankmg will result 1n ml shares vestmg at the med tan level 30% of the options would vest and the amount vested 
w1ll 1ncrease on a straight lme basis such that 100% would vest If TSR reaches the upper quartile of the ranking over a three-year period 

2010 2009 

Weighted 
average 

Number exercise price Number 

Outstanding at the start of the year 18,103,300 190 Op 14,043 584 
Granted durmg the year 4,723,464 
Forferted during the year (8,966,544) 193 5p (663,748) 

Outstanding at the end of the year 9,136,756 186 2p 18,103,300 

OSOS grants are equity-settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an average remammg life of 0 9 years 
(2009 1 0 years) The exercise price of the 2009 QSOS awards was 199p, there were no QSOS awards m 2010 

Pelformance Share Plan (PSP) 

Weighted 
average 

exercise pnce 

187 Op 
198 5p 
187 Op 

1900p 

ln the year the Group made awards of cond1t1onal shares to certam UK semor executives under the Performance Share Plan The awards 
vest after three years with 50% of the awards subject to total shareholder return cond1t1ons and 50% subject lo EPS cond1t1ons as detailed 
in the QSOS TSR and EPS condrt1e>ns above 

2010 2009 
Number of Number of 

shares shares 

Outstanding at the start of the year 1,318,213 700,804 
Granted dunng the year 3,219,463 956,249 
Exerctsed dunng the year (215,763) 
Forfeited during the year (635,290) (338 840) 

Outstanding at the end of the year 3,686,623 1,318,213 

PSP are equrty settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an average remaining llfe of 2 2 years (2009 1 9 years) 
There IS no exercise price for these PSP awards 

Restricted Stock Units (RSUJ 
In the year the Group granted RSU awards to certain senior US employees under the RSU Plan The awards vest over 1 year, 2 years 
3 years and 4 years Half the awards are dependent on achieving ONA organic profit growth targets and half on a lime-based criteria 
The time-based cntena require the employee to have been m continued service up to the date of vestmg QNA organic profit growth 
1s measured over the most recent financial year compared wdh the previous financial year, with 125% ofth1s element awarded at ONA 
organic profit growth rate above 15%, 100% awarded at 12 5%, 75% awarded at 10% and 25% awarded at 5% 

Outstandmg at the start of the year 
Granted during the year 
Exercised dunng the year 
Forfeited dunng the year 

Outstanding at the end of the year 

2010 
Number of 

shares 

3,694.277 
5,304,501 

(1.087,219) 
(590,331) 

7,321,228 

2009 
Number of 

shares 

1,657,330 
2 358,130 

(94,482) 
(226,701) 

3,694,277 

RSU are equrty settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an average remammg life of 1 7 years (2009 1 7 years) 
There IS no exercise price for these RSU a~rds 
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33. Share-based payments (conHnued) 

Group Share Incentive Plan (SIP) 
Under the Omet1Q Share Incentive Plan the Group offers UK employees the opportunity of purchasing up to £125 worth of shares a month 
at the preva1lmg market rate The Group will make a matchmg share award of a third of the employee's payment The Groups matching 
shares may be forfeited rfthe employee ceases to be employed by Omet1Q w1th1n 3 years of the award of the shares There 1s no exercise 
pnce for these SIP awards 

2010 2009 
Number of Number of 

matching match mg 
shares shares 

Outstanding at the start of the year 1,252,730 871,331 
Granted dunng the year 566,688 420,907 
Exerc1Sed dunng the year (430,743) 
Forfeited dunng the year (38,132) (39,S08) 

Outstanding at the end of year 1,339,543 1,252,730 

SIP matching shares are equrty settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an average remaining llfe of 1 5 years 
(2009 1 5 years) There 1s no exercise price for these SIP awards 

Group Deferred Annual Bonus Plan (DAB) 
Under the QmellQ Deferred Annual Bonus Plan the Group requires certain senior executives to defer part of their annual bonus as shares 
and be entitled to ma1ch1ng awards to a maximum of 1 1 based upon EPS performance The number 1hat will ves1 1s dependent upon the 
growth of EPS over the measurement perrod of 3 years as detailed in the QSOS EPS conditions above No awards will vest 1f EPS growth 
m the vesting penod 1s below 22 5% 

2010 2009 
Number of Number of 

matching 
shares 

Outstanding at the start of the year 83,539 
Granted during the year 6,859 
Exercised during the year (25,155) 
Forfeited durmg the year (53,255) 

Outstanding at the end of the year 11,988 

DAB matching shares are equity settled awards and those outstanding at 31 March 2010 had an average remammg life of 1 8 years 
(2009 2 3 years) There is no exercise price for these DAB awards 

Share-based award pricing - options 

matching 
shares 

94,137 

(10,598) 

83,539 

Share options (excluding TSR performance related) and awards under the deferred annual bonus plan have been valued usmg 
Black-Scholes models to determine the fair value of awards Assumptrons used wrth1n the models were as follows for awards m 2009, 

there were no such awards in 2010 

Share price at date of grant (pence) 
Exercise price (pence) 
Volatility% 
Average expected term to exercise 
Risk.free rate% 
Expected dividend yield % 

2009 

198 Sp 
198 Sp 
31 0% 

3 years 
43% 
22% 

No such assumptions have been disclosed in the current year, as no OSOS awards have been made in the year ended 31 March 201 O 
The average share price m 2009 was 179 7p The expeded volallllty assumption 1s based on the average historic volat1lrty of Qmet1Q's 
share pnce at the date of grant (commensurate with the vesting period to the extent possible) 
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F1nanc1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

33. Share-based payments (oo< «need) 

Share-based award pnc1ng - other 
Share-based awards involving market based performance cond1t1ons mcludrng those based on TSR, have used Monte Carlo models to 
determrne the fair value at grant date Assumptions used rn these models included 41% (2009 32%) for the average share pnce votatllrty 
of the FTSE comparator group and 36% (2009 33%) for the average correlation to comparator group The fa1rvalue for these awards 
(before the probab1lrty of lapsing) m the year ended March 2010 was 66 Sp (2009 119 1 p) 

Share-based awards that vest based upon non-market performance conditions, mcludmg certain PSP RS Us and Deferred Annual Bonus 
awards, have been valued at the share price at grant less attrition For the 2003 Share Option Scheme, there was a pre-bonus issue 
weighted average share pnce of £1 and a weighted average exercise price of £1 based on third-party transactions 1n the Company s shares 
1n the penod 1mmed1ately pnor to the issue of the share options Pnor to IPO 1n February 2006 there was no active market for the Company's 
shares therefore expected volatllrty was determined using the average volat1hty for a comparable selection of businesses At this time the 
Group had no established pattern of d1v1dend payments, therefore no d1v1dends were assumed in this model 

34 Operating leases 

Group as a lessor 
The Group receives rental mcome on certam properties The Group had contracted with tenants for the foUowmg future mm1mum 
lease payments 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Within one year 
In the second to fifth years mclusrve 
Greater than frve years 

Group as a lessee 

an figures 1n £ mllhon 

Lease and sublease income statement expense - minimum lease payments 

The Group had the following future m1mmum lease payment commitments 

all figures m £million 

W1thm one year 
In the second to fifth years inclusive 
Greater than frve years 

2010 

46 
16 3 

20 9 

2010 

23 3 

2010 

16 9 
504 
33 2 

100 5 

2009 

63 
11 5 

17 8 

2009 

18 9 

2009 

17 3 
52 5 
22 7 

92 5 

Operatrng lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group on certain office property and plant Leases are negotiated for an average 
of three to ten years 
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35. Transactions with MOD 

The MOD continues to own its special share 1n Q1nehQ which conveys certain nghts as set out 1n note 32 Transactions between the Group 
and the MOD are disclosed as follows 

Freehold land and buildings and surplus properties 
Under the terms of the Group's acqu1srt1on or part of the business and certain assets of DERA from the MOD on 1 July 2001, the MOD 
retained certain rights m respect of the freehold land and buddings transferred 

1) Restnct1ons on transfer of title 
The htle deeds of those properties designated as strategic assets (see below) include a clause that prevents their transfer without the 
approval of the MOD The MOD also has the right to purchase any strategic assets 1n certain circumstances 

11) Property clawback agreement 
The MOD retains an interest m future profits on disposal following a 'tngger event' A 'tngger event' includes the granting of planning 
perm1ss1on for development and/or change of use, and the d1spos1t1on of any of the acquired land and bu1ld1ngs During the 12 years from 
1 July 2001, following a 'tngger event' the MOD 1s entitled to clawback a proportton of the gam on each mdN1dual property transaction 1n 
excess of a 30% gain on a July 2001 professional valuation The proportion of the excess gam due to the MOD 1s based on a shdmg scale 
which reduces over time from 50% to 9% and at 31 March 2010 stands at 28% (2009 33%) The July 2001 valuatton was approximately 
16% greater 1n aggregate than the cons1derat1on paid for the land and bu1ld1ngs on 1 July 2001 

Compliance Regime 
The Compliance Committee momtors the effective apphcat1on of the Comphance Regime required by the MOD to maintain the posrt1on 
of Qmet1Q as a supp her of mdependent and 1mpart1al sc1ent1fidtechntcal advice to the MOD and ensures that the required standards are 
met in tnals involving human volunteers 

Strategic assets 
Under the Principal Agreement with the MOD, the Qmet1Q controlled Group 1s not permitted without the written consent of the MOO, to 

1) dispose of or destroy all or any part of a strateg1c asset, or 

11) voluntarily undertake any closure of, or cease to provide a strategic capability by means of, all or any part of a strategic asset 

The net book value of assets identified as bemg strategic assets as at 31 March 2010 was £2 Sm (31 March 2009 £2 7m) the pnnc1pal 
Items bemg plant and machinery 

Long-Term Partnenng Agreement 
On 27 February 2003 Cmet1Q Limited entered mto a Long-Term Partnermg Agreement to provide the Test and Evaluation (T&E) fac1hhes 
and trammg support services to the MOO This 1s a 25-year contract with a total revenue value of up to £5 6bn, dependent on the level of 
usage by MOD, under which Qmet1Q Limited 1s committed to prov1d1ng the T&E services wtlh mcreasmg eff1c1enc1es through cost saving 
and mnovatNe service delNery 

36. Directors and other senior management personnel 

The remuneration of Directors and other semor management personnel of the Group dunng the year to 31 March 2010 is set out below 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 2010 2009 

Short-term employee remuneration mclud1ng benefits 
Post-employment benefits 
Share-based payments expense 

Total 

54 
0 1 
1 0 

65 

32 
02 
1 0 

44 

Short-term employee remuneration and benefits mclude salary, bonus, and benefits Post-employment benefits relate to pension amounts 
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F1nane1al Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

37. Contingent liabilities and assets 

The Group, including subs1d1ary undertakmgs, have grven unsecured guarantees pnmanly on leased properties and bank Imes of £55 1m 
at 31 March 2010 (31 March 2009 £34 7m) m the ordinary course of business 

The Group 1s aware of da1ms and potential claims by or on behalf of current and fonner employees, mcludmg former employees of the MOD 
and DERA and contractors, m respect of intellectual property, employment nghts and industnal illness and injury wh1eh mvolve or may 
mvolve legal proceedings against the Group The Directors are of the opinion havmg regard to legal advice recerved, and the Group's 
msurance arrangements and provisions earned m the balance sheet, that 111s unlikely that these matters will, in aggregate have a matenal 
effect on the Group's financial position, results of operations and llqu1d1ty 

The Group has not recognised contingent amounts receivable relatmg to the Chertsey property whtch was disposed of dunng 2004 
or the Fort Halstead property d1Sposed of 1n September 2005 Add1t1onal constderallon, subject to clawback to the MOD pursuant to the 
arrangements referred tom note 35, rs potentially due upon the purchasers obtaining add1t1onat planning consents, with the quantum 
dependent on the scope of the consent achieved 

38. Post-retirement benefits 

Triennial funding valuation 
The most recent full actuanal valuation of the defined benefit section of the Qmet1Q Pension Scheme was undertaken as at 30 June 2008 
and resulted man actuanally assessed deficit of£ 111 3m On the basis of this full valuation the Trustees of the scheme and the Company 
agreed the employer contribution rate of 11 5% from 30 June 2009 and past serv1ee deficit recovery payments of £13m per year for a 
10-year penod from this date 

Introduction and background to IAS 19 
lntemahonal Accounting Standard 19 (Employee Benefrts) requires the Group to include m the balance sheet the surplus or deficit 
on defined benefit schemes calculated as al the balance sheet date It 1s a snapshot view which can be significantly influenced by 
short-term market factors The calculation of the surplus or def1c1t 1s, therefore, dependent on factors which are beyond the control 
of the Group- pnnc1pally the value at the balance sheet date of equity shares in which the scheme has invested and long-term interest 
rates which are used to discount future liabllrt1es The fundmg of the scheme IS based on long-tenn trends and assumptions relating to 
market growth as advised by qualified actuanes 

The Q1nebQ Pension Scheme 
In the UK the Group operates the Qmet1Q Pension Scheme for the maiorrty of its UK employees, a mixed benefit scheme The Defined 
Benefit (DB) sect10n of the scheme provides future service penS1on benefits to transfernng CIVIi Service employees All Group employees 
who were members, or ehg1b1e to be members, of the Pnnc1pal CIVIi Service Pension Scheme or the UKAEA pnnc1pal Non-lndustrral 
Superannuation Scheme were 1nv1ted to io1n the DB section of the scheme from 1 July 2001, together with all new employees who were 
previously members of schemes who are part of the Publlc Sector Transfer Club On 31 March 2010, the Group Wlthdrew from the Public 
Sector Transfer Club The Defined Contnbut1on (DC) section of the scheme was set up for employees who were not eligible or did not Wlsh 
to JOm the DB section of the scheme 

Other UK schemes 
In the UK the Group operates one further small defined benefit scheme, Q1net1Q Prudential Platinum Scheme The net pensron deficits 
of this scheme at 31 March 2010 amounted to £0 2m (31 March 2009 £0 2m) There were no outstanding or prepaid contnbut1ons at the 
balance sheet dale (March 2009 £ml) Set out below 1s a summary of the overa11 IAS 19 defined benefit pension schemes' llab1l1t1es The fair 
value of the schemes' assets which are not mtended to be realised m the short term and may be subject to significant change before they 
are realised, and the present value of the schemes' hab1llt1es, which are denved from cash flow pro1ect1ons over long penods, and thus 
inherently uncertam, were 

all figures in£ million 2010 2009 2008 2007 

EqurtJes 714 6 473 7 620 8 641 5 
Corporate bonds 69 6 78 4 83 9 74 5 
Government bonds 69 6 83 2 76 3 74 7 
Property 534 
Cash 88 12 1 32 34 

Total market value of assets 915 9 647 4 784 2 794 1 
Present value of scheme 1Jabillt1es (1,063 2) (752 6) (807 6) (884 9) 

Net pension hab1hty before deferred tax (147 3) (105 2) (234) (90 8) 
Deferred tax asset 41 2 29 4 65 27 1 

Net pension hab1hty (106 1) (75 8) (16 9) (63 7) 
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38. Post-retirement benefits (oont>nued) 

Assumptions 
The major assumptions (weighted to reflect mdrv1dual scheme differences) were 

2010 2009 

Rate of increase m salanes 4 6°/a 41% 
Rate of increase m pensions m payment 3 6°/o 31% 
Rate of increase 1n pensions m deferment 3 6°/o 31% 
Otscount rate apphed to scheme llab1llt1es 5 6°/o 65% 
Inflation assumption 36% 31% 

Assumed life expectancies 1n years 
Future male pensioners (currently aged 60) 87 87 
Future female pensioners (currently aged 60) 89 89 
Future male pensioners (currently aged 40) 89 89 
Future female pensioners (currently aged 40) 90 90 

The assumpllons used by the actuary are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuanal assumptions which, due to the 
timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out m practice It 1s important to note that these assumptions are long term, and m the case 
of the discount rate and the inflation rate are measured by external market md1cators The hfe expectancy assumptions for mortahty have 
remained unchanged m the year to 31 March 2010 with the base tables for mortalrty 1n lme with the Medium Cohort projections with m1mmum 
annual rates of improvement of 1 % for males and O 5% for females (2009 improvement 1 % for males and 0 5% for females) The current 
mortality rates reflect the standard tables PNMAOOMC (for males) and PNFAOOMC (for females) for members' year of birth These mortality 
tables are published by the Contmuous Mortality Investigation and adopted by the actuarial profession 

Scheme assets 
The overall expected rate of return on plan assets ts based upon the expected return rates for each asset class Equity return rates are the 
long-term expected return rates based upon the market rates of return for nsk free investments typically government bonds, together with 
the h1stoncal level of nsk premium associated with equities, with the resulting rate then being reviewed and benchmarked against a peer 
group of listed companies Expected long-term rates of return on scheme assets (weighted to reflect the 1nd1v1dual scheme actual asset 
allocations) were 

Equ1hes 
Corporate bonds 
Government bonds 
Property 
Cash 

Weighted average 

Return on scheme assets 

all figures in£ m1lhon 

Actual return on plan assets 
Expected return on scheme assets 
Actuana1 gam/(loss) on scheme assets 

Actual gam/(loss) on scheme assets 

Value of scheme assets 

all figures in£ million 

Changes to the fair value of scheme assets 
Opening fair value of scheme assets 
Expected return on assets 
Actuarial gam/(loss) on scheme assets 
Contributions by the employer 
Contributions by plan part1c1pants 
Scheme disposal -ASAP Calibration Limited 
Net benefits paid out and transfers 

Closing fair value of scheme assets 
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2010 

80% 
5 5°/o 
44% 
8 5°/o 
4 3°/o 

7 5°/o 

2010 

46 3 
206 6 

252 9 

2010 

647 4 
46 3 

206 6 
38 4 
03 

(06) 
(225) 

915 9 

2009 

80% 
60% 
38% 

40% 

71% 

2009 

56 5 
(212 8) 

(156 3) 

2009 

784 2 
56 5 

(212 8) 
37 3 

1 3 

(19 1) 

647 4 
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F1nancral Statements 

Notes to the financial statements (continued) 

38. Post.retirement benefits (cont1nuecJ 

Changes to the present value of the defined benefit obhgat1on 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 

Opening defined benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Contnbut1ons by plan part1c1pants 
Actuarial loss/(ga1ns) on scheme hab11it1es 
Scheme disposal -ASAP Calibration Limited 
Curtailment gam 
Net benefits paid out and transfers 

Closing defined benefit obhgat1on 

Total expense recognised in the income statement 

all figures m £ m1lhon 

PenS1on costs charged to the income statement 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Curtailment 

Total expense recognised m the income statement (gross of deferred tax) 

Analysis of amounts recogmsed m Statement of recogmsed income and expense 

all figures m £ m1ll1on 2010 

Total actuarial (loss)/ga1n (gross of deferred tax) (60 2) 

Cumulative total actuarial losses recognised 1n the 
Statement of recognised income and expense (263 4) 

History of scheme experience gains and losses• 
Experience gamsJ(losses) on scheme assets 206 6 
Expenence (losses)/gams on scheme hab111t1es (2 9) 

• Expenence gains and losses exclude the impact of changes 1n assumpl:10ns 

2010 

762 6 
20 0 
48 8 
03 

266 8 
(08) 
(20) 

(22 6) 

1,063 2 

2010 

20 0 
48 8 

(463) 
(20) 

20 5 

2009 2008 

(95 7) 65 5 

(193 2) (97 5) 

(2128) (83 9) 
37 1 (1 0) 

The expected employer cash contnbut1on to the defined benefit scheme for the year endmg 31 March 2011 1s £36 Sm (201 O £38 4m) 

Defined contribution schemes 
Payments to the defined contnbutt0n schemes totalled £24 Sm (March 2009 £23 2m) 
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2009 

8076 
268 
53 1 

1 3 
(117 1) 

119 1) 

752 6 

2009 

268 
53 1 

(56 5) 

234 

2007 

85 6 

(163 0) 

74 
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39. Capital commitments 

The Group had the following capital commitments for which no prov1s1on has been made 

all figures in £ m1ll1on 2010 2009 

Contracted 59 50 

Capital commllments at 31 March 2010 include £5 Sm (2009 £3 9m) in relation to property, plant and equipment that will be wholly-funded 
by a third-party customer under long-term contract arrangements 

40. Subsidiaries 

The pnncrpal subs1d1ary undertakings at 31 March 2010, all of which are included m the consolidated financial statements are shown below 

Name of company 

Subs1d1anes
111121131 

Qmet1Q Holdings Limited 
Q1net1Q L1mrted 
OmebO Overseas Holdings L1m1ted 
Omet10 North Amenca, Inc 
OmebO North Amenca Operations, LLC 
Analex Corporation 
Apogen Technologies, Inc 
Foster-Miiier, inc 
Westar Aerospace & Defence Group, Inc 

Pnnc1pal area of operation 

UK 
UK 
UK 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 

Country of incorporation 

England & Wales 
England & Wales 
England & Wales 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 
USA 

<
1
> Accounting reference date 1s 31 March All principal subs1d1ary undertakings listed above have financial year ends of31 March and 100% of the ordinary 
shares are owned by the Group 

(2) Q1net1Q Holdings L1m1ted 1s a direct subs1d1ary of Qmet1Q Group pie All other subs1dianes are held 1nd1rectly by othersubs1d1anes of QinetlQ Group pie 
13

> All companies except for hold mg companies are operating comp a mes engaged m the Groups pnnc1pal actMtles as descnbed 1n the Report of the Cuectors 
on page 42 
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I •••• • • ••• 
Financial Statements 

Company balance sheet 
as at 31 March 

all figures m £ m1lhon 

Fixed assets 
Investments in subsidiary undertakmg 

Current assets 
Debtors 

Current l1ab1l1t1es 
Creditors amounts falhng due withm one year 

Net current assets 

Net assets 

Caprtal and reserves 
Equity share capital 
Capital redemption reserve 
Share premium account 
Profit and loss account 

Capital and reserves attributable to shareholders 

There are no other recogmsed gains and losses 

""' 

56 

6 

2010 

108 7 

108 7 

303 9 

303 9 

(91 0) 

212 9 

321 6 

66 
39 9 

147 6 
127 5 

3216 

The financial statements of Omet1Q Group pie (company number 04586941) were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised 
for issue on 2 June 2010, and were signed on its behalf by 

Leo Quinn Chief Executrve Officer David Mellors Chief Fmanc1al Officer 
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2009 

102 9 

102 9 

1648 

164 8 

164 8 

267 7 

66 
39 9 

147 6 
736 

267 7 
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I , •••• • • ••• 
Notes to the Company financial statements 

1. Accounting policies 

The following accounting policies have been apphed consistently m dealing wrlh items which are considered material m relation to the 
Company's financial statements 

Basis of preparation 
The f1nanc1al statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and m accordance wrth applicable UK accounting 
standards As permitted by section 408(4) of the Companies Act 2006, a separate profit and loss account deahng with the results 
of the Company has not been presented 

Investments 
In the Company's f1nanc1al statements, investments m subs1d1ary undertakings are stated at cost less any 1mpa1rment m value 

Share-based payments 
The fair value of equity-settled awards for share-based payments 1s determined on grant and expensed straight lme over the penod 
from grant to the date of earliest uncondd1onal exercise The fair value of cash-settled awards for share-based payments 1s determmed 
each period end until they are exercised or lapse The value 1s expensed straight hne over the period from grant to the date of earliest 
uncond1t1onal exercise The charges for both equity and cash-settled share-based payments are updated annually for non-market-based 
vesting cond1t1ons Further details of the Group's share-based payment charge are disclosed m Note 33 of the Group Financial Statements 
The cost of share-based payments 1s charged to subS1d1ary undertakings 

2. Investment in subsidiary undertaking 

As at 31 March 

all figures m £ m1!hon 2010 

Subsidiary undertaking - 100% of ordinary share capital of Qmet.O Holdings Limited 108 7 

A list of all principal subsidiary undertakings of QmehQ Group pie 1s disclosed m note 40 to the Group financial statements The £5 Sm 
(2009 £5 6m) increase m investment m the year relates to the capital contnbut1on 1n relation to share-based payments for employees 
of subs1d1ary companies 

3. Debtors 

As at 31 March 

all f'9ures m £ m1ll1on 

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 
Other debtors 

4. Creditors 

As at 31 March 

all f'9ures m £million 

Amounts owed to Group undertakings 

2010 

303 9 

303 9 

2010 

91 0 

2009 

102 9 

2009 

164 7 
0 1 

164 8 

2009 
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F1nanctal Statements 

Notes to the Company financial statements (continued) 

5. Share capital 

The Company's share capital 1s disclosed m note 32 to the Group financial statements 

6. Reserves 

Ca petal 
Issued share redemption 

all figures in£ m1lhon capital reserve Share premium Profit and loss Total equity 

At 1 Apnl 2009 66 39 9 1476 73 6 267 7 
Profit 80 5 BO 5 
Purchase of own shares (0 8) (0 8) 
Dw1dend paid (31 6) (31 6) 
Share-based payments 58 58 

At 31 March 2010 65 39 9 147 6 127 5 321 5 

At 1 Apnl 2008 66 39 9 147 6 85 6 279 7 
Profit 12 1 12 1 
Purchase of own shares (0 8) (08) 
Dtv1dend paid (28 9) (28 9) 
Share-based payments 56 56 

At 31 March 2009 66 39 9 147 6 73 6 267 7 

The capital redemption reserve tS not d1stnbutable and was created following redempt10n of Preference Share capital 

7. Share-based payments 

The Company's share-based payment arrangements are set out 1n note 33 to the Group financial statements 

8. Other information 

Directors' emoluments excluding Company pension contnbut1ons, were £2 Sm (2009 £1 3m) These emoluments were all in relation to 
services provided on behalf of the OmebQ Group with no amount specifically relating to their work for the Company Details of the Directors' 
emoluments, share schemes and entitlements under money purchase pensron schemes are disclosed m the Report of the Remuneration 
Committee Details of one-off payments made to Directors dunng the year can be found m the footnotes on page 40 

The remuneration of the Company's auditor for the year to 31 March 2010 was £5,000 (2009 £5,000) all of which was for statutory audit 
services No other services were provrded by the auditor to the Company 
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Five-year record for the years ended 31 March (unaudited) 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 

OmebQ North America £m 800 1 7656 540 2 3582 248 4 
EMEA £m 818 8 842 3 820 1 7793 797 2 
Ventures £m 66 94 57 12 0 6 1 

Revenue £m 1,626 4 1,617 3 1,366 0 1, 149 5 1,051 7 

QmetlQ North Amenc:a £m 67 7 83 0 62 1 399 24 5 
EMEA( 21 

£m 61 1 84 2 71 6 669 740 
Ventures £m (8 6) (15 6) (15 1) (6 9) (7 5) 

Operating profrt111 111 
£m 1203 151 6 118 6 99 9 91 0 

Operating margmc1
J " 74 94 87 87 87 

Underlying* profit before tax(1
J £m 85 7 130 2 1090 940 80 1 

(loss)Jprofrt before tax £m (66 1) 114 0 51 4 89 3 72 5 
(Loss)Jprofrt after tax £m (63 3) 93 6 47 4 690 60 4 

Underlymg• basic EPS pence 11 1 15 9 13 4 11 3 10 2 
Oduted EPS pence (9 7) 14 3 72 10 3 98 
Basic EPS pence (9 7) 14 3 72 10 5 10 0 
01V1dend per share pence 1 68 4 75 4 25 3 65 2 25 

Underlying cash flow from operations post capex• £m 174 3 169 8 100 3 60 1 76 9 
Net debt £m 457 4 537 9 379 9 300 8 233 0 
Average number of employees 13,580 13,882 13,470 11,870 11,024 
Orders £m 1,400 9 1,596 0 1,2771 1,2140 816 7 

(\) Underlymg measures are stated before amortisation of intangibles ans1ng from acqu1s1t1ons EMEA reorganisation costs in 2010 and 2008 and restructunng 
costs m 2005 IPO costs m 2006 profit on disposal of interests 1n subs1d1anes profit on disposal of interest in associates and business divestments and 
unrealised impairment of in\festments and tangible fixed assets 

m Operating profit and operating margins for 2009 2008 2007 and 2006 have been restated to show the net finance element of the JAS19 pension cost 1n the 
finance income and expense Imes This was previously reported in other operating costs 

• Definitions of underlying measures of performance are 1n the glossary on page 98 Underlying fmanc1a! measures are presented as the Board believes these 
provide a better representation of the Group's long-term performance trend 
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Other information 

Glossary 

AGM Annual Gf'neral MPetmg 

Book to bill ratio Ratio of funded orders received m the year to 
revenue for the year adjusted to exclude revenue 
from the 25 yf'ar LTPA contract 

CMG Carbon Management Group 

Compliance The principles underlying the Compliance 
Principles Reg1rne, cover mg 11npart1ality, integrity, conflicts, 

confidentiality and security 

CR Corporate Respons1b1lity 

defra Department tor Environment Focxl and 
Rural Affairs 

OHS US Department of Homeland Security 

DoD US Department of Defense 

Dragon Runner™ A small, unmanned man-portable ground vehicle 
intended for tJSe m urban environments 

DTR MOD s Defence Tram mg Review programme 

EBITDA Earnings before interest tax, deprec1at1on, 
amort1sat1on, gains/loss on business divestments, 
unreal6ed impairment of investment and 
disposal of non current assets 

EMEA rurope, Middle East and Australasia 

EU European Umon 

Funded backlog The expected future value of revenue from 
contracltJally comrrntted and funded customer 
orders (excluding £4 lbn value of the rerna1mng 
18 years of LTPA contract) 

Gearing The gearing 1s the ratio of net debt at the balance 
ratio sheet date translated at average exchange 

rates for the period to EBITDA generated in 
the 12-month period to balance sheet date, 
annualised and calculated 1n accordance with 
the Group's credit tac1lity ratios 

HSE Health and Safety Executive 

HS&E Health, Safety and Environment 

IAS International Accounting Standards 

IFRS International F1nanc1al Reporting Standards 

IPO !mt1al Public Offering 

LIBID London inter bank bid rate 

LIBOR London inter bank offered rate 

LSE London Stock Exchange 

LTPA long Term Partnering Agreement - 25 year 
contract established 1n 2003 to manage the 
MOD's test and evaluation ranges 

MOD UK M1n1stry of Defence 

MRAP Mine Res1~tant Ambush Protected -
armoured vehicle 

MSCA Mantune Strategic Capability Agreement 

NASA National Aeronautics and Space Adm1rnstrat1on 
(USA) 

OCI Orgamsat1onal Conflicts of Interest 

Orgamc Growth The level al year on year growth, expressed 
as a percentage calculated at constant foreign 
exchange rates adjusting comparatives to 
incorporate the results of acqwred ent1t1es 
and excluding the results for any disposals or 
d1~continued operations for the sarne duration 
of ownership as the current period 

ONA Qmet1Q North America 

98 wwwQ1net1Qco1n 
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R&D Research & Development 

RFID Radio frequency 1dent1ficat1on 

RIDDOR Reporting of Injuries, Diseases & Dangerous 
Occurrences Regulations 

Specific non· Major restructuring costs disposal of non current 
recurring items assets, b1Js1ness d1vestrnenb, amortisation of 
and acqu1s1bon intangible assets ans1ng frorn acqu1s1t1ons and 

amortisation 1mpairrnent of 1nvestrnents 

SSSI Site of Special Sc1entrfic Interest 

STEM Science, Technology, Eng1neermg and 
Mathematics educational programrne 

TALON• Powerful, durable, l1ghtwe1ght tracked vehicles 
that are widely used for explosive ordnance 
disposal ([OD) and reconnaissance, etc 

TRACE Transparent Agents and Contracting Ent1tres 

TSR Total Shareholder Return 

UAV Unmanned Aerial Vehicle 

UGV Unmanned Ground Vehicle 

UK GAAP UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 

Underlymg earnings Basic earnings per ~hare as adjusted for gain/loss 
per share on business divestments disposal of non-current 

assets, unrealised 1rnpa1rment of investments, 
major reorgarnsat1on costs and amort1sat1on 
of intangible assets ansmg from acqu1s1t1ons 
and tax thereon 

Underlying The tax charge for the year excluding the tax 
effective unpact on gain/loss on business divestments 
tax rate disposal of non current assets unrealised 

unpa1rment of investments rnaJor reorganisation 
costs, acqws1t1on arnort1sat1on and any tax rate 
change effect expressed as a percentage of 
underlying profit before tax 

Underlying net cash Net cash flow from operations before 
from operations EMEA reorgamsat1on costs and after capital 

expenditure 

Underlying cash The ratio of net cash flow frorn operations 
conversion ratio (excluding major reorganisations), less out flows 

on the purchase of 1ntang1ble assets and property, 
plant and equipment to LJnderlymg operating 
profit excluding share of post tax restJlt of eq1J1ty 
accounted JOint ventures and associates 

Underlying Underlying operating profit expressed as a 
operating margin percentage of reventJe 

Underlying Earmngs before interest tax. gain/loss on 
operating busme~s divestments disposal of non current 

profit/(loss) assets unrealised nnpa1rment of mvestrnents, 
rnaJOr reorgamsat1on costs and arnort1sat1on of 
1ntang1bles arising on acqu1s1t1ons 

Underlying Profit before tax excluding gain/loss on business 
profit before tax divestments, disposal of non current assets, 

unrealised impairment of 1nvestments maJor 
reorganisation costs and amort1sat1on of 
1ntang1ble assets arising frorr1 acqws1t1ons 

UXO Unexploded ordnance 
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Additional information 

Financial calendar 

29 July 2010 

29 July 2010 

30 September 2010 

18 November 2010 

February 2011 

31 March 2011 

May 2011 

Analysis of shareholders• 

tnter1rn management statement 

Annual General Meeting 

lntemn financial period end 

Interim results anno1.mcPment 

lnte11m management statement (Prov1s1onal date) 

Financial year end 

Prellrrnnary results announcement 

lnst1tut1onal investors with a shareholding greater than O Sm share!> 

• • ••• 

Other (mcludmg employees, management and financial mst1tut1ons with a shareholding less than O Sm shares) 
93% 

7% 

•Analysis as at 24 May 2010 

Auditor 

KPMG Audit Pie 
8 Salisbury Sriuare 
London 
EC4Y BBB 

Advisors 

Corporate brokers 
JP Morgan Cazenave 

20 Moorgate 

London 

EC2R 6D/\ 

UBS Investment Bank 

1 Finsbury AventJe 

London 

EC2M 2PP 

Company information 

Principal legal advisors 
Herbert Srnith l LP 

Exchange House 

Primrose Street 

London 

l:l2A 2H~ 

Cornpany Reg1strat1on Nurnber 4586941 

Registered office 
85 Buckingham Gate 
London 
SWlE 6PD 

I Pr112_Aevlew 1ndd 99 

Principal Bankers 
Lloyds TSB Pie 

2S Gresham Street 

London 

EC2V 7HN 

Registrars 
Equ1mti 

Aspect House 

Spencer Road 

Lancing 

West ~us~ex 

BN99 6DA 

100% 

Qinet1Q Group pie Arinual Report and Accounts 2010 99 
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Other 1nformat1on 

Where can you learn more? 

View our report onllne at www Q1net1Q com/Investors 
The QmettO Annual Report 2010 can be viewed at 
wwwQ1net10 com/Investors along with further useful 
shareholder 1nformat1on and mformat1on on the Company, 
its performance, the Annual General Meeting and late~t 
presentations 

For more information visit www OlnetfQ com 
You can access the following 

latest shareholder 1nformat1on 
Latest share pnce 
Financial calendar 
RNS news feeds 
Corporate governance 

View archive Information 
Re~ults and trading updates 
Company reports 
Company presentations 

Learn about shareholder services 
Register onlme 
Sharev1ew 
Common questions 

Give us feedback 
Your feedback 
Investor contacts 

Electronic communication 
Qinet1Q has taken flJll advantage of changes brought about by 
the Companies Act 2006 which recognises the growing importance 
of eli>ctronic cornrnurncat1on<> and allows cornpamf'S to provide 
documentation and communications to shareholders via their 
web~1tes {f'xcept to those who have specdkally elected to receive 
a hardcopy (1 e paper)) 

The wider use of electronic commun1cat1ons enables fast receipt 
of documents redlKes the Company's printing paper and postal 
costs and has a posit we impact on the environment 

Shareholdi>rs may al~ocasl their vote for the 2010 AGM 
on line qmckly and easily tJsmg the Sharevote-serv1ce by 
using www sharevote co uk 

Corporate respons1b1l1ty 
Read more about our Corporate respons1b1lity policy 
at wwwQ1net1Q corn/er 

100 www01net1Qcorn 

Prt12.Aevlew 1ndd 100 
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